
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

Tuesday, October 12, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at 775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.
 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.1. and
2.4. on the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 1:00 p.m. on October 12, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Receive and discuss the Initial Assessment regarding redistricting for City Councilmember
Districts considering the new 2020 Census data

  

 

2. 2. Neighborhood Planning Update   

 

2. 3. Keep Lubbock Beautiful Update   

 

2. 4. City of Lubbock Public Health Department Mini-Hub Vaccination Clinic and Update   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

  

http://www.mylubbock.us


3. Executive Session   

 

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. In Re: Texas Opioid Litigation, MDL No. 2018-63587, in the 152nd District Court of
Harris County, Texas

  

 

3. 1. 2. Redistricting Obligations   

 

3. 1. 3. Discuss Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code   

 

3. 1. 4. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board of
Directors, LECD Board of Directors, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban
Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board of Appeals.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of National Arts and Humanities Month   

 

4. 3. 2. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of National Community Planning Month   

 



Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on October 12, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 

6. 1. July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
August 25, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
September 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

7. 1. Budget Amendment Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0135, Amendment 1, amending the Adopted FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Pay Plans; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 2. Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 2, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration
Section 5310 Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant and
Airport Capital Fund, to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project
92717, replace Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicle; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 3. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City
Manager in purchasing, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property insurance
coverage. The subject insurers are listed in the attachment along with the terms and
conditions, and said attachment is incorporated hereto as if fully set forth herein.

 

7. 4. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City
Manager in purchasing, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security Privacy
Insurance coverage.The subject insurer is listed in the attachment along with the terms and
conditions, and said attachment is incorporated hereto as if fully set forth herein.

 

7. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing an
easement, located at 4601 23rd Street, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

7. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept on behalf



7. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept on behalf
of the City of Lubbock, four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 30 and
31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway
Expansion Project.

 

7. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15317, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for additional engineering
services for the design of 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to Quaker Avenue.

 

7. 8. Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16164, a cost-sharing agreement, with Lubbock County, for a full mill and relay
asphalt maintenance project on North University, from the Clovis Highway (US 84) to the
Marsha Sharp Freeway (US 62/82).

 

7. 9. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Cha-Cha's Mexican
Café, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

7. 10. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Cha-Cha's
Mexican Café, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the
Market Lubbock Development Corporation.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the
Mayor in executing a Temporary Lease Agreement, with BayCal Lubbock Partners, LLC and
MBABAB, LLC as TIC c/o NetCo Investment, Inc., for a testing and vaccination clinic at
2717 and 2721 50th Street, Lubbock, Texas, for the Health Department.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Mayor in
executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS001019500024, and all related documents,
under the COVID-19 Immunizations Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the Texas Department of State Health Services.

 

7. 13. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Community Development Funding Contract 16001 and all related documents, with
the YWCA of Lubbock, through the Community Development Block Grant administered by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, to provide childcare assistance to
qualified low-to-moderate income persons and families.

 

7. 14. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Community Development Funding Contract 16002 and all related documents,
with the Lubbock Housing Finance Corporation, through the Community Development Block
Grant, administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, to provide
mortgage assistance to qualified low-to-moderate income persons and families.

 

7. 15. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief



7. 15. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief
Financial Officer, in executing FY 2021 Section 5310 Grant, TX-2021-104-00, from the
Federal Transit Administration, for operating and capital to enhance the mobility of elderly
individuals and individuals with disabilities.

 

7. 16. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute FY 2022 Section 5307 Grant, TxDOT URB 2202 (05), Project ID 51309020522, from
the Texas Department of Transportation, for operating assistance to maintain its public
transportation system.

 

7. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief
Financial Officer, in executing FY 2021 Section 5307 Grant, Project TX-2021-113-00, from
the Federal Transit Administration, to provide operating assistance, preventative maintenance,
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit service, capital, and planning assistance.

 

7. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the Chief
Financial Officer in executing Section FY 2019 and FY 2020 Section 5339(a) Grant, Project
ID TX-2021-118-00, from the Federal Transit Administration, for the purchase of
eight paratransit replacement buses which are compliant with the Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA).

 

7. 19. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Agreement 16113 and related documents, between the City of Lubbock Public
Libraries and SirsiDynix, for the Enterprise SaaS Annual Subscription, Support, and Software
Maintenance.

 

7. 20. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement, with Wild West Harley-Davidson, to lease fourteen Police motorcycles and related
equipment, for use by the Police Department.

 

8. Regular Agenda   

 

8. 1. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution adopting redistricting criteria to apply to
development of new districting plans.

 

8. 2. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution adopting redistricting guidelines
regarding public participation in the redistricting process.

 

8. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Advisory
Board, Building Board of Appeals, Citizens Traffic Commission, Health/Educational
Facilities Development Corporation Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communication
District Board of Directors, Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Board of
Directors, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Market Lubbock Economic Development
Corporation Board of Directors, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Planning and
Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board
of Appeals.

 

8. 4. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a Resolution of Intent to create the City of



8. 4. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a Resolution of Intent to create the City of
Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE). 

 

8. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0144, for Zone Case
2690-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC, for a zone change from
Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District
(C-2) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola
Avenue and north of 26th Street, West End North Addition, Tract D1.

 

8. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0145, for Zone Case
2904-H, a request of Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC, for a
zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4),
and Multi-Family District (R-3) to IHC, at 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R
and 302, 304, 306, and 310 Avenue Q, located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of
Avenue Q, Roberts & McWhorter Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C
and the north part of Tract D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet
of Lot 6.

 

8. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0136, for Zone Case
2904-I, a request of Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC, for a zone change
from General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and
Blood Plasma Center, at 5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street,
Eckerd Addition, Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way. 

 

8. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0137, for Zone Case
3135-B, a request of Westar Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC, for a zone
change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a
bar at 11824 Indiana Avenue, Suites #400 and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and
south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza Addition, Tract C. 

 

8. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0138, for Zone Case
3257-M, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and
Rocket Partners I, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to
Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Townhomes, generally located south of
137th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, on 3.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 1. 

 

8. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0139, for Zone Case
3308-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Dreambuilt Homes, Inc., Bushland Springs,
LLC, Bo Properties, and HomeMakers Building Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single
Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A), at 7211
through 7224 23rd Street, located east of Upland Avenue on the north and south sides of 23rd
Street, Bushland Springs Addition, Lots 245-258, and 1.48 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 43, located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 26th Street. 

 

8. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0140, for Zone Case



8. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0140, for Zone Case
3443, a request of Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments, for a zone
change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 10301
Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 0.8193 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 19.

 

8. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0141, for Zone Case
3444, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change
from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 5802 Upland Avenue, located
west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 34.

 

8. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0142, for Zone Case
3445, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development
Alliance, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District
(M-2), located east of East Loop 289 and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of unplatted land
out of Block O, Section 6.

 

8. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0146, for Zone Case
3447, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a
Self-Storage Facility, generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton
Street, on 4.21 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6.

 

8. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0143, for Zone Case
3446, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment
District (A-2), at 5601 Ursuline Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford
Avenue, on 134.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6.

 

8. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0147, amending
Chapter 40 “Zoning” of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, amending Section
40.01.003 “Definitions” to add a definition for “Office/Warehouse”; amending Division 15
“C-3 General Retail District” to update General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and amending
Section 40.03.2233 “C-4 Permitted Uses” to add “Office/Warehouse”, setting forth
regulations for outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.

 

8. 17. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the
applicable 300-foot minimum distance provisions of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No.
2009-O0060, at 3314 4th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Everest Mart.

 

8. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the method of
assessment classification for the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District, and calling
for a public hearing on October 26, 2021. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 3. 3.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of
Appeals, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board of Directors, LECD Board of
Directors, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the
Water Board of Appeals.

Item Summary
 

Fiscal Impact
 

Staff/Board Recommending
 

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
August 25, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
September 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
Minutes:
July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
August 25, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
September 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
7.20.2021 S LMPO 
8.25.2021 S LEDA 
9.14.2021 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

July 20, 2021
8:30 A.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 20th of July, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

  
8:37 A.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Jeff Griffith;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Latrelle
Joy; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

This was a meeting of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization's Transportation Policy Committee.
A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
Committee considered the following topics as shown below. Members of the Committee, in attendance, were:
Chair Curtis Parrish, Shelia Patterson Harris, Jeff Griffith, Chad Seay, Chris Mandrell, Daniel M. Pope, and
Jarrett Atkinson. 
  
Note:      The Transportation Policy Committee addressed agenda items in the following order: 

1.4-1.9.8
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. REGULAR SESSION
 
1. 1. Safety Procedures

*This item was deleted.
 
1. 2. Public Comment Period/Acknowledgment of Guest of the Transportation Policy Committee.

*This item was deleted.
 
1. 3. The Committee will approve the minutes from the Transportation Policy Committee meeting of June

15, 2021.

*This item was deleted.
 
1. 4. The Committee will conduct a public meeting to receive comments on the proposed FY 2022



1. 4. The Committee will conduct a public meeting to receive comments on the proposed FY 2022
amendment of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization's Public Participation Plan. No
action will be taken by the Committee or City Council.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. 

Chair Curtis Parrish opened the public comment period at 8:37 a.m.

No one appeared to speak on this item. 

Chair Curtis Parrish closed the public comment period at 8:38 a.m.
 
1. 5. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action regarding Resolution 2021-11 adopting

adjusted Pavement and Bridge Performance Measures (PM-2).

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave a
presentation and answered questions from the Committee.  

Motion by Daniel M. Pope, seconded by Jarrett Atkinson, to approve Resolution 2021-11.

Vote: 7-0 motion carried by the Committee
 
1. 6. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action regarding Resolution 2021-12 adopting

adjusted System Performance Measures (PM-3).

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave a
presentation and answered questions from the Committee.  

Motion by Jeff Griffith, seconded by Chad Seay, to approve Resolution 2021-12.

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried by the Committee
 
1. 7. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action regarding Resolution 2021-13 adopting

amended Bylaws for the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave a
presentation and answered questions from the Committee. Matt Wade, with Underwood Law Firm,
gave comments and answered questions from the Committee. 

Motion by Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Chad Seay, to approve Resolution 2021-13.

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried by the Committee
 
1. 8. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action regarding the unexpired term of the Vice

Chair to October 2022.

Chair Curtis Parrish opened the floor for nominations to the unexpired term of Vice Chair. 

Special City Council Meeting 
July 20, 2021 Page 2 of 4



Daniel M. Pope nominated Shelia Patterson Harris for the unexpired term of Vice Chair.

No other nominations were made. 

Motion by Daniel M. Pope, seconded by Chad Seay, to appoint Shelia Patterson Harris to the
position of Vice Chair. 

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried by the Committee.
 
1. 9. Reports
 
1. 9. 1. Report on the City of Lubbock street bond proposal.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. Wood Franklin, division director of
public works for the City of Lubbock, gave a presentation and answered questions from the
Committee.

 
1. 9. 2. Interstate 27 extension news.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. Duffy Hinkle, vice president of the
Ports to Plains Alliance, gave a presentation and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 9. 3. Quarterly report on TIP projects.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. Jeremy Dearing, director of
transportation operations for the TxDOT Lubbock District, gave a presentation on
transportation improvement program projects and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 9. 4. Quarterly report on TSMO activities.

Jeremy Dearing, director of transportation operations for the TxDOT Lubbock District, gave a
presentation on transportation systems management & operations and answered questions from
the Committee.

 
1. 9. 5. Shop early for Christmas/shipping dashboard.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 9. 6. Congress likely to “kick the can down the road” again.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 9. 7. North Houston Highway Improvement Project halted for Environmental Justice and Civil

Special City Council Meeting 
July 20, 2021 Page 3 of 4



1. 9. 7. North Houston Highway Improvement Project halted for Environmental Justice and Civil
Rights concerns.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 9. 8. Monthly financial report.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 

9:40 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th day
of October, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
July 20, 2021 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 25, 2021
8:30 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 25th of August, 2021, at
the Wells Fargo Center, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference at 8:30 a.m.

8:34 A.M.   CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
Wells Fargo Center, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference 

Present: Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy
Christian; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City
Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; Assistant City Attorney Kelli Leisure; Vital Statistics
Manager Jennifer Clements
Council Members Randy Christian and Shelia Patterson Harris attended via video
conference.

Absent: Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Jeff Griffith
This was a meeting of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors. A
quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
board considered the following topics as shown below:

Note: The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (LEDA) Board of Directors addressed agenda
items in the following order:  

1.1; Executive Session
No quorum, of the City Council, was present for all other items.

1. MINUTES

1. 1. The Board will approve the Minutes of the LEDA Board of Directors Meeting of July 28, 2021. 

Motion by Matt Bumstead, seconded by Brett Cate, to approve the minutes of the LEDA Board
of Directors Meeting of July 28, 2021.

Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Board.

Other: Suzann Kirby (ABSENT)

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION



2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 9:15 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 9:58 a.m. and
was adjourned.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.087 to (1)

discuss or deliberate in regard to commercial or financial information that LEDA has received from
business prospects seeking to locate, stay or expand, in the Lubbock area, or, (2) to deliberate the
offer of a financial or other incentive to business prospects described in (1) above. This will include
the project and goals update, and monthly activity reports of Kenny McKay, Director of Business
Retention, Carolyn Rowley of Director of Business Recruitment & Innovation, and reports related to
financial, budget, audit reports, and matters related to the Lubbock Business Park, Lubbock Rail
Port, and neighboring property and workforce/training projects.  Others may also participate in this
report including but not limited to, John Osborne, Jana Johnston, Christine Allen, Katherine White,
Katy Christy, Jorge Quirino, Rusty Smith, Andrew Sorrells, Chris Rankin, Mayor Dan Pope, Jarrett
Atkinson, City Manager, members of City Council and Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business
Development with the City of Lubbock. 

 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.072 to deliberate

the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property.   
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.071 to discuss

legal matters.
 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, goals, compensation, evaluation, reassignment of duties, discipline or
dismissal of employee(s) or to hear a complaint or charge against an employee(s).

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will consider a resolution to approve the July 2021 LEDA Financial Report.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation of project update and monthly activity reports for Workforce Development.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation of project update and monthly reports of Marketing & Communication activities.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. The Board will consider resolutions to approve Marketing and Advertising Proposals with Madden

Media for promoting Lubbock, our local businesses, future businesses and talented workforce.

*This item was deleted.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 25, 2021 Page 2 of 5



 
3. 4. 1. Business is Better

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. 2. Return2LBK

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. The Board will consider action, if needed, including the adoption of resolutions, to offer financial

and other incentives to business prospects or other matters considered in Executive Session and
ratification of performance agreements that have been approved by the Board.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 1. Performance Agreement for Project Basil

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on matters relating to properties owned by

LEDA including the Lubbock Business Park, Lubbock Rail Port and active projects, including but
not limited to plans for current and possible future uses of the land, zoning, platting, mapping,
marketing, services and utilities to and from the properties, and any other matters related to the
possible uses of the land.  This discussion and possible action on matters involving the properties
may include but be limited to the following items:

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 1. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on property to be used for future

economic development opportunities.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 2. Update on the progress of the properties and any matters related to contractors and/or contracts.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 3. Discuss the current status of the plans for developing the parks.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 4. Discuss the current status of efforts to use the properties by businesses.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on possible financing options

Special City Council Meeting 
August 25, 2021 Page 3 of 5



3. 6. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on possible financing options
for improvements to the properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 6. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on proposed future development of

the properties with construction and engineering projects and related contracts, regarding
projects and the development at LEDA properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. Architectural Review Committee Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. CEO Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. 1. Review LEDA Dashboard

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. 2. Employment Data Update

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 9. Chairman's Report

*This item was deleted.
 

9:58 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The August 25, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th
day of October, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
August 25, 2021 Page 4 of 5



*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present. 

Special City Council Meeting 
August 25, 2021 Page 5 of 5



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 14, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 14th of September, 2021,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:07 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad
Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1-2.3; Executive Session; 4.1-4.4; Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1-7.21;
7.23-7.32; 7.41-7.44; 7.33-7.40; 8.1-8.22.
Item No. 7.22 was deleted.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.1 on the Work
Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later
than 1:00 p.m. Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments and
express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a
question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak.
 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program,

and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities,
Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, and related and associated items; and
take action to direct the City Manager to make changes to said Budget.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council on
the Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program. Discussion included, but was
not limited to: the Comprehensive Fiscal Impact Analysis, consumption taxes, City of Lubbock



membership in the Tree City USA Program, and sales tax. 
 
2. 2. Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy (Tx-PACE) Program Overview

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, introduced the item, gave comments, and
answered questions from City Council. Charlene Heydinger, president of the Texas PACE
Authority, gave a presentation on the Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy (TX-PACE)
Program and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: an overview of
the PACE Program, qualifications, current participants and statistics, and the benefits of
participation in the PACE Program. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
2. 3. Lubbock Book Festival

Stacy McKenzie, director of library services, gave a presentation on the 2021 Lubbock Book
Festival and answered questions from City Council. The 2021 Lubbock Book Festival will
include the Prologue Party, scheduled for September 24, 2021, from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m., at
the Frazier Alumni Pavilion; and the Book Festival, scheduled for September 25, 2021, from
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., and September 26, 2021, from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., at Mahon Library.
Ms. McKenzie also introduced Julie Laughlin and Elizabeth Laughlin, with Literacy Lubbock;
and K.J. Waters, president-elect of the Caprock Writers Alliance. All are Lubbock Book Festival
Committee partners and were in attendance during the presentation. 

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:09 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:47 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:14 p.m.

 
3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
3. 1. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following: 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 2 of 21



 
3. 3. 1. City Attorney
 
3. 3. 2. City Manager
 
3. 3. 3. City Secretary
 
3. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development
Corporation Board of Directors, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, LECD
Board of Directors, Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, Planning and
Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board of
Appeals.

  

 
3. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.076 to

discuss or deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security
personnel or devices; or a security audit.

 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:47 p.m.
 
4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

Senior Minister Paul Carpenter, First Christian Church, led the invocation.
 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition to Fiestas del Llano, Inc. in recognition of El Diez y

Seis de Septiembre – known as Mexican Independence Day, and National Hispanic
Heritage Month.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope presented a special recognition to Fiestas del Llano, Inc. in
recognition of El Diez y Seis de Septiembre, known as Mexican Independence Day, and
National Hispanic Heritage Month. Zenaida Aguero-Reyes, chair of the Fiestas del Llano
Board, gave comments, thanked City Council for their continued support, and invited all
Lubbock residents to attend the Mexican Independence Day Parade on Saturday,

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 3 of 21



September 18, 2021, beginning at 10:00 a.m.; and the celebrations to be held at Our Lady
of Guadalupe Church on Saturday, September 18, 2021, beginning at 5:00 p.m., and
Sunday, September 19, 2021, from 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Additionally, a mariachi
band and a youth dance group performed a song and a dance for City Council and those in
attendance.

 
4. 3. 2. Staff Recognitions: Communications & Marketing Team

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, presented a special recognition to the City of Lubbock's
Communications & Marketing Team in recognition of their three 2021 TAMI Awards from
the Texas Association of Municipal Information Officers (TAMIO). The Communications
& Marketing Team received an Award of Excellence for COVID-19 External
Communication with the COVID-19 Vaccine Campaign; an Award of Honor for a Special
or One Time Program with the "Beau, Our Trash Truck Super Hero" video; and a TAMI
Award for Best Use of Social Media (Unplanned) which took place during the January
9-12, 2021, winter weather event. 

 
4. 4. Board Recognitions: Presented by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale

Quincy Park Public Improvement District Advisory Board
Shelley Lee (unable to attend)
 
Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Advisory Board
Chris Berry (unable to attend)
Trey Benton(unable to attend)
Zach Tollett
Mike Snyder
Austin Lear
 
Valencia Public Improvement District Advisory Board
Jonathan Jackson (unable to attend)

  

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:14 p.m.
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 14, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak.
 
6. Minutes
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 4 of 21



6. 1. July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
July 28, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
August 9, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - LPD East Patrol Division Ribbon Cutting
August 10, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve the July 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility
Board minutes; the July 28, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance minutes; the August 9, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - LPD
East Patrol Division Ribbon Cutting minutes; and the August 10, 2021 Regular City
Council Meeting minutes.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Randy

Christian to approve items 7.1-7.21; 7.23-7.32; and 7.41-7.44. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No.

2021-O0105, Amendment 42, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the General Fund Capital to amend Capital Improvement Project 8633
Comprehensive Plan Implementation; respecting the General Fund Operating to appropriate
additional revenue for payment in lieu of Taxes (PILOT), from the LP&L Fund and for franchise
fees from the LP&L Fund, and to appropriate additional transfer to General Fund Capital and
transfer to Gateway Fund; and respecting the Gateway Fund to appropriate additional transfer
revenue from the General Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
7. 1. 1. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2021-R0329 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 14462, with Kendig Keast Collaborative, Inc., for development of
a Unified Development Code.

  

 
7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0129,

Amendment 43, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lake
Alan Henry Fund, Health Benefits Fund, the Storm Water Operating and Capital Funds to
establish Capital Improvement Project 8667 Flood Protection Study, and the Grant Fund; to
accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration for the Airport Rescue Grant; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 5 of 21



 
7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0130,

Amendment 44, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

  

 
7. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0107, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
North Overton Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0108, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
North Point Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0109, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Quincy Park Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0110, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Valencia Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0111, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Bell Farms Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the City
Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0112, reviewing classifications for   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 6 of 21



7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0112, reviewing classifications for
the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Upland Crossing Public Improvement District (PID); approving, adopting, and filing with the
City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessment.

  

 
7. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0106, the Fourteenth Supplemental

Ordinance, updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement District Service and
Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll.

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2021-R0330 authorizing the approval of the Lubbock

Emergency Communication District Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0331 authorizing and directing the

City Manager, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, to purchase property insurance
coverage with insurers as yet to be determined, for which the premium shall not exceed a rate
of $0.2596 per $100 of valuation.

  

 
7. 13. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0332 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property terrorism
insurance coverage from Lloyd’s of London, for which the premium amount shall not exceed a
rate of $0.0027 per $100 valuation.

  

 
7. 14. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0333 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, boiler and machinery
insurance coverage from Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company, for which the premium
amount shall not exceed a rate of $0.0039 per $100 equipment valuation.

  

 
7. 15. Resolutions - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0334 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, inland marine insurance
coverage from Travelers Lloyd’s Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall not
exceed $17,584; pipeline liability insurance coverage from Federal Insurance Company, for
which the premium amount shall not exceed $5,150; crime insurance coverage from Travelers
Casualty & Surety Company of America, for which the premium amount shall not exceed
$7,577; and drones hull and liability coverage from Global Aerospace, Inc., for which the
premium shall not exceed $4,552.

  

 
7. 16. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0335 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, airport and non-owned
aircraft liability insurance coverage from Ace Property and Casualty Insurance Company, for
which the premium amount shall not exceed $30,810.

  

 
7. 17. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0336 authorizing and directing the   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 7 of 21



7. 17. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0336 authorizing and directing the
City Manager to purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, workers’ compensation
coverage from Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, for which the total amount
shall not exceed $1,619,534.66.

  

 
7. 18. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0337 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property insurance from
Zurich American Insurance Company for the John T. Montford Dam, for a total premium in an
amount not to exceed $163,072.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0338 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, package liability insurance
coverage from Gemini Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall not exceed
$670,649.13.

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0339 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, excess liability insurance
coverage from Old Republic Union Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall
not exceed $867,995.19.

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0340 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal
electric utility, property insurance coverage to include boiler and machinery with the insurers as
yet to be determined, for which the premium shall not exceed a rate of $0.5557 per $100.

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City

Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, coverage from a carrier as yet to
be determined, for which the premium amount shall not exceed $114,393.

This item was deleted.

  

 
7. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0128, abandoning and closing

portions of 7th, 8th, 9th, and 10th Streets and portions of alleys located in Blocks 63, 79, and 95,
Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 24. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0131, abandoning and closing

an Underground Water Line Easement on Lot 45-C, Northridge Addition, located at 3106
Canyon Road, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 25. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0132, abandoning and closing

a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Section 1, Block AK, Viridian Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas.

  

 
7. 26. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0341 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License, with Miguels Holdings LLC, to locate a business sign within the street
right-of-way at 2002 Broadway.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 8 of 21



 
7. 27. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0342 authorizing the Mayor to accept, on

behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, out of Section 31,
Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway Expansion
Project.

  

 
7. 28. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0343 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 14868, with Provenance
Engineering, LLC, for professional engineering services associated with the construction of the
Lift Station 31 Force Main Rehabilitation Project.

  

 
7. 29. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0344 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 15089, with Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc., for professional engineering services for the design of the 114th Street
Reconstruction Project from Slide Road to Quaker Avenue.

  

 
7. 30. Resolution - Gateway Streets: Resolution No. 2021-R0345 amending the Gateway Street

Projects Fund to expand the qualifying roadway projects for Arterial Roadways in order to
enlarge existing roadways to increase capacity, to rebuild existing roadways to improve safety,
or to construct new roadways on unimproved Arterial sections.

  

 
7. 31. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0346 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

pipeline easement agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan Henry
Water District, in connection with certain property in Garza County, Texas.

  

 
7. 32. Resolution - Water Operations: Resolution No. 2021-R0347 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15905, with Brenntag Southwest, Inc., for the purchase of hydrochloric acid for the
North and South Water Treatment Plants.

  

 
7. 33. Resolution - Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2021-R0352 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Interlocal Cooperation Contract, with Texas Tech University (TTU), to provide a recycling
drop-off location on the TTU Campus.

Brenda Haney, director of solid waste, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0352. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 34. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0353 ratifying the acts of the   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 9 of 21



7. 34. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0353 ratifying the acts of the
Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS000779500001 and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission, under the Substance Use Disorder Treatment Program, to provide funding to
support the administration and oversight of substance use disorder treatment services in the
community.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0353. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 35. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0354 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS000779500002 and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission, under the Substance Use Disorder Treatment Program, to provide funding to
support the treatment of substance use disorders in adults in the community.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0354. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 36. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0355 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS000790500005 and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission, under the Substance Use Disorder Treatment Program, to provide funding to
support treatment services for co-occurring psychiatric and substance use disorders.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0355. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 10 of 21



 
7. 37. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0356 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS000779500003 and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission, under the Substance Use Disorder Treatment Program, to provide funding to
support the treatment of substance use disorders in youth in the community.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0356. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 38. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0357 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS000779500004 and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission, under the Substance Use Disorder Treatment Program, to provide funding to
support the provision of substance use disorder treatment services for pregnant women and
women with dependent children.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0357. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 39. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0358 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding - Outreach,
Screening, Assessment, and Referral, by and between the City of Lubbock through the City of
Lubbock Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, to participate in an
interagency collaborative effort to meet the specific needs of the priority population, including
serving as an essential link between prevention, intervention, and treatment services within the
community.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0358. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 11 of 21



  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 40. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0359 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding - Parenting
Awareness & Drug Risk Education Program (PADRE), by and between the City of Lubbock
through the City of Lubbock Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, to
participate in an interagency collaborative effort to provide community-based, intervention
services to parents and expectant parents with substance use disorders, or who are at risk of
developing substance use disorders.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0359. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
7. 41. Resolution - Human Resources: Resolution No. 2021-R0348 authorizing the Mayor to

execute the First Amendment to Administrative Services Agreement 13582, by and between the
City of Lubbock and ConnectYourCare, LLC, to include administrative services for the Health
Reimbursement Arrangement for Medicare-eligible retirees.

  

 
7. 42. Resolution - Municipal Court: Resolution No. 2021-R0349 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

renewal of the Interlocal Agreement for Specialized Treatment and Rehabilitation Program,
between the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, and the Lubbock Independent School
District, for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

  

 
7. 43. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0350 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001534, with Microsoft Corporation, for the Enterprise Support
Services Agreement to maintain Microsoft products and applications.

  

 
7. 44. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0351 authorizing the Mayor to accept a

Special Warranty Deed from Rocket Partners I, LLC, for 2.401 acres in Section 1, Block AK,
Lubbock County, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 140th Street, for the construction
of Fire Station No. 20.

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0126 approving and adopting a   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 12 of 21



8. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0126 approving and adopting a
budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary
transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of
spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized
obligations or encumbered; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service
classifications and positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget
and Capital Program of the City of Lubbock; approving all permit, license, fees, and charges for
service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and positions; approving personnel;
amending Section 22.03.084 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the
water base rate fees as contained therein; amending Section 22.03.085 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by establishing an industrial volume rate class as contained
therein; amending Section 22.03.090(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by
revising the water service (water tap) connection fees as contained therein; amending Section
22.04.041(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the wastewater base
rate fees as contained therein; amending Section 22.04.045(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Lubbock by revising the sewer service connection fees as contained therein; amending
Section 22.04.174 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising language on
septic tank emptying as contained therein; amending Section 22.06.051 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste landfill service fees as contained
therein; amending Section 22.06.185(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by
revising the solid waste collections service fees as contained therein; accepting the budgets for
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and
Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation; finding that proper notice of meeting provided
by law and ratifying such; providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0126. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 2. Resolution - Finance:  Resolution No. 2021-R0360 ratifying the adoption of the FY 2021-22

budget that raises more tax revenue than was generated in the previous year.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0360. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0127 setting the tax rate and   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 13 of 21



8. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0127 setting the tax rate and
levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation with the City of Lubbock for 2021;
apportioning said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised;
fixing the times in which said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for
nonpayment of such taxes within the time provided.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0127, increasing the property tax rate by the adoption of
the tax rate 0.523230, which is effectively a 5.13 percent increase in the tax rate.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 4. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2021-R0361 amending the allocation of the Hotel

Occupancy Tax Revenues for FY 2021-22 and distributing receipts, net of collection expenses,
as authorized in Subsection 18.03.001(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Chad Weaver, city attorney; and Blu Kostelich, chief financial
officer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0361. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 
  Council Member Randy Christian (AWAY) 

 
8. 5. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2021-R0362 adopting the Electric

Rate/Tariff Schedule of Lubbock Power & Light, the City of Lubbock's municipally owned
electric utility, applicable to all rate classes, effective October 1, 2021.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Joe Jimenez, financial planning & analysis manager for
LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0362. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 6. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Lubbock Reese

Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors.
  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 14 of 21



 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to appoint George McMahan and John Hamilton to the Lubbock Reese
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to reappoint John Tye to the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of
Directors.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 7. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to

consider the creation of a Public Improvement District for Northwest Passage, which covers a
portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by
Frankford Avenue on the west, Quaker Avenue on the east, Kent Avenue and Highway 84 on the
north, and Marshall Avenue on the south. 

Public Hearing only

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement: "City Council will hold a
public hearing to consider the creation of the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District.
This public hearing is required by the Texas Local Government Code."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:47 p.m.

Mont McClendon, city of Lubbock's Downtown Master Developer/McDougal Properties,
appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:51 p.m.

 

  

 
8. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0363 making findings and

authorizing establishment of the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District, which covers
a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by
Frankford Avenue on the west, Quaker Avenue on the east, Kent Avenue and Highway 84 on the
north, and Marshall Avenue on the south. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 15 of 21



Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0363. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 9. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2021-R0364 terminating the Chapter 212 Agreement

related to property located south of 34th Street and west of Upland Avenue, containing
approximately 7.867 acres out of Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, and identified
by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District reference number R126622, and authorizing City
staff to develop annexation documents for the subject property.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0364. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 10. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0133, for an annexation of the property

located south of 34th Street and west of Upland Avenue, containing approximately 7.867 acres,
out of Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock
Central Appraisal District Reference Number R126622.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:55 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:56 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Randy

Christian to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0133. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 16 of 21



8. 11. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0134, providing for the issuance
of City of Lubbock, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A; and
enacting other provisions relating thereto.

Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council. Matt Boles, managing director with RBC Capital Markets, gave a presentation and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0134. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0113, for Zone Case 2538-U, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Yates II BY, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 6902 19th Street, located east of Rochester
Avenue and north of 19th Street, on 4.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0113. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0115, for Zone Case 2904-G, a

request of Broadus Services, LLC (T-Mobile Agent) for Bethel Property Management, LLC, for
a Specific Use for a temporary telecommunications tower on property zoned Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC), at 212 University Avenue, located west of University Avenue and
southeast of Santa Fe Drive, on 0.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 20.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0115. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0117, for Zone Case 2951-A, a   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 17 of 21



8. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0117, for Zone Case 2951-A, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Carl Mortensen, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Single-Family District (R-1), at 10508 Frankford
Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 110th Street, on 10.0 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 21.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0117. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0118, for Zone Case 3023-A, a

request of SGA Design Group for Wal-mart Real Estate Business Trust, to amend the site plan
and conditions of Ordinance No. 2004-O0120, at 1911 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located north of
7th Street and west of Avenue R, Overton Park Addition, Tract 14-A-1.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0118. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0119, for Zone Case 3175-F, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) and
Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), at 5914 Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street
and west of North Frankford Avenue, on 7.23 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0119. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0120, for Zone Case 3257-L, a   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 18 of 21



8. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0120, for Zone Case 3257-L, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Garden Office (GO), at 14201 Indiana Avenue,
located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 140th Street, on 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 1.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0120. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0121, for Zone Case 3308-C, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Bushland Springs, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1), Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use, General Retail District
(C-3), and Industrial Park District (IDP) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 7201 19th
Street, located east of Upland Avenue and south of 19th Street, on 14.5 acres of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 43.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0121. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 20-O0122, for Zone Case 3439, a request

of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Cynthia E. Jones, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) to Family Apartment District (A-1) and Local Retail District (C-2), generally located
south of 104th Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue, on 20.3 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 22.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0122.  
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 19 of 21



 
8. 20. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0123, for Zone Case 3440, a

request of Western Bank for TCS Parents Group, LTD, for a zone change from Garden Office
District (GO) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 14005 Quaker Avenue, located south of 140th
Street and east of Quaker Avenue, on 1.829 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0123. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0124, for Zone Case 3441, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for DSE Development, Ltd., for a zone change from
Transition District (T) and Industrial Park District (IDP) to Two-Family District (R-2),
Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), and General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for
a self-storage facility, at 4402 Upland Avenue, located east of Upland Avenue and north of 50th
Street, on 33.38 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0124. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 
8. 22. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0125, for Zone Case 3442, a

request of Hodges Architecture for Covenant Health System, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC) with a Planned Development District (PD), generally located north
of 82nd Street and east of Marsha Sharp Freeway, on 47.6 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 31.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0125. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (RECUSE) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 20 of 21



  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (RECUSE) 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 

6:18 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The September 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
12th day of October, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 14, 2021 Page 21 of 21



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Amendment Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2021-O0135,
Amendment 1, amending the Adopted FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Pay
Plans; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
Amend Exhibit E - Civil Service and Non-Civil Service Pay Plans of the FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget, as
passed by City Council on September 14, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Budget Amendment 1 
Updated Exhibit E 







Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

101 16,486.08$                         21,330.40                          26,176.80                           

102 17,309.76                           22,397.44                          27,485.12                           

103 18,170.88                           23,516.48                          28,862.08                           

104 19,081.92                           24,693.76                          30,305.60                           

105 20,036.64                           25,929.28                          31,819.84                           

106 21,039.20                           27,225.12                          33,408.96                           

107 22,087.52                           28,583.36                          35,079.20                           

108 23,192.00                           30,014.40                          36,834.72                           

109 24,352.64                           31,516.16                          38,677.60                           

110 25,569.44                           33,090.72                          40,612.00                           

111 26,850.72                           34,746.40                          42,640.00                           

112 28,192.32                           36,483.20                          44,774.08                           

113 29,598.40                           38,305.28                          47,012.16                           

114 31,081.44                           40,306.24                          49,362.56                           

115 32,637.28                           42,234.40                          51,829.44                           

116 34,270.08                           44,345.60                          54,421.12                           

117 35,642.88                           46,126.08                          56,607.20                           

118 37,427.52                           48,434.88                          59,440.16                           

119 39,299.52                           50,856.00                          62,410.40                           

120 41,265.12                           53,399.84                          65,532.48                           

121 43,324.32                           56,066.40                          68,806.40                           

122 45,063.20                           58,316.96                          71,568.64                           

123 47,313.76                           61,228.96                          75,144.16                           

124 49,682.88                           64,292.80                          78,902.72                           

125 52,168.48                           67,508.48                          82,846.40                           

126 54,772.64                           70,882.24                          86,991.84                           

Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan

127 56,964.96                           73,717.28                          90,467.52                           

128 59,810.40                           77,403.04                          94,993.60                           

129 62,801.44                           81,271.84                          99,742.24                           

130 65,944.32                           85,338.24                          104,730.08                         

131 69,241.12                           89,604.32                          109,965.44                         

132 72,704.32                           94,084.64                          115,462.88                         

133 76,338.08                           98,787.52                          121,236.96                         

134 80,154.88                           103,725.44                        127,296.00                         

135 84,163.04                           108,915.04                        133,664.96                         

136 88,366.72                           114,354.24                        140,341.76                         

137 92,788.80                           120,076.32                        147,363.84                         

138 97,429.28                           126,081.28                        154,733.28                         

139 101,558.08                           131,426.88                        161,295.68                         

140 106,639.52                           137,999.68                        169,359.84                         

141 111,970.56                           144,899.04                        177,829.60                         

142 117,567.84                           152,145.76                        186,721.60                         

143 123,448.00                           159,754.40                        196,058.72                         

144 129,621.44                           167,741.60                        205,859.68                         

145 136,102.72                           176,128.16                        216,151.52                         

146 142,908.48                           184,936.96                        226,963.36                         

147 150,053.28                           194,180.48                        238,307.68                         

148 157,551.68                           203,887.84                        250,224.00                         

149 165,432.80                           214,398.08                        262,735.20                         

150 173,702.88                           224,787.68                        275,870.40                         

Pay Plan reflects annual salary amount



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

201 7.704$                          9.968                           12.232                         
 

202 8.088                            10.466                         12.843                         
 

203 8.491                            10.989                         13.487                         
 

204 8.916                            11.539                         14.161                         

205 9.363                            12.116                         14.869                         
 

206 9.832                            12.722                         15.612                         
 

207 10.321                          13.357                         16.392                         
 

208 10.837                          14.025                         17.212                         
 

209 11.380                          14.727                         18.074                         
 

210 11.948                          15.463                         18.977                         
 

211 12.547                          16.236                         19.925                         
 

212 13.174                          17.048                         20.922                         
 

213 13.831                          17.900                         21.968                         
 

214 14.524                          18.796                         23.067                         
 

215 15.251                          19.735                         24.219                         
 

216 16.014                          20.723                         25.431                         
 

217 16.813                          21.757                         26.701                         
 

218 17.654                          22.846                         28.038                         
 

219 18.537                          23.988                         29.439                         
 

220 19.465                          25.188                         30.911                         
 

221 20.436                          26.446                         32.456                         
 

222 21.459                          27.770                         34.080                         
 

223 22.530                          29.157                         35.783                         
 

224 23.658                          30.616                         37.573                         
 

225 24.842                          32.147                         39.451                         
 

226 26.083                          33.753                         41.423                         
 

227 27.387                          35.441                         43.494                         
 

Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan

228 28.755                          37.213                         45.670                         
 

229 30.193                          39.073                         47.953                         
 

230 31.704                          41.028                         50.351                         
 

231 33.289                          43.079                         52.868                         
 

232 34.954                          45.232                         55.512                         
 

233 36.701                          47.494                         58.287                         
 

234 38.537                          49.869                         61.200                         
 

235 40.463                          52.363                         64.262                         
 

236 42.484                          54.978                         67.473                         
 

237 44.610                          57.729                         70.848                         
 

238 46.841                          60.616                         74.392                         
 

239 49.181                          63.646                         78.110                         
 

240 51.642                          66.829                         82.015                         
 

241 54.223                          70.170                         86.117                         
 

242 56.934                          73.678                         90.422                         
 

243 59.782                          77.363                         94.944                         
 

244 62.771                          81.231                         99.691                         
 

245 65.909                          85.292                         104.674                       
 

246 69.205                          89.558                         109.910                       
 

247 72.665                          94.035                         115.404                       
 

248 76.297                          98.736                         121.174                       
 

249 80.113                          103.673                       127.233                       
 

250 84.118                          108.856                       133.594                       

Pay Plan reflects hourly rate



St
e
p
s

A
n
n
u
al
 

C
ad

e
t

 P
N
C
SP

A
n
n
u
al
 

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
 

P
N
C
E1

 (
A
 &
 B
)

A
n
n
u
al

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
I 

P
N
C
E2

A
n
n
u
al

P
at
ro
l O

ff
ic
e
r 

P
C
S1

A
n
n
u
al
 

D
e
te
ct
iv
e
 /
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
l 

P
C
S2

A
n
n
u
al

Se
rg
e
an

t 

P
C
S3

A
n
n
u
al

Li
e
u
te
n
an

t 

P
C
S4

A
n
n
u
al
   
   
   

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f/

C
ap

ta
in

P
C
S5

A
n
n
u
al

A
ss
t.
 C
h
ie
f 

P
C
S6

A
5
2
,1
2
6
.8
8

$
   
   

6
0
,0
0
1
.7
6

   
   
  

6
2
,9
7
2
.0
0

   
   
  

6
2
,9
7
2
.0
0

   
   
  

8
2
,3
4
5
.1
2

   
   
  

9
0
,2
6
7
.8
4

   
   
  

1
0
0
,0
6
4
.6
4

   
   

1
1
2
,0
0
5
.9
2

   
   
 

1
2
5
,9
9
1
.8
4

   
   
 

B
6
6
,1
2
1
.1
2

   
   
  

8
3
,5
8
0
.6
4

   
   
  

9
2
,7
4
9
.2
8

   
   
  

1
0
2
,8
1
6
.4
8

   
   

1
1
6
,4
8
6
.2
4

   
   
 

1
3
2
,4
8
1
.4
4

   
   
 

C
6
9
,4
2
6
.2
4

   
   
  

9
5
,2
9
9
.3
6

   
   
  

1
0
6
,6
7
2
.8
0

   
   

1
2
1
,1
4
5
.4
4

   
   
 

1
4
3
,9
9
4
.2
4

   
   
 

D
7
3
,5
9
2
.4
8

   
   
  

E 
7
6
,5
3
5
.6
8

   
   
  

F
8
1
,1
2
8
.3
2

   
   
  

St
e
p
s

H
o
u
rl
y 

C
ad

e
t

 P
N
C
SP

H
o
u
rl
y

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
 

P
N
C
E1

H
o
u
rl
y

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
I 

P
N
C
E2

H
o
u
rl
y

P
at
ro
l O

ff
ic
e
r 

P
C
S1

H
o
u
rl
y

D
e
te
ct
iv
e
 /
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
l 

P
C
S2

H
o
u
rl
y

Se
rg
e
an

t 

P
C
S3

H
o
u
rl
y

Li
e
u
te
n
an

t 

P
C
S4

H
o
u
rl
y 
   
   
  

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f/

C
ap

ta
in

P
C
S5

H
o
u
rl
y

A
ss
t.
 C
h
ie
f 

P
C
S6

A
2
5
.0
6
1

   
   
   
   
  

2
8
.8
4
7

   
   
   
   
  

3
0
.2
7
5

   
   
   
   
  

3
0
.2
7
5

   
   
   
   
  

3
9
.5
8
9

   
   
   
   
  

4
3
.3
9
8

   
   
   
   
  

4
8
.1
0
8

   
   
   
   
  

5
3
.8
4
9

   
   
   
   
   

6
0
.5
7
3

   
   
   
   
   

B
3
1
.7
8
9

   
   
   
   
  

4
0
.1
8
3

   
   
   
   
  

4
4
.5
9
1

   
   
   
   
  

4
9
.4
3
1

   
   
   
   
  

5
6
.0
0
3

   
   
   
   
   

6
3
.6
9
3

   
   
   
   
   

C
3
3
.3
7
8

   
   
   
   
  

4
5
.8
1
7

   
   
   
   
  

5
1
.2
8
5

   
   
   
   
  

5
8
.2
4
3

   
   
   
   
   

6
9
.2
2
8

   
   
   
   
   

D
3
5
.3
8
1

   
   
   
   
  

E 
3
6
.7
9
6

   
   
   
   
  

F
3
9
.0
0
4

   
   
   
   
  

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 P
o
lic
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n

P
N
C
SP
 is
 a
 n
o
n
‐c
la
ss
if
ie
d
, 
n
o
n
‐c
iv
il 
se
rv
ic
e
, c
iv
ili
an

 g
ra
d
e
 f
o
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 s
ee

ki
n
g 
to
 e
n
te
r 
a 
fu
tu
re
 a
ca
d
e
m
y 
cl
as
s 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
ec
o
m
e 
cl
as
si
fi
ed

 p
o
lic
e 

o
ff
ic
er
s.
  P

N
C
E1

‐A
 is
 a
 n
o
n
‐c
la
ss
if
ie
d
, n

o
n
‐c
iv
il 
se
rv
ic
e,
 c
iv
ili
an

 g
ra
d
e 
fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
an

 a
ca
d
e
m
y 
cl
as
s 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
co
m
e
 c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
lic
e
 

o
ff
ic
er
s.

A
ll 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 o
f 
th
e 
p
o
lic
e 
d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
w
h
o
 s
ee

k 
to
 b
ec
o
m
e 
cl
as
si
fi
ed

 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
s 
st
ar
t 
at
 e
it
h
er
 P
N
C
SP
 o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
, u

n
le
ss
 t
h
e
y 
st
ar
t 

em
p
lo
ym

en
t 
al
re
ad

y 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 a
s 
p
e
ac
e
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 b
y 
TC

O
LE
, i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
as
e
 t
h
e
y 
m
ay
 s
ta
rt
 a
t 
e
it
h
e
r 
P
N
C
SP
 o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
.  
Em

p
lo
ye
e
s 
st
ar
ti
n
g 
at
 e
it
h
e
r 
P
N
C
SP
 

o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
N
C
E1

‐B
 w
h
en

 t
h
ey
 b
ec
o
m
e 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 a
s 
p
ea
ce
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 b
y 
TC

O
LE
. 

C
la
ss
if
ie
d
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 a
cc
ru
al
 o
f 
se
n
io
ri
ty
 p
o
in
ts
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
eg
in
 u
n
ti
l a
n
 e
m
p
lo
ye
e
 r
e
ac
h
e
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
.
Fu

ll 
ci
vi
l s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
cc
ru
al
 o
f 
lo
n
ge
vi
ty
 

p
ay
 b
eg
in
s 
w
h
en

 a
n
 e
m
p
lo
ye
e 
re
ac
h
es
 P
C
S1
.
N
o
t 
e
ve
ry
 c
h
an

ge
 in
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
 r
e
p
re
se
n
ts
 a
 c
h
an

ge
 in
 s
al
ar
y.

Fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y 
w
it
h
o
u
t
TC

O
LE
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
, 
a 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
1
8
 m

o
n
th
s,
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
fu
ll 
ci
vi
l s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
, 

b
e
gi
n
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
st
 d
ay
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
w
it
h
 d
e
p
ar
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 b
e
gi
n
n
in
g 
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
.  
Th

es
e
 e
m
p
lo
ye
es
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
N
C
E2

 a
ft
er
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 

co
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
N
C
E1

‐A
 a
n
d
 B
; p

ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 a
ft
er
 6
 m

o
n
th
s 
ad

d
it
io
n
al
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
P
N
C
E2

; r
e
m
ai
n
 

in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 f
o
r 
6
 m

o
n
th
s;
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 t
o
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 B
 a
ft
e
r 
6
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
; a
n
d
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 P
C
S1

st
ep

s 
C
‐F
 a
ft
er
 2
 y
ea
rs
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e
 in
 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
, a
tt
ai
n
in
g 
P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 F
 1
0
 y
e
ar
s 
af
te
r 
e
n
te
ri
n
g 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y.
  

Fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y 
w
it
h
TC

O
LE
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
, 
a 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s,
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
fu
ll 
ci
vi
l s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
, 

b
e
gi
n
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
st
 d
ay
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
p
ar
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 b
eg
in
n
in
g 
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
. T

h
es
e 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 b
yp
as
s 
P
N
C
E2

 a
n
d
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 d
ir
e
ct
ly
 t
o
 

P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 a
ft
e
r 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 
co
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e;
 r
e
m
ai
n
 in

 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 f
o
r 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s;
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 t
o
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 B
 a
ft
er
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
; a
n
d
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
s 
C
‐F
 a
ft
e
r 
2
 y
e
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 in
 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
, a
tt
ai
n
in
g 
P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 F
 1
0
ye
ar
s 
af
te
r 
e
n
te
ri
n
g 
th
e
 

ac
ad

e
m
y.
  

If
 t
h
e 
an

n
iv
e
rs
ar
y 
d
at
e
 in

 a
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
 o
cc
u
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
la
st
 h
al
f 
o
f 
th
e 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
, t
h
e 
in
cr
ea
se
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
ec
o
m
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
u
n
ti
l t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 

n
ex
t 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
. P

ro
gr
es
si
o
n
 in
 e
ac
h
 c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 (
P
N
C
E1

‐B
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
ve
) 
is
 b
as
ed

 o
n
 t
im

e 
in
 t
h
at
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
. 
Ti
m
e 
sp
e
n
t
in
 "
m
o
ve
‐u
p
" 
d
o
es
 n
o
t 

co
u
n
t 
to
w
ar
d
 t
im

e 
in
 t
h
e 
“m

o
ve
 u
p
” 
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
. 
Se
n
io
ri
ty
 is
 b
as
e
d
 o
n
 a
ll 
ye
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
s 
a 
sw

o
rn
/c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
lic
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
(P
N
C
E1

‐B
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
ve
) 
o
r 

fi
re
fi
gh

te
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
ck
, n

o
t 
m
er
e
ly
 t
h
e 
la
st
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
. D

is
ci
p
lin
ar
y 
su
sp
en

si
o
n
s 
d
o
 n
o
t 
co
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 b
re
ak
 in

 s
er
vi
ce
. 

Se
n
io
ri
ty
 c
re
d
it
 s
h
al
l b

e
 f
ig
u
re
d
 t
o
 f
iv
e
 d
e
ci
m
al
 p
la
ce
s.
 In

 t
h
e 
ev
en

t 
o
f 
a 
co
n
fl
ic
t 
b
et
w
ee

n
 t
h
is
 o
rd
in
an

ce
 a
n
d
 s
ta
te
 la
w
, s
ta
te

la
w
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.

B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
=H

o
u
rl
y 
* 
8
0
.  
A
n
n
u
al
 r
at
e
=B

iw
ee

kl
y 
* 
2
6
.  
M
o
n
th
ly
 r
at
e=

A
n
n
u
al
 /
 1
2
.



G
ra
de

T
itl
e

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

FC
S7

Fi
re

 D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
H

 
62

.6
06

63
.4

27
64

.2
48

65
.0

69
65

.8
90

66
.7

10
67

.5
32

B
5,

00
8.

48
   

   
5,

07
4.

16
   

   
5,

13
9.

84
   

   
5,

20
5.

52
   

   
5,

27
1.

20
   

   
5,

33
6.

80
   

   
5,

40
2.

56
   

   
A

13
0,

22
0.

48
  

13
1,

92
8.

16
  

13
3,

63
5.

84
  

13
5,

34
3.

52
  

13
7,

05
1.

20
  

13
8,

75
6.

80
  

14
0,

46
6.

56
  

FC
S6

Fi
re

 D
iv

isi
on

 C
hi

ef
H

 
58

.7
62

   
   

   
58

.9
99

   
   

   
59

.2
34

   
   

   
59

.4
71

   
   

   
59

.7
06

   
   

   
59

.9
43

   
   

   
60

.1
80

   
   

   
60

.4
18

   
   

   
60

.6
52

   
   

   
B

4,
70

0.
96

   
   

4,
71

9.
92

   
   

4,
73

8.
72

   
   

4,
75

7.
68

   
   

4,
77

6.
48

   
   

4,
79

5.
44

   
   

4,
81

4.
40

   
   

4,
83

3.
44

   
   

4,
85

2.
16

   
   

A
12

2,
22

4.
96

  
12

2,
71

7.
92

  
12

3,
20

6.
72

  
12

3,
69

9.
68

  
12

4,
18

8.
48

  
12

4,
68

1.
44

  
12

5,
17

4.
40

  
12

5,
66

9.
44

  
12

6,
15

6.
16

  
FC

S5
Fi

re
 B

at
ta

lio
n 

C
hi

ef
H

 
52

.7
91

53
.2

06
53

.6
19

54
.0

33
54

.4
46

54
.8

60
55

.2
72

55
.6

88
56

.1
01

56
.5

14
56

.9
28

B
4,

22
3.

28
   

   
4,

25
6.

48
   

   
4,

28
9.

52
   

   
4,

32
2.

64
   

   
4,

35
5.

68
   

   
4,

38
8.

80
   

   
4,

42
1.

76
   

   
4,

45
5.

04
   

   
4,

48
8.

08
   

   
4,

52
1.

12
   

   
4,

55
4.

24
   

   
A

10
9,

80
5.

28
  

11
0,

66
8.

48
  

11
1,

52
7.

52
  

11
2,

38
8.

64
  

11
3,

24
7.

68
  

11
4,

10
8.

80
  

11
4,

96
5.

76
  

11
5,

83
1.

04
  

11
6,

69
0.

08
  

11
7,

54
9.

12
  

11
8,

41
0.

24
  

FC
S4

Fi
re

 C
ap

ta
in

H
 

45
.9

13
46

.2
56

46
.5

99
46

.9
42

47
.2

84
47

.6
27

47
.9

70
48

.3
15

48
.6

57
49

.0
00

49
.3

42
49

.6
86

50
.0

29
B

3,
67

3.
04

3,
70

0.
48

3,
72

7.
92

3,
75

5.
36

3,
78

2.
72

3,
81

0.
16

3,
83

7.
60

3,
86

5.
20

3,
89

2.
56

3,
92

0.
00

3,
94

7.
36

3,
97

4.
88

4,
00

2.
32

A
95

,4
99

.0
4

96
,2

12
.4

8
96

,9
25

.9
2

97
,6

39
.3

6
98

,3
50

.7
2

99
,0

64
.1

6
99

,7
77

.6
0

10
0,

49
5.

20
10

1,
20

6.
56

10
1,

92
0.

00
10

2,
63

1.
36

10
3,

34
6.

88
10

4,
06

0.
32

FC
S3

Fi
re

 L
ie

ut
en

an
t H

 
41

.0
58

41
.2

81
41

.5
03

41
.7

28
41

.9
50

42
.1

72
42

.3
95

42
.6

20
42

.8
44

43
.0

67
43

.2
90

43
.5

13
43

.7
37

43
.9

59
44

.1
84

B
3,

28
4.

64
3,

30
2.

48
3,

32
0.

24
3,

33
8.

24
3,

35
6.

00
3,

37
3.

76
3,

39
1.

60
3,

40
9.

60
3,

42
7.

52
3,

44
5.

36
3,

46
3.

20
3,

48
1.

04
3,

49
8.

96
3,

51
6.

72
3,

53
4.

72
A

85
,4

00
.6

4
85

,8
64

.4
8

86
,3

26
.2

4
86

,7
94

.2
4

87
,2

56
.0

0
87

,7
17

.7
6

88
,1

81
.6

0
88

,6
49

.6
0

89
,1

15
.5

2
89

,5
79

.3
6

90
,0

43
.2

0
90

,5
07

.0
4

90
,9

72
.9

6
91

,4
34

.7
2

91
,9

02
.7

2
FC

S2
Fi

re
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t O
pe

r.
H

 
37

.9
01

38
.0

76
38

.2
50

38
.4

25
38

.6
00

38
.7

74
38

.9
51

39
.1

25
39

.3
00

39
.4

74
39

.6
48

39
.8

23
39

.9
98

40
.1

73
40

.3
48

40
.5

22
40

.6
99

B
3,

03
2.

08
3,

04
6.

08
3,

06
0.

00
3,

07
4.

00
3,

08
8.

00
3,

10
1.

92
3,

11
6.

08
3,

13
0.

00
3,

14
4.

00
3,

15
7.

92
3,

17
1.

84
3,

18
5.

84
3,

19
9.

84
3,

21
3.

84
3,

22
7.

84
3,

24
1.

76
3,

25
5.

92
A

78
,8

34
.0

8
79

,1
98

.0
8

79
,5

60
.0

0
79

,9
24

.0
0

80
,2

88
.0

0
80

,6
49

.9
2

81
,0

18
.0

8
81

,3
80

.0
0

81
,7

44
.0

0
82

,1
05

.9
2

82
,4

67
.8

4
82

,8
31

.8
4

83
,1

95
.8

4
83

,5
59

.8
4

83
,9

23
.8

4
84

,2
85

.7
6

84
,6

53
.9

2
FC

S1
Fi

re
 F

ig
ht

er
H

 
28

.0
20

28
.4

89
28

.9
59

29
.4

30
29

.9
02

30
.3

72
30

.8
42

31
.3

13
31

.7
83

32
.2

53
32

.7
23

33
.1

96
33

.6
65

34
.1

37
34

.6
09

35
.0

77
35

.5
48

36
.0

19
36

.4
90

36
.9

60
B

2,
24

1.
60

2,
27

9.
12

2,
31

6.
72

2,
35

4.
40

2,
39

2.
16

2,
42

9.
76

2,
46

7.
36

2,
50

5.
04

2,
54

2.
64

2,
58

0.
24

2,
61

7.
84

2,
65

5.
68

2,
69

3.
20

2,
73

0.
96

2,
76

8.
72

2,
80

6.
16

2,
84

3.
84

2,
88

1.
52

2,
91

9.
20

2,
95

6.
80

A
58

,2
81

.6
0

59
,2

57
.1

2
60

,2
34

.7
2

61
,2

14
.4

0
62

,1
96

.1
6

63
,1

73
.7

6
64

,1
51

.3
6

65
,1

31
.0

4
66

,1
08

.6
4

67
,0

86
.2

4
68

,0
63

.8
4

69
,0

47
.6

8
70

,0
23

.2
0

71
,0

04
.9

6
71

,9
86

.7
2

72
,9

60
.1

6
73

,9
39

.8
4

74
,9

19
.5

2
75

,8
99

.2
0

76
,8

76
.8

0
FN

C
S1

Pr
ob

. F
ire

 F
ig

ht
er

H
 

26
.4

18
B

2,
11

3.
44

A
54

,9
49

.4
4

Pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

in
 e

ac
h 

pa
y 

gr
ad

e 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 se
ni

or
ity

 in
 th

at
 p

ay
 g

ra
de

.  
Se

ni
or

ity
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s t

he
 to

ta
l t

im
e 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

s a
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

 o
r

fir
e 

fig
ht

er
 fo

r t
he

 C
ity

 o
f L

ub
bo

ck
.  

Ti
m

e-
of

f f
or

 d
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 lo

ss
 o

f s
en

io
rit

y 
tim

e,
 n

or
 d

oe
s i

t c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 b
re

ak
 in

se
rv

ic
e.

  T
he

 ti
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 "m
ov

e-
up

" i
s a

lso
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

It 
do

es
 m

ea
n 

al
l y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

s a
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

 o
r f

ire
 fi

gh
te

r w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f L

ub
bo

ck
w

he
th

er
 in

te
rr

up
te

d,
 o

r u
ni

nt
er

ru
pt

ed
 a

nd
 n

ot
 m

er
el

y 
th

e 
la

st
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 p
er

io
d 

of
 se

rv
ic

e.
  S

en
io

rit
y 

cr
ed

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
fig

ur
ed

 to
 fi

ve
 d

ec
im

al
 p

la
ce

s.

Em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ho

 su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 c
om

pl
et

e 
on

e 
(1

) y
ea

r a
s P

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 F

ire
 F

ig
ht

er
 m

ov
e 

to
 g

ra
de

 F
C

S1
.  

Fi
re

 F
ig

ht
er

s t
he

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
st

ep
s i

n
FC

S1
 a

nn
ua

lly
.  

Pr
og

re
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

st
ep

s i
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r g
ra

de
s a

lso
 re

qu
ire

s o
ne

 y
ea

r i
n 

ea
ch

 st
ep

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, i

f t
he

 a
nn

iv
er

sa
ry

 d
at

e 
oc

cu
rs

 d
ur

in
g

th
e 

la
st

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 p

ay
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

oe
s n

ot
 b

ec
om

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

un
til

 th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ay

 p
er

io
d.

H
ou

rly
 ra

te
=a

nn
ua

l /
 2

,0
80

.  
B

iw
ee

kl
y 

ra
te

=H
ou

rly
 ra

te
 *

 8
0.

  A
ll 

co
nv

er
sio

ns
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e.

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 F
ir
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n
 (
4
0
 H
o
u
r 
Sh

if
ts
)



G
ra
d
e

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

FC
S5

H
3
7
.7
0
8

3
8
.0
0
4

3
8
.3
0
0

3
8
.5
9
5

3
8
.8
9
0

3
9
.1
8
7

3
9
.4
8
0

3
9
.7
7
7

4
0
.0
7
3

4
0
.3
6
7

4
0
.6
6
3

B
3
,9
9
7
.0
5

4
,0
2
8
.4
2

4
,0
5
9
.8
0

4
,0
9
1
.0
7

4
,1
2
2
.3
4

4
,1
5
3
.8
2

4
,1
8
4
.8
8

4
,2
1
6
.3
6

4
,2
4
7
.7
4

4
,2
7
8
.9
0

4
,3
1
0
.2
8

A
1
0
3
,9
2
3
.2
5

1
0
4
,7
3
9
.0
2

1
0
5
,5
5
4
.8
0

1
0
6
,3
6
7
.8
2

1
0
7
,1
8
0
.8
4

1
0
7
,9
9
9
.3
7

1
0
8
,8
0
6
.8
8

1
0
9
,6
2
5
.4
1

1
1
0
,4
4
1
.1
9

1
1
1
,2
5
1
.4
5

1
1
2
,0
6
7
.2
3

FC
S4

H
3
2
.7
9
6

3
3
.0
4
0

3
3
.2
8
5

3
3
.5
3
0

3
3
.7
7
4

3
4
.0
2
0

3
4
.2
6
4

3
4
.5
1
1

3
4
.7
5
5

3
5
.0
0
1

3
5
.2
4
5

3
5
.4
9
0

3
5
.7
3
5

B
3
,4
7
6
.3
8

3
,5
0
2
.2
4

3
,5
2
8
.2
1

3
,5
5
4
.1
8

3
,5
8
0
.0
4

3
,6
0
6
.1
2

3
,6
3
1
.9
8

3
,6
5
8
.1
7

3
,6
8
4
.0
3

3
,7
1
0
.1
1

3
,7
3
5
.9
7

3
,7
6
1
.9
4

3
,7
8
7
.9
1

A
9
0
,3
8
5
.7
8

9
1
,0
5
8
.2
4

9
1
,7
3
3
.4
6

9
2
,4
0
8
.6
8

9
3
,0
8
1
.1
4

9
3
,7
5
9
.1
2

9
4
,4
3
1
.5
8

9
5
,1
1
2
.3
2

9
5
,7
8
4
.7
8

9
6
,4
6
2
.7
6

9
7
,1
3
5
.2
2

9
7
,8
1
0
.4
4

9
8
,4
8
5
.6
6

FC
S3

H
2
9
.3
2
7

2
9
.4
8
7

2
9
.6
4
5

2
9
.8
0
6

2
9
.9
6
4

3
0
.1
2
3

3
0
.2
8
2

3
0
.4
4
2

3
0
.6
0
4

3
0
.7
6
2

3
0
.9
2
2

3
1
.0
8
1

3
1
.2
4
1

3
1
.3
9
9

3
1
.5
6
0

B
3
,1
0
8
.6
6

3
,1
2
5
.6
2

3
,1
4
2
.3
7

3
,1
5
9
.4
4

3
,1
7
6
.1
8

3
,1
9
3
.0
4

3
,2
0
9
.8
9

3
,2
2
6
.8
5

3
,2
4
4
.0
2

3
,2
6
0
.7
7

3
,2
7
7
.7
3

3
,2
9
4
.5
9

3
,3
1
1
.5
5

3
,3
2
8
.2
9

3
,3
4
5
.3
6

A
8
0
,8
2
5
.2
1

8
1
,2
6
6
.1
7

8
1
,7
0
1
.6
2

8
2
,1
4
5
.3
4

8
2
,5
8
0
.7
8

8
3
,0
1
8
.9
9

8
3
,4
5
7
.1
9

8
3
,8
9
8
.1
5

8
4
,3
4
4
.6
2

8
4
,7
8
0
.0
7

8
5
,2
2
1
.0
3

8
5
,6
5
9
.2
4

8
6
,1
0
0
.2
0

8
6
,5
3
5
.6
4

8
6
,9
7
9
.3
6

FC
S2

H
2
7
.0
7
3

2
7
.1
9
7

2
7
.3
2
1

2
7
.4
4
7

2
7
.5
7
2

2
7
.6
9
6

2
7
.8
2
2

2
7
.9
4
6

2
8
.0
7
1

2
8
.1
9
6

2
8
.3
2
1

2
8
.4
4
6

2
8
.5
7
0

2
8
.6
9
5

2
8
.8
2
0

2
8
.9
4
5

2
9
.0
7
1

B
2
,8
6
9
.7
4

2
,8
8
2
.8
8

2
,8
9
6
.0
3

2
,9
0
9
.3
8

2
,9
2
2
.6
3

2
,9
3
5
.7
8

2
,9
4
9
.1
3

2
,9
6
2
.2
8

2
,9
7
5
.5
3

2
,9
8
8
.7
8

3
,0
0
2
.0
3

3
,0
1
5
.2
8

3
,0
2
8
.4
2

3
,0
4
1
.6
7

3
,0
5
4
.9
2

3
,0
6
8
.1
7

3
,0
8
1
.5
3

A
7
4
,6
1
3
.1
9

7
4
,9
5
4
.9
3

7
5
,2
9
6
.6
8

7
5
,6
4
3
.9
3

7
5
,9
8
8
.4
3

7
6
,3
3
0
.1
8

7
6
,6
7
7
.4
3

7
7
,0
1
9
.1
8

7
7
,3
6
3
.6
8

7
7
,7
0
8
.1
8

7
8
,0
5
2
.6
8

7
8
,3
9
7
.1
8

7
8
,7
3
8
.9
2

7
9
,0
8
3
.4
2

7
9
,4
2
7
.9
2

7
9
,7
7
2
.4
2

8
0
,1
1
9
.6
8

FC
S1

H
2
0
.0
1
4

2
0
.3
4
9

2
0
.6
8
5

2
1
.0
2
2

2
1
.3
5
8

2
1
.6
9
4

2
2
.0
3
0

2
2
.3
6
7

2
2
.7
0
2

2
3
.0
3
8

2
3
.3
7
4

2
3
.7
1
1

2
4
.0
4
6

2
4
.3
8
4

2
4
.7
2
0

2
5
.0
5
5

2
5
.3
9
1

2
5
.7
2
8

2
6
.0
6
4

2
6
.4
0
0

B
2
,1
2
1
.4
8

2
,1
5
6
.9
9

2
,1
9
2
.6
1

2
,2
2
8
.3
3

2
,2
6
3
.9
5

2
,2
9
9
.5
6

2
,3
3
5
.1
8

2
,3
7
0
.9
0

2
,4
0
6
.4
1

2
,4
4
2
.0
3

2
,4
7
7
.6
4

2
,5
1
3
.3
7

2
,5
4
8
.8
8

2
,5
8
4
.7
0

2
,6
2
0
.3
2

2
,6
5
5
.8
3

2
,6
9
1
.4
5

2
,7
2
7
.1
7

2
,7
6
2
.7
8

2
,7
9
8
.4
0

A
5
5
,1
5
8
.5
8

5
6
,0
8
1
.8
4

5
7
,0
0
7
.8
6

5
7
,9
3
6
.6
3

5
8
,8
6
2
.6
5

5
9
,7
8
8
.6
6

6
0
,7
1
4
.6
8

6
1
,6
4
3
.4
5

6
2
,5
6
6
.7
1

6
3
,4
9
2
.7
3

6
4
,4
1
8
.7
4

6
5
,3
4
7
.5
2

6
6
,2
7
0
.7
8

6
7
,2
0
2
.3
0

6
8
,1
2
8
.3
2

6
9
,0
5
1
.5
8

6
9
,9
7
7
.6
0

7
0
,9
0
6
.3
7

7
1
,8
3
2
.3
8

7
2
,7
5
8
.4
0

FN
C
S1

H
1
8
.8
7
0

B
2
,0
0
0
.2
2

A
5
2
,0
0
5
.7
2

P
ro
gr
es
si
o
n
 in

 e
ac
h
 p
ay
 g
ra
d
e 
is
 b
as
ed

 o
n
 s
en

io
ri
ty
 in

 t
h
at
 p
ay
 g
ra
d
e.
  S
en

io
ri
ty
 is
 d
ef
in
ed

 a
s 
th
e 
to
ta
l t
im

e 
o
f 
em

p
lo
ym

en
t 
as
 a
 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
 o

fi
re
 f
ig
h
te
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
ck
.  
Ti
m
e‐
o
ff
 f
o
r 
d
is
ci
p
lin

ar
y 
su
sp
en

si
o
n
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
co
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 lo

ss
 o
f 
se
n
io
ri
ty
 t
im

e,
 n
o
r 
d
o
es
 it
 c
o
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 b
re
ak
 i

se
rv
ic
e.
  T
h
e 
ti
m
e 
in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 "
m
o
ve
‐u
p
" 
is
 a
ls
o
 n
o
t 
in
cl
u
d
ed

.  
It
 d
o
es
 m

ea
n
 a
ll 
ye
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
as
 a
 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
 o
r 
fi
re
 f
ig
h
te
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
c

w
h
et
h
er
 in

te
rr
u
p
te
d
, o

r 
u
n
in
te
rr
u
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
m
er
el
y 
th
e 
la
st
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e.
  S
en

io
ri
ty
 c
re
d
it
 s
h
al
l b

e 
fi
gu

re
d
 t
o
 f
iv
e 
d
ec
im

al
 p
la
ce
s

Em
p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 s
u
cc
es
sf
u
lly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 o
n
e 
(1
) 
ye
ar
 a
s 
P
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
r 
m
o
ve
 t
o
 g
ra
d
e 
FC

S1
.  
Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
rs
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 s
te
p
s 
in

FC
S1
 a
n
n
u
al
ly
.  
P
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 t
h
e 
st
ep

s 
in
 t
h
e 
o
th
er
 g
ra
d
es
 a
ls
o
 r
eq

u
ir
es
 o
n
e 
ye
ar
 in

 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
.  
H
o
w
ev
er
, i
f 
th
e 
an

n
iv
er
sa
ry
 d
at
e 
o
cc
u
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g

th
e 
la
st
 h
al
f 
o
f 
th
e 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
, t
h
e 
in
cr
ea

se
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
ec
o
m
e 
e
ff
ec
ti
ve
 u
n
ti
l t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
n
ex
t 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d

K
el
ly
 s
h
if
t 
ra
te
 (
k)
=B

iw
ee

kl
y 
(4
0
 h
o
u
r)
/1
1
2
.  
B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
=H

o
u
rl
y*
1
0
6
.  
A
n
n
u
al
 r
at
e=

B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
*2

6
.  
A
ll 
co
n
ve
rs
io
n
s 
ar
e 
ap

p
ro
xi
m
at
e

Ti
tl
e

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 F
ir
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n
 (
K
el
ly
 S
h
if
ts
)

P
ro
b
. F
ir
e 
Fi
gh

te
r

Fi
re
 B
at
ta
lio

n
 C
h
ie
f

Fi
re
 C
ap

ta
in

Fi
re
 L
ie
u
te
n
an

t

Fi
re
 E
q
u
ip
m
en

t 
O
p
e
r

Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
r



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 2,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate funding from the FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant and Airport Capital Fund, to appropriate
additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92717, replace Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF)
Vehicle; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Accept and appropriate $37,933 from the Federal Transit Administration for the FY 2021 Section 5310
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant.  
II. Amend CIP 92717, replace ARFF Vehicle, and increase the appropriation and funding by $75,000,
from $800,000 to $875,000. The additional funding will come from CARES Act Grant.

Fiscal Impact
Included in item summary.

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City Manager in
purchasing, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property insurance coverage. The subject insurers
are listed in the attachment along with the terms and conditions, and said attachment is incorporated
hereto as if fully set forth herein.

Item Summary
The City purchases property insurance for its structures, contents, and equipment, excluding Lubbock
Power and Light, because they are covered under a separate policy. The coverages include, but are not
limited to: 

Special Form Property Policy, formerly known as All Risk, covers direct physical loss up to
$500,000,000. The estimated total value of all City structures, contents, and equipment is
$949,901,403. A total loss is considered unlikely; therefore, $500,000,000 in coverage is
recommended.
Flood and earthquake coverage is limited to $50,000,000 for moderate hazard zones and $5,000,000
for high hazard zones.
All property and contents, excluding mobile equipment and vehicles, are covered at replacement
cost.
Mobile equipment and vehicles parked at a covered location are covered at actual cash value.
Windstorm and hail deductible equals 3% of the total insured value of the affected property, per
occurrence.
Mobile equipment and vehicles valued at $100,000 or greater, will be covered at actual cash value,
for physical damage while in use, subject to a $2,500,000 limit annually, and a per occurrence
deductible of $250,000.

The City currently utilizes a layered coverage program, including Liberty Surplus Insurance Company,
Lloyd’s of London, Hallmark Specialty Insurance Company, Zurich Insurance Group, Everest Re Group,
Ltd., Arch Specialty Insurance Company, Markel Insurance Company, James River Insurance Company,
Scottsdale Insurance Company, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, RSUI Group, Inc., OneBeacon
Insurance Group, Arrowhead General Insurance Agency, Inc., and Great American Insurance Group. The
current premium is $1,757,577.50, reflecting a rate of $0.1981 per $100 of valuation.
 
The proposed coverage is also a layered program consisting of Lloyd’s of London, Fidelis Insurance
Company, Hallmark Specialty Insurance Company, Zurich Insurance Group, Everest Re Group, Ltd.,
Arch Specialty Insurance Company, Markel Insurance Company, StarStone/Core Specialty Insurance
Company, James River Insurance Company, Scottsdale Insurance Company, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurnce
Company, RSUI Group, OneBeacon Insurance Group, and Great American Insurance Group, for a
premium of $2,465,737.50; a rate of $0.2596 per $100 of valuation. Approving this insurance coverage on
a rate basis allows the City Manager the ability to add and remove properties, as necessary, to maintain an
accurate property valuation.
 
Staff recommends purchasing layered property insurance with Lloyd’s of London, Fidelis Insurance



Staff recommends purchasing layered property insurance with Lloyd’s of London, Fidelis Insurance
Company, Hallmark Specialty Insurance Company, Zurich Insurance Group, Everest Re Group, Ltd.,
Arch Specialty Insurance Company, Markel Insurance Company, StarStone/Core Specialty Insurance
Company, James River Insurance Company, Scottsdale Insurance Company, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance
Company, RSUI Group, OneBeacon Insurance Group, and Great American Insurance Group, at a rate of
$0.2596 per $100 of valuation.

Carriers bind insurance coverage October 1, 2021, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued once the insurance company receives from the City the contribution for the insurance
coverage. Current coverage documents are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the Adopted FY 2021-22 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
COL Property Resolution 
COL Property 





 

  

 
| 20 

 

 

Commercial Property 
 

Insurance Company: Lloyd’s of London, Fidelis Ins Company, Hallmark Specialty Ins 

Company, Zurich Ins Group, Everest Re Group, Ltd., Fidelis Ins 

Company, Arch Specialty Ins Company, Markel Ins Company, 

StarStone/Core Specialty Ins Company, James River Ins Company, 

Scottsdale Ins Company, Mitsui Sumitomo Ins Company, RSUI Group, 

OneBeacon Ins Group, and Great American Ins Group 

Policy Term: 10/01/2021 to 10/01/2022 

Coverage: Property insurance covers your interest against direct physical loss or 

damage by covered perils to named property that you own or are 

required to insure. See attached schedule for covered locations. 

Annual Premium: $2,465,737.50 Estimated as worst case scenario by lead insurer. 

 
Coverage:  All Risk 

 

Policy Form:  Agreed Expiring From subject to Mandatory Zurich amendments and  

   endorsements 

 

Perils:   Risks of direct physical loss or damage including Flood and including Earthquake  

   but excluding locations in California, Alaska, Hawaii or Puerto Rico and excluding  

   Boiler and Machinery Breakdown subject to the policy form and exclusions and  

   endorsements noted herein. 

 

Coverages:  Real Property, Personal Property, Extra Expense, and other sub-limits as noted  

   in the policy form. 

 

Territory:  United States of America, Puerto Rico and the United States Virgin Islands. 

 

Locations:  As per schedule of locations on file received by us on 5/15/2019 

   This quotation is based on the following values reported: 

 

Coinsurance:  Property: nil% 

   Time Element: nil% 

 

Valuation:  - Real and Personal Property Replacement Cost; 

   - Actual Loss Sustained on Time Element; 

   - Contractor’s Equipment, Vehicles and Trailers – 5 years or newer to be valued  

   on RCV basis, older than 5 years on an ACV basis 

 

Limit:    $500,000,000 

 

Total Insured Value: $949,901,403 

 



 

  

 
| 21 

 

100% Sublimits:   
 

$50,000,000   Per Occurrence and Annual Aggregate as respects Flood 

 except; 

$ 5,000,000   Per Occurrence and Annual Aggregate as respects Flood occurring within  

    Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA), areas of 100-Year Flooding, as defined  

    by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, including backup of  

    sewers and drains 

$50,000,000   Per Occurrence and Annual Aggregate as respects Earthquake (Excludes  

    California, Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, New Madrid Earthquake Zone  

    Counties, and Pacific Northwest Earthquake Zone Counties) 

$ 5,000,000   Accounts Receivable 

$ 100,000   Arson or Theft Reward 

$10,000,000   Automobile Physical Damage – owned or leased vehicles located at or  

    within 1000 feet of the covered location 

$ 2,500,000   Automobile Physical Damage – covered vehicles while over the road 

$ 5,000,000   Brands and Labels 

$ 2,500,000   Building Materials at off premises storage for property under  

    construction 

$ 750,000   Contractors Equipment – per item subject to max per occurrence sublimit  

    of $10,000,000 

$ 2,500,000  Debris Removal or 25% of direct physical damage to covered property, whichever is less 

$ 250,000  Deferred Payments 

Included  Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction: Demolition 

 Coverage A (For the loss in value of the undamaged portion of the building as a consequence of 

enforcement of an ordinance or law that requires demolition of undamaged parts of the same building) 

$ 10,000,000 Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction: Demolition 

 Coverage B (For the cost to demolish and clear the sire of undamaged parts of the same building, as a 

consequence of enforcement of an ordinance or law that requires demolition of such undamaged 

property) 

$ 10,000,000  Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction: Demolition 

 Coverage C (For the increased cost of repair or reconstruction of the damaged and undamaged property 

on the same or another site, limited to the cost that would have been incurred in order to comply with 

the minimum requirements of such law or ordinance regulating the repair of reconstruction of the 

damaged property of the same site. However, this Company shall not be liable for any increased cost of 

construction loss unless the damaged property is actually rebuilt or replaced) 

$ 5,000,000  Errors and Omissions 

$ 5,000,000  Expediting Expenses 

$ 5,000,000  Fairs and Exhibitions 

$ 1,000,000  Fine Arts ($100,000 per item limitation) 
 



 

  

 
| 22 

 

$ 500,000  Fire Brigade Charges & Extinguishing Expenses 

$ 1,000,000  Installation Coverage 

$ 1,000,000  Land & Water Clean-Up 

$ 100,000  Locks & Keys 

$ 5,000,000  Miscellaneous Unnamed locations 

$ 50,000,000  Newly Acquired Property 

$ 500,000  Outdoor Property 

Included  Pairs or Sets 

$ 1,000,000  Personal Property Not at a Covered Location 

$ 1,000,000  Preservation of Property 

$ 250,000  Professional Fees 

$ 5,000,000  Property in the Course of Construction. 

$ 100,000  Property Removed from a Covered Location 

$ 500,000  Salespersons Samples 

$ 5,000,000  Service Interruption 

$ 2,500,000  Spoilage 

$ 1,000,000  Transit 

$ 1,000,000  Upgrade to Green Construction. 25% of amount payable for direct physical loss  

   or damage, subject to maximum of $1,000,000. This includes any Time Element  

   loss attributed to Upgrade to Green. 

$ 5,000,000  Valuable Papers and Records 

 

Sublimits Applicable to Additional Time Element Coverages (part of and not in addition to the Policy 

Limit) 

$ 1,000,000  Attraction Property (30 days) 

$ 100,000  Contractual Penalties 

$ 100,000  Crisis Management (30 days) 

$ 25,000,000  Extra Expense 

$ 1,000,000  Ingress & Egress (30 days) 

$ 1,000,000  Interruption by Civil or Military Authority (30 days) 

$ 100,000  Logistics Extra Cost 

$ 1,000,000  Rental Value 

$ 100,000  Royalties 

$ 1,000,000  Service Interruption (Qualifying Period: 24 hrs) 

$ 1,000,000  Soft Costs 
 
 

  



 

  

 
| 23 

 

Deductibles:  $250,000 per occurrence except as follows: 

 

  With respect to Flood: 

  $250,000 per occurrence, except as follows: 

 

  $500,000 per Building, plus $500,000 Contents per Building, plus $100,000 Time  

  Element per Occurrence for locations that are wholly or partially within High  

  Hazard Flood Zones. 

 

  With respect to Earth Movement: 

  $250,000 per occurrence, except as follows: 

  No Coverage for locations in California, Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, New Madrid  

  Earthquake Zone Counties, and Pacific Northwest Earthquake Zone Counties. 

 

  With respect to Windstorm or Hail: 

3% per occurrence 

 

  With respect to Airport Buildings: 

  Bldg ID #154 – LIA Hanger Building #310 (Chaparral)– 5417 N. Walnut:  

  $50,000 per occurrence 

  Bldg ID #204 – LIA Hanger #32 (G&G Avionics)– 5902 N. Cedar:  

  $50,000 per occurrence 

  Bldg ID #292 – LIA Warehouse Building #710 (Nortec) – 2828 E. Dubuque:  

  $50,000 per occurrence 

  Bldg ID #294 – LIA Warehouse Building #714 (Marco)– 5612 N. David Avenue:  

  $50,000 per occurrence 

  Bldg ID #295 – LIA Warehouse Building #716 (Marco Steel) - 5618 N. David Ave.:  

  $50,000 per occurrence 

  

  With respect to Contractor’s Equipment: 

  $25,000 per occurrence (applies to equipment less than $250,000 in value) 

  $50,000 per occurrence (applies to equipment valued at $250,000 or greater) 

 

  With respects to Automobile Physical Damage –  Covered Vehicles Over the Road 

  $250,000 per occurrence 

 

  With respect to Time Element: 

  24 Hours 

 

  If two or more deductible amounts provided in this policy apply to a single occurrence,  

  the total to be deducted shall not exceed the largest deductible applicable unless  

  otherwise stated in the policy. 

  However, if: 

 1) The Time Element deductible and another deductible apply to a single Occurrence,  

      then the Company shall apply both deductibles to the Occurrence; and 

  2) Covered Loss or Damage by Flood arises out of a Named Storm, then the Company  

       shall apply the Flood deductible or the Named Storm deductible, whichever is greater 

  



 

  

 
| 24 

 

Conditions: Remove Liberalization 

   All Risk of Direct Physical Damage 

   Time Element – Must be due to “ physical loss or damage of the type insured  

   against” 

   Livestock, Animals – Animal Mortality excluded 

   Standing timber – excluded 

   Growing Crops excluded 

   Spacecraft/Satellites and Associated launch vehicles and any property contained  

   therein excluded 

   Watercraft or Aircraft excluded 

   Land & Water excluded 

   Transmission and Distribution lines situated beyond 5,000 ft excluded 

   Civil/Military Authority must have prohibited access wording 

   Service Interruption - Must include exclusion for Satellites; it is satisfactory to  

   have an exclusion of Satellites at part of property not covered with lead in  

   wording in the Service interruption clause that states; "This extension of  

   coverage applies only when such interruption of service is caused by direct  

   physical loss or damage insured by this POLICY to any property of the type  

   insured by this POLICY of the supplier of such services if such property is situated  

   within the Policy Territory." 

   Hostile Acts/War and Weapons Civil War 

 

   Subject to satisfactory review and acceptance of all terms conditions and  

   language in the manuscript policy form. 

 

   Satisfactory inspections at key locations and compliance with essential  

   recommendations. This applies to business that we write or share on a primary  

   basis. 

 

Minimum Earned Premium:   35% Minimum earned premium applies. 

 

Applicable Law; Court Jurisdiction 

The laws of the State of New York, without regard to any conflict of laws rules that would cause the 

application of the laws of any other jurisdiction, shall govern the construction, effect, and  

interpretation of this insurance agreement. 

 

  



 

  

 
| 25 

 

The parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of the State of New York, and to 

the extent permitted by law the parties expressly waive all rights to challenge or otherwise limit such 

jurisdiction. 

 

Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002, as amended 2015 (TRIPRA) - Notice of Premium Amount; Notice 

of Program Cap 

This quotation offers coverage for Insurer’s share of liability for loss caused by certified acts of terrorism 

as defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2015 (TRIPRA). 

 

Coverage provided for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism may be partially reimbursed by the 

United States government under a formula established by federal law. However, your policy may contain 

other exclusions which might affect coverage, such as an exclusion for nuclear events. 

 

Under the formula, the United States government generally reimburses a specified percentage of 

covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid by the insurance company 

providing the coverage.  The percentage of covered terrorism losses exceeding the deductible paid by the 

insurance company providing the coverage for which such insurance company will be reimbursed by the 

United States government is: 

•85% for losses occurring in 2015; 

•84% for losses occurring in 2016; 

•83% for losses occurring in 2017; 

•82% for losses occurring in 2018; 

•81% for losses occurring in 2019; 

•80% for losses occurring in 2020 

The premium charged for the coverage quoted herein does not include any charge for that portion of any 

terrorism loss to be paid by the United States government. 

 

TRIPRA contains a USD100 billion cap limiting United States government reimbursement as well as 

insurers’ liability for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism when the amount of such losses 

exceeds USD100 billion in any one calendar year. If the aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed 

USD100 billion, insured losses up to that amount are subject to pro rata allocation in accordance with 

procedures established by the Secretary of the Treasury. 

 

That part of the total premium amount quoted herein by Insurer that is attributed to coverage pursuant 

to TRIPRA is provided above in Premium section of this quotation. 

 

In the event that the Insured declines to purchase TRIPRA coverage, the policy will contain a Terrorism 

Exclusion. 

 

Cancellation:  90 days except 10 days for nonpayment of premium  

 

  



 

  

 
| 26 

 

SUBJECTIVITIES: 

 

- Confirmation if accepting/rejecting TRIA 

 

There are subjectivities that: 1) must be complied with or resolved before the contract becomes binding, 

2) apply both before or after inception, compliance with which is a condition of all or part of the 

coverage; and 3) apply after the formation of the contract as conditions of continued coverage. 

 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS / OTHER COVERAGES: 

 

NO FLAT CANCELLATIONS 

ALL FEES ARE FULLY EARNED AT INCEPTION  

 

Please note that this is a quote only, and the Insurer reserves the right to amend or withdraw the quote if 

new, corrected or updated information creating a material difference from the previously provided 

underwriting material is received. This quote summary, the fees quoted and our advice, is confidential. If 

you need further information about the quote, our fee or the Insurer that is proposing to provide your 

insurance, please contact us. 

 

We will need a written request in order to bind coverage. If the Insurer binds the risk following your 

written request, the terms of the policy currently in use by the Insurer will govern the Insurer's quote.    

 

TAXES & FEES: 

 

IMPORTANT NOTE:  The Home State of the Named Insured shall be determined in accordance with the 

provisions of the Nonadmitted and Reinsurance Act of 2010, 15. U.S.C §8201, etc. (“NRRA”), and the 

applicable law of the Home State governing cancellation or non-renewal of insurance shall apply to this 

Policy. 

 

Taxes are provisional based on the insureds acceptance of TX as their home state. 

 

Surplus lines taxes quoted may be subject to change based up on updated risk information or changes to 

tax rates or governmental fees. 

 

State surcharges and/or fees charged by the Insurer may not be included herein and will be billed at a 

later date. 



 

  

 
| 27 

 

GENERAL TERMS 

In all cases, policy and carrier wordings take precedence. 

 

DEPOSIT PREMIUM 

The deposit premium is the minimum portion of premium due to the carrier at the inception of the 

policy.  The premium for the policy term will be adjusted according to the provisions stated in the policy. 

 

MINIMUM PREMIUM 

The minimum premium is the LEAST amount of premium retained by the carrier if the policy is in effect 

for the full term. 

 

MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM 

The minimum earned premium is the LEAST amount of premium that will be retained by the carrier in the 

event of cancellation. The actual amount of earned premium retained will be the GREATER of the actual 

premium developed based on the time the policy was in effect OR the minimum earned premium as 

stated in the policy. 

 

MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM: 35% Minimum earned premium applies. 

 

 

 

Key Endorsements, Limitations, Warranties and Exclusions include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 

Building Vacancy Provision - Coverage may be restricted or excluded for any Building found to be 

vacant for a minimum of 30 consecutive days or longer subject to all other policy terms and 

conditions.   If any of your covered buildings meet this description at any time during the policy 

period, please contact us so we can assist you in maintaining appropriate coverage.   

Protective Safeguard Endorsement - Failure to maintain the protective safeguards in good working 

order or failure to notify the insurer of even a temporary impairment in protection suspends coverage 

until the protection is restored. 

 

 

Excluded coverage or other coverages sought may be available:  please discuss with USI 

 

Other exclusions and policy limitations may apply.  Please refer to the actual policies for specific terms, 

conditions, limitations, exclusions and sublimits that will govern in the event of a loss. 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City Manager in
purchasing, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security Privacy Insurance coverage.The
subject insurer is listed in the attachment along with the terms and conditions, and said attachment is
incorporated hereto as if fully set forth herein.

Item Summary
In addition to the City’s internal methods of data breach prevention, Network Security and Privacy
Insurance coverage would further protect the City from information privacy and network security
breaches, by providing coverage for Privacy Liability, Network Security, and Media Liability and
Regulatory action.
 
The City’s current coverage is written by Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London, with a policy
premium of $67,290 for a $5,000,000 limit with a self-insurance retention of $15,000. The proposed
renewal, written by Cowbell Cyber, has a premium of $99,135.11 which reflects a 47.33% increase over
FY 2020-21 for $1,000 000 in coverage and a $100,000 deductible.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage October 1, 2021, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in
Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the Adopted FY 2021-22 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Cyber Resolution 
Cyber Liability 























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing an easement,
located at 4601 23rd Street, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 10-foot easement, located in Lot
22-A, Tanglewood Addition, Lubbock County, Texas. The easement was dedicated by re-plat and is no
longer needed.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
Exhibit A - Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
Plat- Lot 22-A Tanglewood Addition 







28A

23A

25A

22A

17A

19A

18A

24A

27A

26A

2
3

4

1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of a 10' Easement,
Located in Lot 22A, Tanglewood Addition

0 100 20050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

TO
LE

D
O

 A
V

E

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y    

US 8
2/6

2

23RD ST

TO
LE

D
O

 A
V

E

TANGLEW
OOD

SALEM
 AVE

Proposed 10' Easement to be Closed
V. 797 P.324

23RD ST

BROWNFIE
LD

 DR
TO

PE
K

A
 A

V
E

US 6
2/8

2

27TH ST





   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept on behalf of the City
of Lubbock, four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 30 and 31, Block AK, Lubbock
County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway Expansion Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of Upland Avenue from 66th Street to 114th Street, the following street dedications
will allow for the construction of the proposed arterial. The parcels of land are located in Sections 30 and
31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas. The total consideration of $57,217, as valued in Appraisal
Reports, is subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.
  

Parcel Owner Acres Cost
Parcel 72 James Crump, Jr. 0.034 $14,450
Parcel 73 Northstar Development, Inc. 0.007 $  3,750
Parcel 111 Forrest Sky Capital, Ltd. 0.068 $25,918
Parcel 112 Forrest Sky Capital, Ltd. 0.034 $13,099
      TOTALS    0.143 $57,217

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the easement acquisition is $57,217 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92510,
Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds- Section 30 and 31 Block AK 
Parcel 72 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 31 BlK AK 
Parcel 73 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 31 BlK AK 
Parcel 111 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 30 BlK AK 
Parcel 112 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 30 BlK AK 
CIP- Detail 
Budget Detail 
Location Map 





























Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This roadway is designated in the 2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan to become a modified principal arterial. This roadway is currently 

two lane strip paved. Development and growth in this area has resulted in this roadway exceeding the current capacity of the two lane 

structure. The first year of this project will fund the Environmental Study and Engineering Schematics for the Upland Avenue Corridor 

between 66th Street and 114th Street. The proposed second year will fund the Right-of-Way acquisition ahead of the improvements 

between 66th Street and 82nd Street. The proposed third year will fund the Engineering Design and Construction of a 5-lane roadway 

section that will include pedestrian elements, drainage, street lighting, and ADA compliance between 66th Street and 82nd Street. 

Bid Date - Design:7/4/2018

Award Date for Bid - Design:8/23/2018

Project Start Date - Design: 8/23/2018

Project End Date - Design:4/24/2023

Bid Date - Construction:10/2022

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 1/2023

Project Start Date - Construction: 3/2023

Project End Date - Construction: 3/2024

Project Justification

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of the Citizens of Lubbock. The City must continue to 

anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing population in order to provide a safe and efficient transportation system. Due to 

continued development in the area of Upland Avenue, this roadway has become congested and the road structure is requiring constant 

maintenance in order to safely serve the traveling public. The current construction of the Marsha Sharp Freeway and Upland Avenue 

intersection by the Texas Department of Transportation will only increase the need for these proposed improvements.

This project has MPO participation.

Project History

$2,470,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$448,687 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$3.6 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$841,624 was appropriated in FY 2019-20 Budget Amendment No. 2, Ord. No. 2019-O0146, October 22,2019.

Reduced appropriation by $1,000,000 in FY 2019-20, Budget Amendment No. 22, Ord. No. 2020-O0059, May 12, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

 Land Acquisition  448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

Construction  3,441,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,441,624 

Design and Engineering  1,700,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,700,000 

Right of Way Acquisition  770,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  770,000 

Total Project Appropriation  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2010 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

FY 2018 Gateway Streets CO's  2,470,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,470,000 

FY 2020 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 2,600,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,600,000 

FY 2022 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

TxDOT Participation  841,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  841,624 

Total Funding Sources  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff Time 29,829$                      

Kimley Horn Contract No. 14034 1,180,000                   

Kimley Horn Amendment #1 1,373,400                   

TxDOT Construction Advandce Funding Agreement 948,931                      

TxDOT Design Advanced Funding Agreement 3,760                          

ROW Acqusition Parcels 69, 69A, 97, 98, 106 56,318                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 70, 71, 108 59,040                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 66 21,600                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 76, 114, 120 20,712                        

Agenda Item October 12, 2021

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 72 14,450                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 73 3,750                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 111 25,918                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 112 13,099                        

Encumbered/Expended to Date 3,750,807                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

ROW Acquisition 585,113                      

Construction 2,024,391                   

Remaining Appropriation 2,609,504                   

Total Appropriation 6,360,311$                 

Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street

October 12, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92510



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,
this product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds Along Upland Ave
for Parcels 72 and 73 on Unsubdivided Land in Section 31, Block AK

and Parcels 111 and 112 on Unsubdivided Land in Section 30, Block AK

TR A
15'

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

PARCEL 112

PARCEL 72

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

PARCEL 73

±

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

Parcel 72
0.034 ac

Parcel 112
0.034 ac

Parcel 73
0.007 ac

US 62/82

15'

15'

AK
-30

AK
-31

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y US 62/82

PARCEL 111

Parcel 111
0.068 ac



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Contract 15317, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for additional engineering services for the design of
114th Street from Indiana Avenue to Quaker Avenue.

Item Summary
On May 26, 2020, the City Council awarded Professional Services Agreement 15317 to Freese and
Nichols, Inc., for providing engineering services for the 114th Street widening project from Indiana
Avenue to Quaker Avenue.
 
Amendment No. 1 to this contract will amend the scope work to include easement acquisition services
where permanent slope easements are required. Additionally, services will be provided for coordination
and development of a rain garden to improve storm water runoff quality at 114th Street and Memphis
Avenue.
 
Contract negotiations were conducted with Freese and Nichols, Inc., and fair and reasonable hourly rates
were determined for a total amount of not to exceed $48,172 to perform the additional services.

Fiscal Impact
This contract amendment is in the amount of $48,172 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project
92670, 114th Street, Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue Design.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 
Original Contract 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 









 

   

 A-1  

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR: 

114th STREET, INDIANA AVENUE TO QUAKER AVENUE 

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

AMENDMENT #1 TO CONTRACT 15317 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

As design developed, two tasks emerged outside that original contract scope.  Easement acquisition was 

not originally foreseen by the City or by FNI, but will now be required in order to complete the design and 

construction.  Easement acquisition services are proposed for the two parcels where permanent slope 

easements are required.  Additionally, after the original scope was developed, the City identified this 

corridor, specifically near Memphis Avenue as an area the City wanted to pilot green infrastructure.   Rain 

Garden design services are proposed for the coordination and development of a rain garden to improve 

storm water runoff water quality and will be incorporated into the overall project deliverables moving 

forward. 

 

WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

 

SPECIAL SERVICES 

Task 10. Easement Acquisition  

Task 11. Rain Garden 

 

SPECIAL SERVICES:  FNI shall render the following professional services in connection with the development 

of the Project: 

 

Task 10. Easement Acquisition 

 

A. Manage and coordinate with subconsultants 

B. Provide land acquisition services including  

i. Vacant land easement acquisition 

ii. Appraisal and Appraisal review services 

iii. Title and Negotiation Services including 

(a) Title ownership research 

(b) Delivery of Initial Offer 

(c) Negotiation with landowner 

(d) Overseeing counteroffers 

(e) Deliver Final Offer 

(f) Recording of Easement 

(g) Submission of condemnation documents to initiate eminent domain. 

 

 Exclusion: Condemnation services beyond those listed above will be considered additional services. 

 

Task 11. Rain Garden 

 

A. Coordinate with Texas Tech University  

i. Weekly calls 

ii. Identify site location and configuration 

iii. Select and specify soil media and plant materials 

 



 

   

 A-2  

 

B. Conceptual Layout 

i. Identify rain garden site location 

ii. Coordinate within project constraints: roadway, drainage, grading, illumination. 

iii. Develop a preferred site, size, and understanding of how proposed rain garden can be 

incorporated into the project. 

 

 

C. Final Design 

i. Prepare plans, details, and notes for rain garden construction drawings and incorporate 

into overall project construction drawings. 

ii. Identify pay items within the TxDOT framework to account for rain garden components. 

iii. Develop cost opinion for rain garden and incorporate into overall cost opinion. 

 

 

Deliverables: 

 

• 90% plan submittal to include draft rain garden construction plans within project deliverable. 

• 100% plan submittal to include final rain garden construction plans within project deliverable. 

  



 

   

 A-3  

 

EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

114th STREET, INDIANA AVENUE TO QUAKER AVENUE 

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

AMENDMENT #1 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Any services performed by FNI that are not included in the Basic Services or Special 

Services described above are Additional Services. Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized 

by Client, are described as follows: 

 

1. Condemnation Services 

 

TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this 

Agreement and agrees to complete the services within the existing project schedule.  

 

If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 

consistent with the number of days of delay.  These delays may include but are not limited to delays in Client 

or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc.  

These delays may result in an adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in 

Attachment CO.  

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLIENT:  Client shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the 

services of FNI: 

 

A. Designate in writing a person to act as Client’s representative with respect to the services to be 

rendered under this Agreement.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions, 

receive information, interpret and define Client’s policies and decisions with respect to FNI’s services 

for the Project. 

 

B. Provide all criteria and full information as to Client’s requirements for the Project, including design 

objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and 

expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction 

standards which Client will require to be included in the drawings and specifications. 

 

C. Assist FNI by placing at FNI’s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including 

previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project. 

 

D. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as 

required for FNI to perform services under this Agreement. 

 

E. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents 

presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as Client 

deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a 

reasonable time so as not to delay, or cause rework in, the services of FNI. 

 

F. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Attachment SC, Article III of this 

Agreement or other services as required. 

 

G. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Article V. 



 

   

 A-4  

 

 

 

 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and Client designate the following representatives: 

 

Client’s Designated Representative – Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 

 1314 Avenue K 

 Lubbock Texas, 79401 

 Telephone: 806-775-3317  

 

 

FNI’s Designated Representative –   Chris Bosco, P.E. 

 4055 International Plaza, Suite 200 

 Fort Worth Texas, 76109 

 Telephone: 817-735-7393 

 Facsimile: 817-735-7491 

  

FNI’s Accounting Representative –   Stephanie Kirchstein 

 4055 International Plaza, Suite 200 

 Fort Worth Texas, 76109 

 Telephone: 817-735-7393 

 Facsimile: 817-735-7491 

 

  



 

   

 A-5  

 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET 

114th STREET, INDIANA AVENUE TO QUAKER AVENUE 

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

AMENDMENT #1 

 

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not-to-exceed budget of $48,172 to complete all services under this 

amendment to the AGREEMENT. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract amendment. CITY will 

pay the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule presented 

as EXHIBIT C.  Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling fee.  The 

Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in this Exhibit B.  CITY 

and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Tasks as appropriate to allow flexibility in 

providing the needed services within the not-to-exceed budget.    

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above.  Should there be a Change in Scope of 

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract which shall be negotiated 

at that time.   

The budget assumes that all work will be completed in in accordance with the original contract schedule. 

  



 

   

 A-6  

 

EXHIBIT C, HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE COMPENSATION 

114th STREET, INDIANA AVENUE TO QUAKER AVENUE 

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 

 
 

 



F
re

e
s
e
 a

n
d

 N
ic

h
o

ls
, 
In

c
.

C
it

y
 o

f 
L

u
b

b
o

c
k

P
ro

je
c

t 
F

e
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
1

4
th

 S
tr

e
e

t

6
/1

1
/2

0
2

1

D
e

ta
il
e

d
 C

o
s

t 
B

re
a

k
d

o
w

n

T
a

s
k

s
L

a
b

o
r

C
h

ri
s
 B

o
s
c
o

K
e
vi

n
 M

o
rr

is
W

a
d
e
 B

a
rn

e
s

E
n

g
in

e
e
r 

I
F

a
b
ia

n
 A

m
a
lla

S
p

e
c
ia

l
E

a
s
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n

S
p

e
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 (

P
in

n
a
c
le

)
6

6
1
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l
S

u
rv

e
y 

(1
5
1
9
)

1
1

2
4

S
p

e
c
ia

l
R

a
in

 G
a
rd

e
n

S
p

e
c
ia

l
C

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

4
0

4
4
4

S
p

e
c
ia

l
C

o
n
c
e
p

tu
a
l 
L
a
yo

u
t

1
2

1
2

4
1
9

S
p

e
c
ia

l
F

in
a
l 
D

e
s
ig

n
1

2
1
2

2
4

4
0

7
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
6
4
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

1
5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
t

4
8
,1

7
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
8
,1

7
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
a
s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

rs
 /
 Q

u
a
n

ti
ty

T
a
s
k
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

rs
P

h
a
s
e

T
a
s
k

B
a
s
ic

 o
r 

S
p

e
c
ia

l

1
 o

f 
1

C
:\
U

se
rs

\0
2
6
5
0
\O

n
e
D

ri
ve

 -
 F

re
e
se

 a
n
d
 N

ic
h
o
ls

, 
In

c
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

\B
o
o
k
1

6
/2

4
/2

0
2
1





























































M
E
M
P
H
IS

IN
D
IA
N
A

LO
U
IS
V
IL
LE

JO
LI
E
T

Q
U
A
K
E
R

119TH

109TH

M
IA
M
I112TH

N
O
R
F
O
LK

122ND

110TH

N
O
R
F
O
LK

122ND

109TH

N
O
R
W
O
O
D

121ST

109TH

110TH

122ND

LY
N
N
H
A
V
E
N

N
O
R
F
O
LK

N
O
R
FO

LK

N
O
R
F
O
LK

111TH

K
E
N
O
S
H
A

109TH

110TH

109TH

108TH

SAVANNAH

108TH

113TH

O
X
F
O
R
D

110TH

111TH

110TH

108TH

O
R
LA

N
D
O

110TH

118TH

107TH

109TH

M
IA
M
I 109TH

117TH

118TH

111TH

LO
U
IS
V
IL
LE

K
N
O
X
V
IL
LE

K
E
N
O
S
H
A

120TH

122ND

121ST

Lakeview
Heights

Crest at
Cooper

Stonegate
Office Park

Above and
Beyond

Orchard Park
Professional
Business Park

Suncrest

The
Grove

Academy South

Turning
Point

Southern
Pine Valley
Golf Course

Orchard
Park

Second Cooper
Middle School

Lubbock
Walmart
6898

Cooper Plaza

O'Reilly

Vintage
Township

Tivoli
Estates

Hatton Place

Eagle Gen

114TH

¯

0 750 1,500375
Feet

114th Street
Indiana to Quaker

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051,
SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of

the Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby
provides notice that the data on this map was created

by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to
represent property boundaries is for informational

purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of

property boundaries.



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

894,150$                    
12,163                        

Agenda Item October 12, 2021
48,172$                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 954,485                      

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Construction of 114th Street from Quaker Ave to Indiana Ave 105,850                      

Remaining Appropriation 196,515                      
Total Appropriation 1,151,000$                 

Amendment 1 for for Design Contract 15317 with FNI

114th Street Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue Design

October 12, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

92670

PSA - Freese and Nichols, Inc. for Design - Contract 15317
Staff Time



FY 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Program 454



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16164, a
cost-sharing agreement, with Lubbock County, for a full mill and relay asphalt maintenance project on
North University, from the Clovis Highway (US 84) to the Marsha Sharp Freeway (US 62/82).

Item Summary
North University Avenue functions as a major historical and commercial connection for both the City of
Lubbock and Lubbock County. North University connects Texas Tech University, the Arnett Benson
Neighborhood, the Jackson-Mahon Neighborhood, the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System, Cavazos
Middle School, the future Regis Park Equestrian Center, and the Overton Area, to retail shopping,
restaurants, Downtown Lubbock, and the Entertainment District.

This agreement between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County will split the project costs for milling
and fully repaving North University from Clovis Highway to Marsha Sharp Freeway.  The estimated total
project cost for repaving is $1,800,000.  The County will have a maximum cost of up to $1,000,000.  Any
costs greater than $2,000,000 for the entirety of the project, will be paid for by the City.

Fiscal Impact
The County will pay to the City the maximum amount of $1,000,000 for the University Avenue mill and
relay project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement for a full mill and
relay asphalt maintenance project on University Avenue, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Lubbock County, Texas, and related documents. Said Agreement is attached hereto and
incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of
the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

irector of Public Works

yarool, ssistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement-University-COL & County
9.22.2 1



COST SHARING AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into the

_____

day of

__________________,

20 by and
between the City of Lubbock, Texas, a Texas Home Rule Municipality (“City”), and Lubbock County
(“County”), herein referred to separately as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in light of substantial pavement deterioration along University Avenue from Marsha Sharp
Freeway (US 62/82) to Clovis Highway (US 84) the City and County recognize the need for a full mill
and relay asphalt maintenance project (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the entirety of University Avenue from Marsha Sharp Freeway (US 62/82) to Clovis
Highway (US 84) is within Lubbock County and within the city limits of the City of Lubbock; and

WHEREAS, the City and County find that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and
welfare ofthe citizens ofboth the City and County to construct the Project; and

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code section 791 .028(b) permits a local government to contract
with another local government to payjointly all or part ofthe costs ofa highway project; and

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto agree that in order to expedite construction associated with the
Project, and to fully fund and equitably share among the primary beneficiaries in the expense associated
therewith, that the County shall contribute, through partial reimbursement, toward the costs for work to be
completed pursuant to the Project as set forth herein.

TERMS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual agreements hereinafter set
forth, the Parties hereby do mutually agree as follows:

1 .0 Parties Obligations

I . 1 City. City shall fund the Project as set forth herein, and with due care oversee the work
done pursuant to the Project to completion, unless written consent is otherwise provided by all Parties
hereto.

1 .2 County. County shall reimburse City for a portion, as defined in Section 1 .3, of the costs
incurred by the City for the Project in an amount not to exceed ONE MILLION DOLLARS and 00/100
DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00).

1.3 Portion. The City and County will pay for the total project cost. The County’s portion of
the project will be limited to a maximum of ONE MILLION DOLLARS and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00).
Any project costs exceeding TWO MILLION DOLLARS and 00/100 ($2,000,000.00) for the entire
project cost will be paid by the City.

Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement — COL & County Page 1 of 4



2.0 Reimbursements

2. 1 County. Upon selection of a qualified contractor for construction services via a City-issued
request for proposals, County shall pay the City the amount set forth in Section 1 .2 and 1 .3 above as
valued by the Contractor’s bid selected by the City within thirty (30) business days from bid opening, and
prior to the approval of the bid award by the City’ s governing body.

3 .0 Excess Material

Excess material remaining from the removal of existing pavement in relation to the Project,
including but not limited to pavement millings, shall become the property of the City.

4.0 Breach

The failure of either Party to comply with their obligations, including but not limited to promptly
reimbursing City the agreed amounts set forth in Section 2.0, shall constitute a breach ofthis Agreement.

5.0 Waiver

The waiver of any requirement hereunder by any Party hereto shall not be effective unless properly
authorized and in writing.

6.0 Term; Termination

This Agreement shall automatically terminate after final reimbursement by all parties to the City,
or the City’s termination of its Contract with Contractor, whichever should occur first. This Agreement is
not subject to early termination by any Party.

7. 0 Texas Law to Apply

This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas,
and all obligations of the Parties created hereunder are performable in Lubbock County, Texas.

8.0 Notice

All notices, whether for reimbursement or otherwise, shall be in writing and may be hand
delivered, or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the following
addresses:

City of Lubbock County of Lubbock
Attn: Wood Franklin P.E. Attn: Jennifer Davidson P.E.
Division Director of Public Works Director of Public Works
1314 Avenue K 916 Main Street, Suite 1220
Lubbock, Texas 79401 Lubbock, Texas 79401

Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement — COL & County Page 2 of 4



9.0 Legal Construction

If any one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provision hereof and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provisions had never been contained herein.

I 0.0 Non—ArbitratiOn

The parties reserve the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity,
or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction. Further, the parties shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to
exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and
not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision
and another provision in, or related to. this document, the former shall control.

1 1 .0 Entire Agreement

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the
Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all of the covenants and agreements
between the Parties with respect to said matter. Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that no
representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made by any Party or
anyone acting on behalf of any Party which are not embodied herein and that no other agreements,
statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. No modification
concerning this instrument shall be of any force or effect, excepting a subsequent amendment in writing
signed by the Parties. No official, representative, agent or employee of either entity. has any authority to
modify this Agreement except pursuant to express authority to do so granted by the governing body.

1 2.0 Parties Bound/Authority

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective legal
representatives, successors and assigns where permitted by this Agreement. The undersigned represent
and warrant their authority to execute this Agreement, and to bind the Parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

City of Lubbock: Lubbock County:

DANIEL M. POPE, Mayor

q
Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement — COL & County Page 3 of 4



cl-i

Crf)

Cc-)C
)

C

C

C
,)

CC-)

-CCC-)
C

)
I—C

L

C’-)

C

0tO

0C0C‘-ICEa)a)toCa)EDEC0OC0

I)C-)
C

)
1
))

L)ccNC
)

C-)
C

)

C
)

E



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Cha-Cha's Mexican Café, pursuant to
Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

Item Summary
Cha-Cha's Mexican Café is renovating their property at 1823 Buddy Holly Avenue, which is located
within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock.
The scope of the facade project includes exterior painting and new signage. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $21,625, and the requested grant amount is $10,812. The Market
Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their September 22, 2021 Board Meeting, and
recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $21,625, with $10,812 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 
Market Lubbock Resolution 



























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Cha-Cha's Mexican Café, pursuant
to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation.

Item Summary
Cha-Cha's Mexican Cafe is renovating their property at 1823 Buddy Holly Avenue, which is located
within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock.
The scope of the permittable project includes a new roof. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $3,110, and the requested grant amount is $311. The Market
Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their September 22, 2021 Board Meeting, and
recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $3,110, with $311 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 
Market Lubbock Resolution 



























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the Mayor in
executing a Temporary Lease Agreement, with BayCal Lubbock Partners, LLC and MBABAB, LLC as
TIC c/o NetCo Investment, Inc., for a testing and vaccination clinic at 2717 and 2721 50th Street,
Lubbock, Texas, for the Health Department.

Item Summary
The City's Health Department will utilize the facilities located at 2717 and 2721 50th Street, to run a
Mini-COVID Clinic.  This will allow staff to offer both COVID testing and vaccinations in one location.
The timeframe of the lease is October 1, 2021, through January 6, 2022.  The two storefronts are
necessary in order to separate the public access and the staff-only portions of the clinics.

Fiscal Impact
The cost for the lease and requested renovations is $40,000 and will be paid from the COVID
Immunization Grant.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution - Temporary Lease Agreement for Clinic 
Contract - Temporary Lease Agmt. for Clinic 





TEMPORARY LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Temporary Lease Agreement (the "l,ease") is made and entered into this 29th day of 
September, 2021 (the "Effective Date"), by and between BAYCAL LUBBOCK PARTNERS, 
LLC AND MBABAB, LLC AS TENANTS IN COMMON (collectively, "Landlord"), and 
CITY OF LUBBOCK ("Tenant"). 

1. Premises. In consideration of \he mutual covenants, conditions and agreements in this 
Lease, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, the following 
described premises ("Premises"): 2717 & 2721 50th St Lubbock TX 79413, consisting of 
approximately 9,376 square feet (as more particularly identified in the attached Exhibit A). 

Condition Qf Premises: Tenant agree to accept the Premises in 11as is0 condition, provided 
however, that the plumbing, electrical, and HV AC systems shall be operational, and the below 
items completed. 

• all interior public area walls repainted a neutral color. 
• the interior iloor is either covered in carpet or cleaned of all glue and debris 
• all missing ceiling tiles be replaced. 
• the passageway between the two areas be included 
• all renovations comply with local Building codes and current ADA requirements. 

2. Term. 

a. The terni of this Lease {'·Term") shall commence on October l, 2021 
("Commencement Date'') and shall expire on January 6, 2022 ("Expiration Date"). Landlord 
shall deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant for preparation, cleaning, and general setup on 
or before the Commencement Date ("Delivery Date''). Upon the expiration or earlier termination 
of this Lease, Tenant shall quit and surrender to Landlord the Premises in the same condition as 
delivered to Tenant on the Commencem.ent Date, casualty, condemnation and ordinary wear and 
tear excepted. 

b. Tenant shall not hold over in the Premises after the expiration or sooner termination 
of the Lease Tenn without the express prior written consent of Landlord. Tenant shall be liable 
for any Landlord costs arising out of or in connection with any delay by Tenant in surrendering 
and vacating the Premises, including without limitation any claims made by any succeeding tenant 
based on any delay, and any liabilities arising out of or in connection with such claims. If 
possession of the Premises is not surrendered to Landlord on the expiration or sooner termination 
of the Lease Tenn, in addition to any other rights and remedies of Landlord hereunder, at law or 
in equity, Tenant shall pay to Landlord for each month or portion thereof following the expiration 
or sooner termination of the Lease Term during which Tenant retains possession of the Premises 
a sum equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the then-current Base Rent calculated on a 
monthly basis (based on a 30-day calend~r month), in addition to all other Rent payable under this 
Lease. Landlord's acceptance of any such payment shall not constitute Landlord's consent to any 
holding over (which consent may only be granted expressly in writing) nor Landlord's waiver of 
any of its rights or remedies. If any tenancy is created by Tenant's possession of the Premises 
following the expiration or sooner termination of the Lease Term, the tenancy shall be on all of 

0 ;\Y.lth Sttffl, Ull:b«lt•Capnxl( Ctmdll'l<Of1:RTY MAl'IAGEMENT\ltr.a111,,T.,....,,.,,, Tona,,-.,.\City of lubboc\.\Clea!t Lit<n,.e Aj.'0<10011 -Cily or 
Lublxi<i: 09.30.21.doc, 



the tem1s and conditions of this Lease, except that Rent shall be increased as set forth above and 
the tenancy shall be a month-to•month tenancy, and not a renewal here.of or an extension for any 
further term. Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed to pennit Tenant to retain possession of the 
Premises after the expiration or sooner termination of the Lease Tenn. 

3. Rent. Total rent ("Rent") for Jhe Tenn is $40,000.00 due and payable to Landlord due 
upon execution of this agreement. All Rent provided for in this Lease shall be paid to Landlord 
by company check and remitted to t~e following address: BayCal Lubbock Partners, LLC & 
MBABAB, LLC c/o l st Commercial 2009 Porterfield Way, Suite P 
Upland, CA 91786. Landlord agrees to provide to Tenant a form W-9, Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification. upon Landlord's execution of this Lease. Landlord 
acknowledges and agrees that other than Rent and utilities (including trash removal), the Rent 
provided herein is a '"gross rent" and Tenant shall not be required to pay operating costs, 
insurance, taxes, or any other fees or charges, however denominated or stated. 

4. Personal Property. Tenant shall furnish at its sole cost and expense all personal property 
to be used by Tenant on the Premises. 

5. Permitted Use. Tenant shall use the Premises only for COVID-19 testing and vaccination 
center. Landlord acknowledges and agrees that Tenant shall be permitted to provide drive through 
testing on the parking lot of the shopping center in a location mutually agreed by Landlord and 
Tenant 

6. Utilities. Landlord shall provide the following utilities to the Premises during the Tenn: 
electricity, gas, water and sewer (if applicable). Tenant agrees to place all utility accounts in its 
name from lease commencement to expiration, with payment made directly by Tenant to the utility 
provider. 

7. Trash. During the Term, Tenant shall anange and pay for all costs related to the removal 
from the Premises of all trash and cartons resulting from the operation of Tenant' s business at the 
Premises. If Tenant is required to use Landlord's vendor, then any such cost shall be reasonable 
and competitive (and in no event greater than had Tenant contracted independently for such 
service) and reimbursable to Landlord, if applicable, immediately upon written invoice and request 
from Landlord to Tenant. 

8. Assignment/Subletting. Tenant shall not assign or sublet the whole or any part of the 
Premises without first obtaining the prior written consent of Landlord, such consent to be in 
Lessor's sole and absolute discretion. 

9. Maintenance and Repairs. Landlord shall at all times at its sole cost and expense keep 
and maintain the Premises in good condition, order and repair, including the parking lot, 
landscaping, roof, foundation and structural portions of the Premises, as well as the mechanical, 
electrical, fire protection, HV AC and other utility systems servicing the Premises, unless such 
repairs are necessitated by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant. During the Term, 
Tenant agrees to keep and maintain the interior of the Premises, and any area of the parking lot or 
common area used by Tenant in accordance with the Permitted Use, in a clean and orderly 
condition. 

O:\SO!h Stt«t, W>boct-Clj)<O<k Ct11?c-r'1'110t>ERTY MANAGEMENl\"f cn,111,rr tmll<>"'Y T•"""-'\Ci:J, of'Lubt«k'-Clea• Uo,.,.. Ag,...,,.,u • C~y ~r 2 
1.\11:lbo<\; 09.30.ll 11<,cx 



IO. !:J.£m. Tenant shall not permit any liens to be filed against the Premises on account of the 
furnishing of any labor, material or supplies, or for any other cause or reason. In the event liens 
are filed, then Tenant shall promptly cause the same to be released, bonded or satisfied in full 
within ten ( 10) days of the dale of sue~ filing. 

11. Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against 
any and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expenses in connection with loss of life or 
personal injury arising from or out of Tenant's occupancy or use of the Premises or any part 
thereof, resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant, its agents, contractors 
or employees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have no obligation to indemnify or 
hold Landlord ham1less against claims for loss of life or personal injury arising in whole or in part 

I 

out of or by reason of any act, negligence, or fault of Landlord or of its agents, servants, or 
employees. The parties expressly acknowledge that the Tenant's (City's) authority to indemnify 
and/or hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, Section 7 of the Texas Constitution 
and any provision which purports to require indemnification by the Tenant (City) is invalid. 

12. Tenant's Insurance. Tenant ~hall carry, at its own expense, (i) commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per occun-ence, with a $2,000,000 
general aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, and (ii) all risk property insurance 
covering Tenant's trade fixtures, inventory and other personal property for the .full replacement 
cost thereof. Coverage may be provided by any combination of primary and umbrella or excess 
policies provided that such umbrella or excess policies shall be no less broad than the underlying 
policies and shall have the same inception and expirations dates as the underlying coverage. 
Landlord shall be named as an additional insured on the aforesaid liability insurance and shall be 
provided with evidence confinning such coverage. 

13. Landlord's Insurance. Landlord shall carry commercial property insurance, including 
special fonn perils endorsement, insuring the building of which the Premises is a part, in an 
amount not less than the full replacement cost In addition, Landlord shall carry commercial 
general liability insurance for the prope11y of which the Premises is a part, in at least the same 
amounts required of Tenant. 

14. Hazardous Materials. Tenant agrees not to maintain, keep, store or permit the 
maintenance or storage of any dangerous, flammable or hazardous material on the Premises ( other 
than reasonable and customary ammmts as permitted under existing fire and safety rules and 
regulations) and farther agrees to comply with all fire and safety rules and regulations affecting 
the Premises, provided such compliance does not require Tenant to install or modify any fire 
protection, fire detection or fire alann systems in the Premises. Any such installations or 
modifications shall be the sole responsibility of the Landlord, unless any such installation or 
modification is required as a result of any particular use of the Premises by Tenant. 

15. Casualty. If all or any part of the Premises shall be damaged or destroyed by fire, 
earthquake, flood or other casualty so as to render the Premises untenantable in Tenant's sole 
opinion, then this Lease shall tenninate, at the written option of Landlord or Tenant, from the date 
of such casualty, and upon such notice Tenant shall at once sw·render the Premises and all interest 
therein to the Landlord, and shall not be liable for any further payments of Rent as of the date of 
such casualty. Any portion of the Rent applicable to the time period after the date of such casualty 
shall be refunded to Tenant. 

O.\SOth 5,__ L.i>bod:-CaprodC011t""'1'R0PERTY MANAGEME.NT\Tet11no, ·r_.-...yTcm,._,\Ci<y<>fu1bbocicClr;• .....,,..,. Ap-.,.....,, -C~yoC 3 
L\tbbock 09 . .30.:? ! .doc-A 



16. Quiet Enioyment. Landlord represents and warrants that Landlord has the right, power 
and lawful authority to enter into this Lease for the full Tenn hereof. Tenant, upon paying the Rent 
required under this Lease, shall peaceably and quietly hold and enjoy the Premises during the full 
Term hereof. 

17. Signage. Tenant shall have the right to place its typical exterior sign.age on the Premises 
as of the later of the Effective Date of this Lease, or if applicable, the passing of the Early 
Termination Date set forth in section 2, subject to local sign code permitting requirements. Tenant 
shall use reasonable efforts to coordinate the aforementioned marketing efforts with Landlord and 
agrees to comply with all applicable code requirements. Upon the removal of the signs at the end 
of the Term, Tenant will make all necessary repairs to return the building and monuments to their 
original conditions prior to the installation of signs, reasonable wear and tear excepted. At no 
additional cost to Landlord, Landlord agrees to assist and cooperate with Tenant in obtaining any 
necessary signage approvals or permits, including execution of the authorization letter set forth in 
Exhibit "B" attached hereto. 

Upon Landlord's written request, Tenant agrees to display a single "For Lease" or 
"For Sale" sign, not to exceed 24" x 24" (such sign to be provided by Landlord). Any such sign 
shall not unreasonably interfere with Tenant's operation or the visibility of the Premises. 

18. Zoning. Landlord represents and warrants that the Premises are zoned for retail. In the 
event Tenant is unable to operate its business at the Premises because of zoning issues, this Lease 
shall be considered null and void and Landlord shall refund to Tenant all Rent and deposits (if any) 
paid to Landlord on a pro rata basis, based on the number of days Tenant occupied the Premises. 

19. Access to Premises. Landlord shall have access to the Premises at all reasonable times 
during Tenant's normal business hours and upon not less than 24 hours prior notice (except in the 
event of emergency), to enable Landlord (i) to examine the same and to make such repairs, 
additions and alterations as Landlord may be permitted to make hereunder; or (ii) to show the 
Premises to prospective tenants, mortgagees and purchasers. Landlord agrees to schedule such 
entry with Tenant in advance (unless an emergency) and, upon such entry, agrees to minimize 
interference with and disruption of Tenant's business. 

20. Default. In the event Tenant shall be in default in the payment of any installment of Rent 
herein reserved more than five (5) days following written notice from Landlord, or in the event 
Tenant shall be in default in the performance of any other of the terms, covenants, conditions or 
provisions herein contained binding upon Tenant after Landlord has given Tenant fifteen ( 15) days 
prior written notice of such non-performance, Landlord shall have the right (in addition to all other 
rights and remedies provided by law) to terminate this Lease, to re-enter and take possession of 
the Premises, peaceably or by force, and to remove any property therein, without liability for 
damage to, and without obligation to store, such property. In the event Landlord shall be in default 
in the performance of any of the tenns, covenants, conditions or provisions herein contained 
binding upon Landlord after Tenant has given Landlord fifteen ( 15) days prior written notice of 
such non-performance, Tenant shall have the right (in addition to all other rights and remedies 
provided by law) to terminate this Lease. 

21. Notices. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, any notice required or permitted 
tmder th.is Lease shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given and delivered (a) 

Q:\j0fh SuHI. Lubbcck-C1i,n><lt C""'enl'ROPERTY MANA(JEMEl'fl\Tcnaots T•mp,r>JYT•11111,.1C~y ~(t . .,llbc:J<\Clw, L.:•- Ag:t·,:,,rneoi • Ci<y of 4 
Lubbocldl9.30.2 l.docx 



one (1) business day after the date on which the same has been delivered prepaid to a national 
courier service guaranteeing next day service, or (b) three (3) days after deposit in the United States 
mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, in e,ach case addressed to 
the party to whom such notice is given at the address set forth below: 

To Tenant: City of Lubbock 
Bill Howerton 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

To Landlord: BayCal Lubbock Partners, LLC & MBABAB, LLC as TIC 
c/o NetCo Investments, Inc. 
1800 Preston Park Blvd., Suite l 04 
Plano, Texas 75093 

22. Attqr,neys' Fees. If either Landlord or Tenant institutes any action or proceeding against 
the other to enforce any provision of this Lease, the non-prevailing party shall reimburse the 
prevailing party for all re.asonable cost~ and expenses incurred by the prevailing party, including 
court costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

23. Brokerage Commissions. Each of the parties hereto represents and warrant~ to the other 
that it has not dealt with any broker or finder in connection with this Lease. Landlord and Tenant 
agree to indemnify and defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to the other) the other party 
and to hold the other party harmless from and against any liability for claims for commissions or 
fees by any other broker or finder based on the acts of the indemnifying party. 

24. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties, all prior 
understanding and agreements are being merged herein. There are no oral or written agreements 
or representations between Landlord and Tenant except as expressly set forth in this Lease. No 
modifications of this Lease will be binding upon Landlord or Tenant unless made in writing and 
signed by each party. The terms, covenants and conditions contained herein shall inure to the 
benefit of, and be binding upon, Landlord and Tenant, and their respective heirs, successors and 
assigns. 

25. Severability. If any term or provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease or 
the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances, other than those as to which 
it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of 
this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

26. 9overning Law. Th.is Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the state in 
which the Premises is located. 

27. Force Maieure. Neither the Landlord nor the Tenant shall be liable for failure to timely 
perform any obligation under this Lease in the event it is prevented from so performing by strike, 
lockout, breakdown, communicable disease outbreak or epidemic (including without limitation 
COVID-19 or the coronavirus), accident, act of terrorism, order or regulation of or by any 
governmental authority or failure to supply or inability by the exercise of reasonable diligence to 

0:1.Stlth Stm:t, l.abboci.-C,prod C""'er\PROl'ERTY MANAOEM~NT\Te,w,1! Tm'l"'...-Y -r .. ,.,. .... c.y oflabboci>Cbo Ll«nsc /\llfttffl<Ol . < • ~ r,j 5 
u,bC,ock 09.J0.2\ do<:• 



obtain supplies, parts or employees necessary to furnish such services or because of war or other 
emergency or for any other cause beyond its reasonable control (collectiveiy, "Force Majeure"). 
In addition, if Tenant determines, in its reasonable judgment, that it is unable to operate its store 
as contemplated herein because of Force Majeure, then Tenant may tenninate this Lease at any 
time upon notice to Landlord. Upon Landlord's receipt of Tenant's tennination notice, this Lease 
shall terminate, and Landlord shall refund to Tenant all prepaid rent and deposits (if any) paid to 
Landlord (prorated based on the numbdr of days Tenant physically occupied the Premises, if any) 
within ten (I 0) days following the effective date of such termination. 

28. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Lease may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. A signed copy of this Lease transmitted by facsimile, email or other 
means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an 
original executed copy of this Lease for all purposes. 

29. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the perfonnance of each, 
every, and all of the terms, conditions, promises and provisions of this Lease. 

(Remainder of page left intentionally blank- Signature page follows.) 

O:\.lO<h $1""' . L•bb:Jel.-Cor,roc!< C""'ct\PltOl'tlrfY ll'IAa'IAGEMENl\T.,....,,,t,mpcr.cy ' """'""C!JyoH .. bboclt .Cloa• 1.;,,n,. Ai<-· City of 
l.ubbod: 09 . .JO.:? I .d,:,cx 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease the day and year 
first above written. 

LANDLORD: 

BAYCAL LUBBOCK PARTNERS, LLC 
A Delaware limited liability company 

By; NetCo Investments, Inc. a C 1.~· ....,·· c .. ,a 
its Manager __,.-,,-:7 

By: 

MBABAB,LLC 
A Delaware limited liability company 

By: Double A Asset Manageme 
A Texas limited liability 
its Manager 

By: 

TENANT: 

CITYO 

By: _ 

Name: 12a.n ~ ~Ll.1~Po~.,_1iaya.r.. ______ , 
Date: Oc.-f o\oe r 5.,. ~---"-~"-. / ____ _ 
Tenant's Federal Tax ID#: tS- ~00!,?5'11.?_ 

ATTEST: 

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 



Exhibit" A" - P.-emises Site Plan 

0 :15\')thSUffl, [.ubbodc-CaprO<~ Cmta'll'llOPElltV MANAO!:ME."lT\1'.,IMlfslt~ T ... nislC<yof Luboo<k\Ck.ui L.:, ... Aw .. .,...., -City or 
Lubbock 09.J0.21 .doci;; 

""'°' 1aU..-,oo<M~H, .. 
n..~.-H .... -.:u~..._<.e,bllt,. 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Mayor in executing
Amendment No. 1 to Contract HHS001019500024, and all related documents, under the COVID-19
Immunizations Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Department of State
Health Services.

Item Summary
Amendment 1 will provide additional grant funding to support ongoing COVID-19 vaccination efforts by
the Health Department. The funding will be used to support staff salaries and rent clinical space. The
amendment increases the contract amount by $489,758, bringing the total amount of the contract to
$3,251,133.

Fiscal Impact
This amendment is for an additional $489,758. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution (c) - Amend 1 to HHS001019500024 
Amend 1 - Immunization Grant 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Community Development Funding Contract 16001 and all related documents, with the YWCA of
Lubbock, through the Community Development Block Grant administered by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, to provide childcare assistance to qualified low-to-moderate income
persons and families.

Item Summary
Grantee: YWCA of Lubbock
Funding source: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds from U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Use of funds: Childcare assistance for low-income citizens of the City of Lubbock
Allocation: Up to $200,000
Terms: October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022  

Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing on March 10, 2021, followed
by a public board meeting, to discuss and approve the 2020 Action Plan draft.  The Action Plan is the
document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and proposed use of
CDBG funds.  CDSB recommends acceptance of the FY 2020 CDBG funding from HUD.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The maximum amount allocated to YWCA for the
CDBG childcare assistance program is $200,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
CDBG Contract - YWCA (s) 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 0F THE CITY 0F LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and  on  behalf of the  City  of Lubbock,  Community  Development  Block  Grant  Funding
Agreement  16001, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and YWCA of
Lubbock  to  provide  childcare  assistance  for  qualified  persons.  Said  Contract  is  attached
hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in
the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

APPROVED AS T0 FORM:

ccdocs/RES. CDBG Contract 16001  -YWCA
09.27.21















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 14.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Community Development Funding Contract 16002 and all related documents, with the Lubbock Housing
Finance Corporation, through the Community Development Block Grant, administered by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, to provide mortgage assistance to qualified
low-to-moderate income persons and families.

Item Summary
Grantee: Lubbock Housing Finance Corporation (LHFC)
Funding source: Community Development Block Grant funds from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD)
Use of funds: mortgage assistance for low-income citizens of the City of Lubbock
Allocation: Up to $200,000
Terms: October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022

The Community Development and Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing on March 10, 2021,
followed by a public board meeting to discuss and approve the 2020 Action Plan draft.  The Action Plan
is the document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and proposed use of,
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding.  CDSB recommends acceptance of the FY 2020
CDBG Funding from HUD.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The maximum amount allocated to LHFC for the
CDBG mortgage assistance program is $200,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
CDBG Contract - Lubbock Housing Finance Corp. (s) 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 0F THH CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and  on  behalf of the  City  of Lubbock,  Community  Development  Block  Grant  Funding
Agreement  16002,  and  all  related  documents,  between the  City of Lubbock  and Lubbock
Housing Finance Corporation (LHFC) to provide mortgage assistance for qualified persons.
Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein
and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVHD AS TO CONTENT:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ccdocsRES. CDBG Contract  16002 -Lubbock Housing Finance Corp.
09.27.21















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 15.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief Financial
Officer, in executing FY 2021 Section 5310 Grant, TX-2021-104-00, from the Federal Transit
Administration, for operating and capital to enhance the mobility of elderly individuals and individuals
with disabilities.

Item Summary
The Federal Transit Administration has allocated $217,663 in Section 5310 Grant funds to the City of
Lubbock/Citibus. The funds from Section 5310 Grants are to be used for public transportation projects
planned, designed, and carried out, to meet the special needs of elderly individuals and individuals with
disabilities when public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable. The Section 5310
Grant funds will be used to purchase 2 paratransit vans, and to fund paratransit trips outside the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 3/4 mile boundary. The grant has been incorporated into the
budget, which has been previously approved by the City Council. 
 
A minimum of 55% of program funds must be used on capital projects, and a maximum of 45% must be
used for public transportation operating projects that exceed the requirements of the ADA, or projects
that improve access to public transportation services by elderly individuals and individuals with
disabilities.
 
The grant has been electronically executed by the Chief Financial Officer for the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
The $119,075 local match required for this grant of $217,663 has already been included in the
Citibus Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - FTA 5310 FY 2021 
Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5310 



































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 16.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute FY 2022
Section 5307 Grant, TxDOT URB 2202 (05), Project ID 51309020522, from the Texas Department of
Transportation, for operating assistance to maintain its public transportation system.

Item Summary
The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is allocating a Section 5307 Grant in the amount of
$716,091 of public transportation funds to the City of Lubbock for operating assistance to maintain its
public transportation system, Citibus, for FY 2022. The FY 2022 Section 5307 Grant is included in the
Citibus Budget for FY 2022.
 
Citibus operates public transportation in both a fixed route and demand response service.  The routes
originate in downtown Lubbock and provide service at various locations throughout the City. All vehicles
are accessible to persons with disabilities. The demand response service, CitiAccess, serves origins and
destinations within the city limits.  Both services operate under guidelines from federal, state, and local
authorities for maintaining buses, facilities, preventative maintenance, and safety. The major trip
generators include the medical center area, education facilities, employment providers, and shopping
centers. Citibus provides service Monday through Saturday from 5:30 a.m. to 7:15 p.m., except holidays.

The contract is effective from September 1, 2021, or when fully executed by both parties, and shall
terminate on August 31, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
Acceptance of this grant of $716,091, will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - TxDOT 5307 FY 2022 
TxDOT 5307 Grant FY 2022 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 17.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief Financial
Officer, in executing FY 2021 Section 5307 Grant, Project TX-2021-113-00, from the Federal Transit
Administration, to provide operating assistance, preventative maintenance, Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA) paratransit service, capital, and planning assistance.

Item Summary
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has allocated $3,372,748 in FY 2021 Section 5307 funds to
the City of Lubbock/Citibus.  This is a routine grant that Citibus receives on an annual basis. The grant
has been incorporated into the FY 2021 Budget, which has been previously approved by the City
Council. The funds for this grant are used for operating assistance, preventative maintenance, non-fixed
routes for (ADA) paratransit service, planning, and capital to acquire miscellaneous support equipment.

The grant has been electronically executed by the Chief Financial Officer for the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
The $1,167,614 local match required for this grant has been included in the FY 2021-22 Citibus Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - FTA 5307 FY 2021 
Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5307 



















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 18.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the Chief Financial
Officer in executing Section FY 2019 and FY 2020 Section 5339(a) Grant, Project ID TX-2021-118-00,
from the Federal Transit Administration, for the purchase of eight paratransit replacement buses which
are compliant with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Item Summary
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has allocated $802,767 in Section 5339(a) funds to the City of
Lubbock/Citibus. The funds will be used to purchase 8 paratransit buses that are compliant with ADA, to
replace older buses that are past their useful life. Citibus was awarded 110,160 Transportation
Development Credits (TDCs), provided by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), that will
be used for the local match required for the FY 2019 and FY 2020 Section 5339(a) Grant. 
 
This grant has been electronically executed by the Chief Financial Officer for the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
The local match required for this grant of $802,767 has been matched by 110,160 TDCs provided by
TxDOT.  Acceptance of this grant will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - FTA 5339(a) FY 19 & 20 
Citibus - FTA FY 19 & 20 Section 5339(a) 

































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 19.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Agreement 16113 and related documents, between the City of Lubbock Public Libraries and SirsiDynix,
for the Enterprise SaaS Annual Subscription, Support, and Software Maintenance.

Item Summary
The Sirsi Corporation is the developer for all the SirsiDynix software and specialized services. This
Library System Software has been utilized by the City of Lubbock Public Libraries since 1992.  To retain
continuity for the library system, this software agreement is recommended.
 
The SirsiDynix Enterprise SaaS Subscription components include eResource Central Gateway Services,
3M Self Check Interface, Training, Symphony SaaS Core, ReferenceLibrarian, Serials, Universal SIP2,
NCIP Interface, Debt Collection Agency Interface, Enriched Content Basic Public Subscription,
BLUEcloud Visibility & Analytics Platform Pro Subscriptions.

Fiscal Impact
The first-year cost of the contract for October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022, is $78,722.13, and is
budgeted in the Information Technology FY 2020-21 Operating Budget.
The total five-year Proposed Customer Service Agreement is $417,111.77, and will be budgeted in the
Information Technology Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Resolution - SirsiDynix 
Contract - SirsiDynix 



































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 20.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, with
Wild West Harley-Davidson, to lease fourteen Police motorcycles and related equipment, for use by the
Police Department.

Item Summary
In response to ITB 21-15797-KM, a sole bidder, Wild West Harley-Davidson, responded with a bid of
$64,512 for a 5-year lease. The staff recommends award of this contract to Wild West Harley-Davidson.

The lease agreement will allow the Police Department to continue motorcycle traffic enforcement and
police escort services. The police motorcycle squads are integral parts of the department's enforcement of
traffics laws, due to their maneuverability in congested traffic conditions and ability to enforce traffic
laws from areas not accessible to other police vehicles. Additionally, police motorcycle units provide
escort services for funerals, parades, dignitaries, and other related functions. 

The contract agreement is for a period of 60 months with new motorcycles being exchanged every 36
months.

Fiscal Impact
The monthly lease payment is $384 per motorcycle. The annual cost to lease 14 motorcycles is estimated
to be $64,512, with additional costs incurred from scheduled maintenance, including oil changes and
inspections.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution - Lease for Motorcycles 
Agreement - Harley-Davidson Motorcycles 
Project Summary Sheet - Motorcycle Lease 























 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 21-15797-KM  

Lease and Maintenance Agreement for Police Motorcycles 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 4 & April 11, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from March 31 to April 20, 2021. 

4 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

15 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

5 vendors downloaded the documents. 

1 vendor was notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution adopting redistricting criteria to apply to
development of new districting plans.

Item Summary
The City Council has certain responsibilities for redistricting the City Councilmember Districts, under
federal and state law.  A review of the 2020 Census data reveals that a population imbalance exists among
the City Councilmember Districts, requiring redistricting of those districts. It is the City's intent to
comply with the Voting Rights Act and will all other relevant law.  Therefore, a set of established
redistricting criteria will serve as a framework to guide the City in the formulation and consideration of
districting plans. Redistricting criteria will provide the City a means by which to evaluate proposed plans,
and will assist the City in its efforts to comply with all applicable federal and state laws.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution (c) - Redistricting Criteria 









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution adopting redistricting guidelines regarding public
participation in the redistricting process.

Item Summary
The City Council has certain responsibilities for redistricting the City's councilmember districts under
federal and state law. It is necessary to provide for orderly consideration and evaluation of redistricting
plans which may come before the Council.  This resolution is for the purpose of adopting guidelines for
persons who have specific plans they wish the Council to consider.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution - Redistricting Guidelines 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Advisory Board, Building
Board of Appeals, Citizens Traffic Commission, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation
Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communication District Board of Directors, Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Board of Directors, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission,
Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors, Model Codes & Construction
Advisory Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission,
and the Water Board of Appeals.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Airport Board, Building Board of Appeals, Citizens Traffic Commission,
Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board of Directors, LECD Board of Directors,
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Board of Directors, Lubbock Water Advisory
Commission, Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors, Model Codes &
Construction Advisory Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation
Commission, and the Water Board of Appeals.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a Resolution of Intent to create the City of Lubbock
Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE). 

Item Summary
The Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy program (TX-PACE) is an economic development tool that
encourages and incentivizes private sector investment in energy efficiency and water conservation. The
PACE program will be offered to property owners on a strictly voluntary basis and will not require the
use of any public funds or resources.

Authorized under the PACE Act enacted in 2013, the PACE program is an innovative financing program
that enables private sector owners of privately owned commercial, industrial and multi-family residential
properties with 5 or more dwelling units, to obtain low-cost, long-term loans to pay for water
conservation, energy-efficiency improvements, and renewable energy retrofits.

Loans made under the PACE program will be secured by assessments voluntarily imposed by the owner,
on the property. The utility cost savings derived from the improvements financed with the PACE loans
are expected to equal or exceed the amount of the assessment. PACE assessments are tied to the property
and follow title from one owner to the next.

Under the PACE Act, the establishment and operation of the program are considered to be governmental
functions. Should the Council approve the Resolution of Intent to create the PACE program in the City
of Lubbock, the City will then delegate administration of the PACE program to the Texas PACE
Authority, who will administer the program at no cost to the City.

Following action on the Resolution of Intent to create the program, the City will hold a public hearing on
October 26, 2021, per the requirements of the PACE Act as set forth in Texas Local Government Code
Chapter 399.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution of Intent (r) - Lubbock PACE 
Report - PACE 











 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

REPORT REQUIRED BY TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 399.009 
 

FOR PROPOSED PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (PACE) PROGRAM 
 

 
This Report is adopted by the City Council for the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”) Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program (the “Program”) in 
accordance with the requirements of the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (the “PACE 
Act”) as set forth in Texas Local Government Code Chapter 399. 
 
The Local Government and its constituents benefit when older existing buildings are modified 
with new technology and equipment that increases energy efficiency and reduces water 
consumption.  As described in this Report, the Local Government is establishing the commercial 
PACE Program to encourage private sector investment in energy efficiency and water 
conservation.  The PACE Program will be offered to property owners on a strictly voluntary 
basis and will not require the use of any public funds or resources. 
 
Authorized under the PACE Act enacted in 2013, the PACE program is an innovative financing 
program that enables private sector owners of privately owned commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential properties with five or more dwelling units to obtain low-cost, long-term loans 
to pay for water conservation, energy-efficiency improvements, and renewable energy retrofits.  
PACE loans provide up to 100% financing of all project costs, with little or no up-front out-of-
pocket cost to the owner.  The Local Government has chosen to follow the administrative 
principles, program processes, and model documents of the uniform Texas PACE in a Box 
model program.1  
 
Loans made under the PACE Program will be secured by assessments on the property that are 
voluntarily imposed by the owner.  Assessments may be amortized over the projected life of the 
improvements. The utility cost savings derived from improvements financed with PACE loans 
are expected to equal or exceed the amount of the assessment.  In turn, these improvements are 
able to generate positive cash flow upon installation because the debt service will be less than the 
savings.    
 
PACE assessments are tied to the property and follow title from one owner to the next.  Each 
owner is responsible only for payment of the assessments accruing during its period of 
ownership.  When the property is sold, the payment obligation for the remaining balance of the 
assessment is transferred automatically to the next owner.  As a result, the program will help 
property owners overcome market barriers that often discourage investment in energy efficiency 
and water conservation improvements.   
 

 
1  https://www.keepingpaceintexas.org/pace-in-a-box 



 

2 
 

1. Eligible Properties 
 
The Local Government’s PACE program is a strictly voluntary program. All private sector 
owners of Eligible Properties located within the Local Government’s PACE region may 
participate in PACE financing.  “Eligible Properties” include commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential properties with five or more dwelling units.  Government, residential2, and 
undeveloped property and property undergoing development at the time of the assessment are 
not Eligible Properties.   
 

2. Qualified Improvements 
 
PACE financing may be used to pay for Qualified Improvements to Eligible Properties. 
“Qualified Improvements” are permanent improvements intended to decrease water or energy 
consumption or demand, including a product, device, or interacting group of products or devices 
on the customer’s side of the meter that use energy technology to generate electricity, provide 
thermal energy, or regulate temperature.  Under the PACE Act, products or devices that are not 
permanently fixed to real property are not considered to be Qualified Improvements. 
 
The following items may constitute Qualified Improvements: 

• High efficiency heating, ventilating and air conditioning (“HVAC”) systems 
• High efficiency chillers, boilers, and furnaces 
• High efficiency water heating systems 
• Energy management systems and controls 
• Distributed generation systems 
• High efficiency lighting system upgrades  
• Building enclosure and envelope improvements 
• Water conservation and wastewater recovery and reuse systems  
• Combustion and burner upgrades  
• Heat recovery and steam traps  
• Water management systems and controls (indoor and outdoor)  
• High efficiency irrigation equipment 

 
3. Benefits of PACE to Property Owners 

 
The PACE program will enable owners of Eligible Properties to overcome traditional barriers to 
capital investments in energy efficiency and water conservation improvements, such as 
unattractive returns on investment, split incentives between landlords and tenants, and 
uncertainty of recouping the investment upon sale of the property.  
 
By financing Qualified Improvements through the program, property owners may achieve utility 
cost savings that exceed the amount of the assessment and reduce their exposure to utility price 
volatility.  As a result, the value of the property will be enhanced, and the owner will only be 
obligated to pay the assessment installments that accrue during its period of ownership of the 
property.  Additionally, by investing in energy efficiency and water conservation with PACE 

 
2  This encompasses single family residential and any multi-family properties with fewer than five units.  



 

3 
 

financing, property owners may also qualify for various rebate, tax credit, and incentive 
programs offered by utility providers and state or federal governmental authorities to encourage 
these types of investments. 
 

4. Benefits of PACE to the Local Government 
 
Among other things, projects financed through PACE will:  
 

• Enable property owners and occupants to save substantial amounts in utility costs, 
• Reduce demand on the electricity grid 
• Mitigate greenhouse gas emissions associated with energy generation 
• Enhance the value and efficiency of existing buildings  
• Boost the local economy by creating new job opportunities and new business 

opportunities for contractors, engineers, commercial lenders, professionals, and 
equipment vendors and manufactures 

• Increase business retention and expansion in the PACE region by enabling cost effective 
energy and water saving updates to existing property 

• Improve productivity through optimized energy usage 
• Support the State’s water conservation plan 
• Better enable the Local Government to meet its water conservation goals 

  
Finally, through the reduction in energy consumption as a result of the PACE program, there will 
be a decreased demand for power resulting in lower emissions from power plants. EPA 
regulations have significant impacts on air quality standards in Texas. Being non-attainment for 
priority pollutants in the Clean Air Act endangers federal transportation funding.  
 
The PACE program requires minimal support from the Local Government. It is designed to be 
self-sustaining.  Furthermore, because the PACE program is tax neutral, it achieves all of the 
benefits listed in this Report without imposing a burden on the Local Government’s general 
fund. 
 
The 84th Texas Legislature added a provision that explicitly shields the Local Government and 
its employees, members of the governing body of a local government, employees of a local 
government, and board members, executives, employees, and contractors of a third party who 
enter into a contract with a local government to provide administrative services for a program 
under this chapter.3   
 

5. The Benefits of PACE to Lenders 
 
PACE loans are attractive to lenders because they are very secure investments. Like a property 
tax lien, the assessment lien securing the PACE loan has priority over other liens on the property. 
Therefore, the risk of loss from non-payment of a PACE loan is low compared to most other 
types of loans. PACE assessments provide lenders with an attractive new product to assist 

 
3  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.019. In the 85th legislature, HB 2654 clarified that the personal immunity 
provisions apply to all elected officials performing rights and duties under chapter 399 of the Local Government 
Code. 



 

4 
 

existing and new customers in addressing an almost universal pent-up demand for needed 
commercial and industrial property equipment modernization. In order to protect the interests of 
holders of existing mortgage loans on the property, the PACE Act requires their written consent 
to the PACE assessment as a condition to obtaining a PACE loan. 
 

6. The Benefits of PACE to Contractors, Engineers, and Manufacturers 
 

PACE loans provide attractive sources of financing for water and energy saving retrofits and 
upgrades, thereby encouraging property owners to make substantial investments in existing 
commercial and industrial buildings. As a result, PACE will unlock business opportunities for 
contractors, engineers, and manufacturers throughout the commercial and industrial sectors. 
 

7. Administration of the Local Government PACE Program 
 

Under the PACE Act, the establishment and operation of the program are considered to be 
governmental functions.4  The PACE Act further authorizes the Local Government to enter into a 
contract with a third party to provide administrative services for the PACE program (the 
“Authorized Representative”).  The Local Government will delegate administration of the 
PACE program to Texas PACE Authority, a qualified, non-profit organization that can 
administer the program at no cost to the Local Government.  
 
The Authorized Representative’s role is to serve as an extension of the local government staff to 
provide oversight of the program to ensure best practices and consumer protections at the lowest 
possible cost to the property owner in a transparent and ethical manner and to provide education 
and outreach.  
 
The Authorized Representative will be funded by administrative fees paid by the property 
owners establishing a PACE project, charitable grants or other authorized sources of revenue.  
The Authorized Representative will not receive compensation or reimbursement from the Local 
Government.  
   

8. Eligible Lenders  
 
The PACE Act does not set criteria for financial institutions or investors to be PACE lenders. 
The Local Government will follow best practices of other PACE programs and the Texas PACE 
in a Box model program by recommending that lenders be: 

§ Any federally insured depository institution such as a bank, savings bank, savings and 
loan association and federal or state credit union; 

§ Any insurance company authorized to conduct business in one or more states; 
§ Any registered investment company, registered business development company, or a  

Small Business Administration small business investment company; 
§ Any publicly traded entity;  or 
§ Any private entity that: 

o Has a minimum net worth of $5 million; and 

 
4  TX Local Government Code §399.003(b) 



 

5 
 

o Has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or commercial 
real estate lending (including multifamily lending), or has a lending officer that has 
at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or commercial real 
estate lending; and 

o Can provide independent certification as to availability of funds; and 
§ All lenders must have the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the 

bookkeeping and customer service work necessary to manage the assessment accounts. 
 
Any lender can participate in the PACE program as long as it is a financially stable entity with 
the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the bookkeeping and customer 
service work necessary to manage the assessment accounts.  The property owner, not the Local 
Government or the Authorized Representative, selects the lender.  
 
The Authorized Representative will not guarantee or imply that funding will automatically be 
provided from a third-party lender, imply or create any endorsement of, or responsibility for, any 
lender; or create any type of express or implied favoritism for any eligible lender. 
 

9. Components of the PACE Program 
 

As required under Section 399.009 of the PACE Act, the following describes all aspects of the 
PACE Program:  
 

a. Map of Region.   A map of the boundaries of the region included in the 
program is attached to this Report as Exhibit 1.  The region encompasses the 
Local Government limits.  

 
b. Form Contract with Owner.   A form contract between the Local Government 

and the record owner of the Eligible Property is attached as Exhibit 2.  It 
specifies the terms of the assessment under the PACE program and the financing 
to be provided by an Eligible Lender of the property owner’s choosing. 

  
c. Form Contract with Lender.   A form contract between the Local Government 

and the Eligible Lender chosen by a property owner is attached to this Report as 
Exhibit 3. It specifies the financing and servicing of the debt through 
assessments.   

 
Form Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  A form Notice of Assessment Lien 
to be filed by the Local Government with the County Clerk is attached to this 
Report as Exhibit 4. 
 

d. Qualified Improvement.    The following types of projects are qualified 
improvements that may be subject to contractual assessments under the PACE 
program: 

 
Projects that (a) involve the installation or modification of a 
permanent improvement fixed to privately owned commercial, 



 

6 
 

industrial or residential real property with five (5) or more 
dwelling units;5 and (b) are intended to decrease energy or water 
consumption or demand by installing a product, device, or 
interacting group of products or devices on the customer’s side of 
the meter that uses energy technology to generate electricity, 
provide thermal energy, or regulate temperature. 6   

 
A sample list of potential Qualified Improvements appears in Section 2 above.  
 
The PACE program may not be used to finance improvements to undeveloped 
lots or lots undergoing development at the time of the assessment, or for the 
purchase or installation of products or devices not permanently fixed to real 
property.7  
 

e. Authorized Representative.    HB 3187 was signed into law on June 16, 2015.  It 
authorizes the Local Government to delegate administration of the PACE 
program to a third-party “Authorized Representative.” The Local Government 
may delegate all official administrative responsibilities, such as the execution of 
individual contracts with property owners and lenders, to an Authorized 
Representative. This relationship will be monitored and maintained by the City 
Manager or his designee.  

 
f. Project Review.  Track and provide a public overview with savings metrics for 

all PACE projects 
 

g. Plans for Insuring Sufficient Capital8.   Lenders will extend loans to finance 
Qualified Improvements. Financing documents executed between owners and 
lenders will impose a contractual assessment on Eligible Property to repay the 
owner’s financing of the Qualified Improvements.    The lenders will ensure that 
property owners demonstrate the financial ability to fulfill the financial 
obligations to be repaid through contractual assessments.   

  
h. No Use of Bonds or Public Funds.   The Local Government does not intend to 

issue bonds or use any other public monies to fund PACE projects.  Property 
owners will obtain all financing from the Eligible Lenders they choose.   

i. Limit on Length of Loan.   One of the statutory criteria of a PACE loan is that 
the assessment payment period cannot exceed the useful life of the Qualified 
Improvement that is the basis for the loan and assessment. As part of the 
application process, the property owners will submit an independent third-party 
review prepared by a licensed engineer showing the water or energy baseline 

 
5  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.002(5). 
6  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.002(3). 
7  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.004. 
8  The Texas PACE Authority’s website (www.texaspaceauthority.org) offers a non-exhaustive list of 
interested and qualified lenders to assist property owners in funding PACE projects in Texas. 



 

7 
 

conditions and the projected water or energy savings.  This review will aid the 
Authorized Representative in making a determination that the period of the 
requested assessment does not exceed the useful life of the Qualified 
Improvement.   

 
j. Application Process.   The Authorized Representative will accept applications 

from property owners seeking to finance Qualified Improvements under the 
program.  Each application must be accompanied by the required application fee 
and must include:  

(1) A description of the specific Qualified Improvements to be installed or 
modified on the property,  
(2) A description of the specific real property to which the Qualified 
Improvements will be permanently fixed, and  
(3) The total amount of financing, including any transaction costs, to be 
repaid through assessments.  

 
Based on this information, the Authorized Representative may issue a preliminary 
letter indicating that, subject to verification of all requirements at closing, the 
proposed project appears to meet program requirements.  Based on this 
preliminary letter, the property owner may initiate an independent third-party 
review of the project and submit the project to Eligible Lenders for approval of 
financing.   
 
Once the above processes are completed, the property owner will submit the 
application to the Authorized Representative to obtain preliminary approval.  The 
property owner is expected to produce the following documentation prior to 
closing on the PACE loan:  

(1)  A Report conducted by a qualified, independent third-party reviewer, 
showing water or energy baseline conditions and the projected water or 
energy savings, or the amount of renewable energy generated attributable 
to the project;  
(2) Such financial information about the owner and the property as the 
lender chosen by the owner deems necessary to determine that the owner 
has demonstrated the financial ability to fulfill the financial obligations to 
be paid through assessments; and  
(3) All other information required by the Authorized Representative.   

 
k. Financial Eligibility Requirements.    The Authorized Representative will 

determine whether the owner, the property and the improvements are eligible for 
financing under the program.  The Eligible Lender chosen by the owner will 
determine whether the owner has demonstrated the financial ability to repay the 
financial obligations to be collected through contractual assessments.  The 
statutory method9 for ensuring such a demonstration of financial ability must be 
based on appropriate underwriting factors, including the following:  

 
9  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.009(b). 



 

8 
 

(1) verification that the person requesting to participate in the program is 
the legal record owner of the benefitted property,  
(2) the applicant is current on mortgage and property tax payments,  
(3) the applicant is not insolvent or in bankruptcy proceedings,  
(4) the title of the benefitted property is not in dispute; and  
(5) there is an appropriate ratio of the amount of the assessment to the 
assessed value of the property.  The Local Government determines that it 
will follow the Texas PACE in a Box model program recommendation for 
determining the appropriate loan to assessed value of the property.  
 
The Local Government determines to be eligible for PACE financing, the 
projected savings derived from the Qualified Improvement must be greater 
than the cost of the PACE assessment and lien over the life of the 
assessment (i.e., the Savings to Investment Ratio (SIR) should be greater 
than one, SIR>1). A third-party lender and a for profit-property owner 
may request a waiver in writing for a project with an SIR < 1 and address 
the interests of tenants and future property owners.  The Authorized 
Representative may consider factors in a variance request including:  

(a). Are there other environmental benefits such as air or water 
quality or resiliency that are not captured in the SIR analysis;   
(b) Will the proposed qualifying improvements generate 
environmental marketable credits that can be monetized?  
(c). What is the SIR calculation for the project (how far below 1?); 
(d). If the SIR is < 1 over the term of the assessment, is the SIR > 1 
over the useful life of the equipment? 
(e). What is the impact of a variance request on affected third 
parties? and  
(f) Other information the owner and lender wish to submit 
regarding the impact of the qualified improvements on the 
company and the community.  

 
l. Mortgage Holder Notice and Consent.   As a condition to the execution of a 

written contract between the Authorized Representative and the property owner 
imposing an assessment under the program, the holder of any mortgage lien on 
the property must be given notice of the owner’s intention to participate in the 
program on or before the 30th day before the date the contract is executed, and 
the owner must obtain the written consent of all mortgage holders.10   

 
m. Imposition of Assessment.   The Authorized Representative will enter into a 

written contract with the property owner, only after:  
(1) The property owner delivers to the Authorized Representative written 
consent of all mortgage lien holders;  
(2) The Authorized Representative’s determination that the owner and the 
property are eligible to participate in the program, that the proposed 
improvements are reasonably likely to decrease energy or water 

 
10  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.010. 



 

9 
 

consumption or demand, and that the period of the requested assessment 
does not exceed the useful life of the Qualified Improvements; and  
(3) The Eligible Lender notifies the Authorized Representative that the 
owner has demonstrated the financial ability to fulfill the financial 
obligations to be repaid through contractual assessments.    

 
The contract will impose a contractual assessment on the owner’s Eligible 
Property to repay the lender’s financing of the Qualified Improvements.  The 
Authorized Representative will file “A Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien,” 
in substantially the form in Exhibit 4 in the Official Public Records of the County 
in which the property is located, as notice to the public of the assessment, from 
the date of filing.  The contract and the notice must contain the amount of the 
assessment, the legal description of the property, the name of the property owner, 
and a reference to the statutory assessment lien provided under the PACE Act.  

 
n. Collection of Assessments.   The execution of the written contract between the 

Local Government and the property owner and recording of the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien incorporate the terms of the financing documents 
executed between the property owner and with the lender to repay the financing 
secured by the assessment. The third-party lender will advance financing to the 
owner, and the terms for repayment will be such terms as are agreed between the 
lender and the owner.  Under the form lender contract attached as Exhibit 3, the 
lender or a designated servicer will agree to service the debt secured by the 
assessment.11  

 
With funds from the lender, the property owner can purchase directly the 
equipment and materials for the Qualified Improvement and contract directly, 
including through lease, power purchase agreement, or other service contract, for 
the installation or modification of the Qualified Improvements. Alternatively, the 
lender may make progress payments to the property owner as the Qualified 
Improvement is installed.  
 
The lender will receive the owner’s assessment payments to repay the debt and 
remit to the Authorized Representative any administrative fees.  The lender will 
have the right to assign or transfer the right to receive the installments of the debt 
secured by the assessment, provided all of the following conditions are met: 

(1)  The assignment or transfer is made to an Eligible Lender, as defined 
above; 
(2)  The property owner and the Authorized Representative are notified in 
writing of the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of 
the future installments should be mailed at least 30 days before the next 
installment is due according to the schedule for repayment of the debt; and 

 
11  The servicer will be responsible for maintaining payment records, account balances, and reporting to the 
Authorized Representative as required.  



 

10 
 

(3)  The assignee or transferee, by operation of the financing documents or 
otherwise, written evidence of which shall be provided, assumes lender’s 
obligations under the lender contract. 

 
o. Verification Review.   After a Qualified Improvement is completed, the 

Authorized Representative will require the property owner to provide 
verification by a qualified independent third-party reviewer that the Qualified 
Improvement was properly completed and is operating as intended.12 The 
verification report conclusively establishes that the improvement is a Qualified 
Improvement and the project is qualified under the PACE program.13 

 
p. Marketing and Education Services.   The Program Administrator will provide 

service provider training workshops for contractors, engineers, property 
managers and other stakeholders, provide outreach and education for all 
stakeholders including presentations, conference booths and individual meetings, 
and provide written and electronic materials such as case studies, flyers, and 
webinars.  

 
q. The Local Government may subsequently enter into agreements with one or 

more other local governments or non-profit organizations that promote energy 
and water conservation and/or economic development to provide marketing and 
education services for the PACE program.  

 
r. Quality Assurance and Antifraud Measures.   The Authorized Representative 

will institute quality assurance and antifraud measures for the Program.  The 
Authorized Representative will review each PACE application for completeness 
and supporting documents through independent review and verification 
procedures.  The application and required attachments will identify and supply 
the information necessary to ensure that the property owner, the property itself, 
and the proposed project all satisfy PACE program underwriting and technical 
standard requirements.  Measures will be put in place to provide safeguards, 
including a review of the energy and water savings baseline and certification of 
compliance with the technical standards manual from an independent third-party 
reviewer (ITPR), who must be a registered professional engineer, before the 
project can proceed.  This review will include a site visit, report, and a letter 
from the ITPR certifying that he or she has no financial interest in the project and 
is an independent reviewer. After the construction of the project is complete, an 
ITPR will conduct a final site inspection and determine whether the project was 
completed and is operating properly. The reviewer’s certification will also 
include a statement that the reviewer is qualified and has no financial interest in 
the project. 

 

 
12  TX Local Gov’t Code §399.011. 
13  TX Local Government Code §399.011(a-1) 



 

11 
 

s. Delinquency.   Under the terms of the form lender contract attached as Exhibit 3, 
if a property owner fails to pay an agreed installment when due on the PACE 
assessment, the lender will agree to take at least the following steps to collect the 
delinquent installment:  

(1)  Mail to the owner a written notice of delinquency and demand for 
payment by both certified mail (return receipt requested) and first-class 
mail, and  
(2)  Mail to the owner a second notice of delinquency and demand for 
payment by both certified mail (return receipt requested) and first-class 
mail, at least 30 days after the date of the first notice if the delinquency is 
continuing.  

 
If the owner fails to cure the delinquency within 30 days after mailing the second 
notice of delinquency, the lender may notify the Authorized Representative of the 
owner’s default. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 399.014(c), 
the Authorized Representative will initiate steps for the Local Government to 
enforce the assessment lien in the same manner as a property tax lien against real 
property may be enforced, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 
50, Article XVI, of the Texas Constitution.  Delinquent installments will incur 
penalties and interest in the same manner and at the same rate as delinquent 
property taxes, according to Texas Local Government Code Section 399.014(d), 
and such statutory penalties and interest will be due to the Local Government to 
offset the cost of collection.   
 
If the Local Government files suit to enforce collection, the Local Government 
may also recover costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, in a suit to collect 
a delinquent installment of an assessment in the same manner and at the same rate 
as in suit to collect a delinquent property tax.  If a delinquent installment of an 
assessment is collected after the filing of a suit, the Local Government will remit 
to the lender the net amount of the delinquent installments and contractual interest 
collected and remit to the Authorized Representative the amount of any 
administrative fees collected but will retain any statutory penalties, interest, and 
attorney’s fees collected.     



 

12 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

MAP OF LUBBOCK CITY PACE REGION  

 

 

  



 

13 
 

EXHIBIT 2 

FORM OWNER CONTRACT 

 

  



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

1 

 

FORM PACE OWNER CONTRACT  
 

 
  
 

THIS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (“PACE”) OWNER CONTRACT 
including the attached exhibits (“Owner Contract”) is made as of the ________ day of 
_________, _______ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”), and ___________________________ (“Property Owner”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish a program 
and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an authorized 
representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the record owners of 
privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or more dwelling 
units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of permanent 
improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption or demand.  

B. Local Government has established a program under the PACE Act pursuant to a 
resolution dated _________________, adopted by the City Council  (“PACE Program”), and has 
designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority as the 
representative of Local Government (“Authorized Representative”) authorized to enter into the 
written contracts with the owners of such property and the providers of such financing described 
herein, and has designated the entire territory within the boundaries of the City of Lubbock, Texas 
as a region (the “Region”) within which the Authorized Representative and the record owners of 
such real property may enter into written contracts to impose assessments to repay the financing 
by owners of qualified improvements on the owners’ property pursuant to the PACE Program.   

C. Property Owner is/are the sole legal and record owner of the qualified “real 
property,” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the Region located at 
__________________, Lubbock, Texas _____-____ (the “Property”). 

D. Pursuant to Application number _______________, Property Owner has applied to 
Local Government to participate in the PACE Program by installing or modifying on the Property 
certain permanent improvements which are intended to decrease water or energy consumption or 
demand, and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified improvements”, as defined in 
Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (“Qualified Improvements”).  The installation or modification 
of such Qualified Improvements on the Property will be a “qualified project” as defined in Section 
399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Project”). Property Owner has requested that Local Government 
enter into this Owner Contract pursuant to the PACE Act and the PACE Program and has requested 
Local Government to impose an assessment (the “Assessment”) on the Property as set forth in the 
Notice Of Contractual Assessment Lien Pursuant To Property Assessed Clean Energy Act to be 
filed in the real property records of Lubbock, County, Texas (the “Notice of Contractual 
Assessment Lien”), to repay the financing of such Qualified Improvements.  A copy of the Notice 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

2 

of Contractual Assessment Lien is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof. The 
Property, Qualified Improvements and Assessment are more fully described in the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien.  

E. Financing for the Project (“Financing”) will be provided to Property Owner by 
___________________________ (“Lender”), a qualified lender selected by Property Owner, 
pursuant to a written contract executed by Lender and Local Government as required by Section 
399.006(c) of the PACE Act (the “Lender Contract”). The financing will include only those costs 
and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act.  
Local Government has agreed to maintain and continue the Assessment for the benefit of Lender 
until the Financing, all contractual interest due to Lender (“Contractual Interest”), any 
prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees, and costs due under or authorized by the 
PACE Act are paid in full and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such payment, 
or to foreclose the lien securing the Assessment for the benefit of Lender upon notice from Lender 
of a default in payment by Property Owner.   

F. As required by Section 399.010 of the PACE Act, Property Owner has notified the 
holder(s) of any mortgage liens on the Property at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of this 
Owner Contract of Property Owner’s intention to participate in the PACE Program.  The written 
consent of each mortgage holder to the Assessment was obtained on or prior to the date of this 
Owner Contract and is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.   

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Imposition of Assessment. In consideration for the Financing advanced or to be 
advanced to Property Owner by Lender for the Project under the PACE Program pursuant to the 
Lender Contract, Property Owner hereby requests and agrees to the imposition by Local 
Government of the Assessment in the principal amount of $_______________, as set forth in the 
Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  In the event the actual total of costs and fees for which 
an assessment may be imposed under the PACE Act is different from the stated amount or any 
other term requires correction, Local Government, Property Owner, and Lender agree to execute 
an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and Authorized Representative will record an 
amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  The Assessment includes the application and 
administration fees authorized by the PACE Program and Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act. 
Property Owner promises and agrees to pay the Assessment, Contractual Interest thereon, any 
prepayment penalty, and all penalties, interest, fees, and costs due under or authorized by the 
PACE Act and the financing documents executed between Property Owner and Lender (the 
“Financing Documents”) described in or copies of which are attached as Exhibit C attached 
hereto and made a part hereof by reference.  Property Owner will pay such amount in care of or as 
directed by Lender, in satisfaction of the Assessment imposed pursuant to this Owner Contract and 
the PACE Act.  Accordingly, Local Government hereby imposes the Assessment on the Property 
to repay the Financing of the Project, Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and any 
penalties, interest, fees and costs due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing 
Documents, in accordance with the requirements of the PACE Program and the provisions of the 
PACE Act.  



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

3 

2. Maintenance and Enforcement of Assessment.  In consideration for Lender’s 
agreement to advance Financing to Property Owner for the Project pursuant to the Financing 
Documents, Local Government agrees to maintain and continue the Assessment on the Property 
for the benefit of Lender until the Assessment, Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and 
any penalties, interest, fees, and costs, due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing 
Documents are paid in full, and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such 
payment. Local Government agrees to enforce the assessment lien against the Property at the 
request of Lender in the event of a default in payment by Property Owner, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in paragraph 5. Authorized Representative will deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner by electronic mail each year until the Assessment is released.  If 
requested by Property Owner by marking the box below, Local Government agrees to also deliver 
an annual notice of assessment to Property Owner by first-class mail in the envelope with the tax 
bill of the Property each year until the Assessment is released. 

☐ Property Owner requests an annual notice of assessment from Local Government.   

Any failure of Local Government or Authorized Representative to deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner will not affect the Assessment or Property’s Owner’s obligations 
under this Owner Contract.  

3. Installments. The Assessment and Contractual Interest thereon are due and payable 
to Lender in installments (“Installments”), according to the payment schedule set forth in the 
Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit C.  The Assessment includes (1) an application 
fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative at closing of the Financing, and (2) a 
recurring administration fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative until the 
Assessment is released.  The recurring administration fee amount will be collected by Lender and 
paid to Authorized Representative within thirty (30) days of receipt by Lender, unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Authorized Representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of 
a delinquency in the payment of any Installment, Lender will, upon notice to Authorized 
Representative, withhold payment of any administration fee due to Authorized Representative in 
connection with such Installment until the Installment is paid. Any such temporary withholding 
will not reduce the amount of the administration fees included in the Assessment. The amounts 
due to Authorized Representative are identified in Exhibit C hereto. When the Assessment, 
Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees and costs due under 
or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing Documents, have been paid in full, Local 
Government’s rights under this Owner Contract will cease and terminate. Upon notice from Lender 
that all amounts due have been paid in full, Authorized Representative will execute a release of 
the Assessment and this Owner Contract and record the release. As required by Section 399.009(a) 
(8) of the PACE Act, the period during which such Installments are payable does not exceed the 
useful life of the Project.   

4. Assignment of Right to Receive Installments or Require Enforcement of Lien.  
Lender will have the right, with or without the consent of Property Owner, to assign or transfer the 
right to receive the Installments or require Local Government to enforce the assessment lien in the 
event of a default in payment, together with all corresponding obligations, provided that all of the 
following conditions are met: 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

4 

(a) The assignment or transfer is made to a qualified lender as defined in the 
Lender Contract; 

(b) Property Owner and Authorized Representative are notified in writing of 
the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of the future Installments 
should be mailed at least 30 days before the next Installment is due according to the 
payment schedule included in the Financing Documents, and 

(c) The assignee or transferee executes a written assumption agreement 
according to the Financing Documents of all of Lender’s rights and obligations under the 
Lender Contract related to the receipt of the Installments or the enforcement of the 
assessment lien and provides a copy of such assumption to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative within 10 days after execution of the agreement.   

Lender may assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or the right to require 
enforcement of the assessment lien separately. Upon written notice to Property Owner and 
Authorized Representative of an assignment or transfer that meets all of these conditions, the 
assignor will be released of all of the rights and obligations of the Lender under such Lender 
Contract accruing after the date of the assignment that are specified in the assignment or transfer 
document, and all of such rights and obligations will be assumed by and transferred to the assignee.  
Any attempt to assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or require enforcement of the 
assessment lien that does not meet all of these conditions is void.  Lender will retain all of the 
rights and obligations of Lender under the Lender Contract until such rights and obligations are 
assigned or transferred according to this paragraph.  

5. Lien Priority and Enforcement. Pursuant to Section 399.014 of the PACE Act: 

(a) Delinquent Installments will incur penalties and interest on the principal of 
the Installment in the same manner and in the same amount as delinquent property taxes, 
that is, a delinquent Installment incurs a penalty of 6% of the principal amount of the 
Installment for the first calendar month it is delinquent plus 1% for each additional month 
or portion of a month the Installment remains unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in which it 
becomes delinquent.  However, an Installment delinquent on July 1 incurs a total penalty 
of 12% of the principal amount of the delinquent Installment without regard to the number 
of months it has been delinquent. A delinquent Installment will also accrue interest on the 
principal of the Installment at the rate of 1% for each month or portion of a month that the 
Installment remains unpaid. Subject to paragraph 16 below, penalties, interest, fees, and 
costs payable under this paragraph will be retained by Local Government to compensate it 
for the cost of enforcing the Assessment. Additional interest at any default rate imposed by 
Lender pursuant to the Financing Documents, along with any other fees that become due 
pursuant to the Financing Documents, may be imposed and retained by Lender.  

(b) The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon, 

(1) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which 
the Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

5 

of Lubbock County, Texas as provided by Section 399.013 of the PACE Act, until 
the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(2) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax.  

(c) The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to 
Section 399.014(b) of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet 
become due will not be eliminated by foreclosure of (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien 
for a delinquent installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the 
Property by Property Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s 
obligations under the Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner 
without recourse to Lender, Local Government, or Authorized Representative. 

(d) In the event of a default by Property Owner in payment of an Installment 
called for by the Financing Documents or the filing of a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code by or against Property Owner, the lien created by the Assessment will be enforced 
by Local Government for the benefit of Lender, in the same manner according to Texas 
Tax Code Secs. 33.41 to 34.23 that a property tax lien against real property may be enforced 
by a local government, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 50, Article 
XVI, Texas Constitution. 

(e) In a suit to collect a delinquent Installment of the Assessment, Local 
Government will be entitled to recover costs and expenses, including attorney's fees in the 
amount of 15% of the total principal amount of the delinquent Installment, penalties, and 
interest due, in the same manner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.48 as in a suit to 
collect a delinquent property tax. Lender will be entitled to any additional sums due to it 
under the Financing Documents in connection with a suit to collect a delinquent Installment 
of the Assessment. 

(f) As provided in Section 399.014 (a-1) of the PACE Act, after the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of the county in which 
the Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the 
basis that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a 
“qualified project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act. 

6. Written Contract Required by PACE Act. This Owner Contract constitutes a written 
contract for the Assessment between Property Owner and Local Government as required by 
Section 399.005 of the PACE Act. The Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien will be recorded in 
the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas as public notice of the contractual Assessment, 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 399.013 of the PACE Act. 

7. Qualified Improvements.  Property Owner agrees that all improvements purchased, 
constructed, or installed through the Financing obtained pursuant to this Owner Contract will be 
permanently affixed to the Property and will transfer with the Property to the transferee in the 
event of a sale or transfer of the Property.  Property Owner agrees to provide to Authorized 
Representative within 30 days after the completion of the Project a verification by an independent 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

6 

third party reviewer (“ITPR”) that the project was properly completed and is operating as intended.  
Property Owner agrees that Lender may retain the final advance of Financing until such 
verification is submitted or require Property Owner to pay liquidated damages for a failure to do 
so, according to paragraph 19 below. 

8. Water or Energy Savings.  For so long as the Assessment encumbers the Property, 
Property Owner agrees, on or before January 31st of each year, to report to Authorized 
Representative the water or energy savings realized through the Project in accordance with the 
reporting requirements established by Authorized Representative.   

9. Construction and Definitions.  This Owner Contract is to be construed in 
accordance with and with reference to the PACE Program and PACE Act. Terms used herein and 
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Program and/or the 
PACE Act. 

10. Binding Effect. This Owner Contract is binding upon and inures to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns. 

11. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices and other 
communications required or permitted by this Owner Contract shall be in writing and delivered by 
first-class mail or by electronic mail, addressed to the other party at the address stated below the 
signature of such party or at such other address as such party may from time to time designate in 
writing to the other party, and shall be effective from the date of receipt. 

12. Governing Law.  This Owner Contract shall in all respects be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.   

13. Entire Agreement.  This Owner Contract constitutes the entire agreement between 
Local Government and Property Owner with respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be 
amended or altered in any manner except by a document in writing executed by both parties. 

14. Captions.  Paragraph and section titles are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not be of any legal effect.   

15. Counterparts.  This Owner Contract may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart may be delivered on paper or by electronic transmission, all of 
which when taken together will constitute one agreement binding on the parties, notwithstanding 
that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 

16. Interest.  Interest and penalties in the event of default, as provided above, are 
explicitly authorized by Section 399.014(d) of the PACE Act.  However, in no event will the total 
amount of interest on the Assessment, including statutory interest payable to Local Government 
and Contractual Interest payable to Lender under the Financing Documents, exceed the maximum 
amount or rate of nonusurious interest that may be contracted for, charged, or collected under 
Texas law (the “usury limit”). If the total amount of interest payable to Local Government and 
Contractual Interest payable to Lender exceeds the usury limit, the interest payable to Local 
Government will be reduced and any interest in excess of the usury limit will be credited to the 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

7 

amount payable to Local Government or refunded. This provision overrides any conflicting 
provisions in this Owner Contract.  

17. Costs.  No provision of this Owner Contract will require Local Government to 
expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of 
its duties hereunder.   

18. Further Assurances.  Property Owner further covenants and agrees to do, execute 
and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, and delivered all such further acts for implementing the 
intention of this Owner Contract as may be reasonably necessary or required. 

19. Construction Terms.  The Financing Documents executed by Lender and Property 
Owner must include a requirement that Lender will withhold ______% of the Financing until 
verification that the Project was properly completed and is operating as intended is provided to 
Authorized Representative by an Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR), or Property Owner 
will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day after 30 days following 
completion of the Project that such verification of completion is not provided. If verification of 
completion is not provided by Property Owner within 30 days after completion of the Project, such 
verification shall be submitted by Lender.  If the Lender Contract includes requirements related to 
the construction of the Project and disbursement of Financing, such requirements are set forth in 
Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such requirements may include, 
among other things, (1) the disbursement schedule and (2) any holdback amount to be funded 
following verification of final project completion. 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE OWNER CONTRACT [1 OF 2] 

 
 

 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  
 
      
____________________________________  
 
 
 
By:        

  
      
    
 
      
  
 
 

Email address:  _______________________ 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ________  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Owner Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was  
acknowledged before me on ______________, ________ by ____________________________, 
_____________________________, on behalf of ________________. 

 
 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ________ 

 
 
 

Name:   

Title:   

Address:   

   



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE OWNER CONTRACT [2 OF 2] 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 

 
CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
 
 
By: TEXAS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
By: _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Email Address:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF _________ § 

This PACE Owner Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on  ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, Texas 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 
 

 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 

 
 

 
 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



 

 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN  
PURSUANT TO  

PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 
  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT B 
 

MORTGAGE HOLDER(S) CONSENT  
 

  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT C 
 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 
 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  
      
 Assessment Total:   
 Payment Frequency:   
    
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
Financing Documents 

 
Document Title Parties Date Executed 

   
 
  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT D 

CONSTRUCTION TERMS 

Retainage or Liquidated Damages:  
 
Lender will retain _________% of the Financing until a report of completion by a qualified 
Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR”) is provided to Authorized Representative. 
 
OR 
 
Property Owner will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day 
after 30 days following completion of the Project that such a report of completion is not 
provided.  Lender will then provide the report of completion to Authorized Representative. 

  

Additional Construction Terms 
 

Date 
Draw down 

Amount 
Purpose 

   

   

   

   

   

 



 

14 
 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

FORM LENDER CONTRACT  

 

 

 

 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

1 

 

FORM PACE LENDER CONTRACT 
 

 

THIS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (“PACE”) LENDER CONTRACT 
including the attached exhibits (“Lender Contract”) is made as of the _________ day of 
___________, ________, (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”) and ________________________ (“Lender”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish a program 
and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an authorized 
representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the record owners of 
privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or more dwelling 
units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of permanent 
improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption or demand.  

B. Local Government has established a program under the PACE Act pursuant to a 
resolution dated ______________, adopted by the City Council (“PACE Program”), and has 
designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority as the 
representative of Local Government (“Authorized Representative”) authorized to enter into the 
written contracts with the owners of such property and the providers of such financing described 
herein, and has designated the entire territory within the boundaries of the City of Lubbock, Texas 
jurisdiction as a region (the “Region”) within which the Authorized Representative and the record 
owners of such real property may enter into written contracts to impose assessments to repay the 
financing by owners of qualified improvements on the owner’s property pursuant to the PACE 
Program.  

C. Pursuant to Application number ________________, ______________________ 
(“Property Owner”), the sole legal and record owner of the following qualified “real property,” 
as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the Region has/have applied to Local 
Government to participate in the PACE Program with respect to certain real property located at 
_____________________, Lubbock, Texas, _____-____ (the “Property”) by installing or 
modifying on the Property certain permanent improvements which are intended to decrease water 
or energy consumption or demand, and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified 
improvements”, as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (“Qualified Improvements”). 
The installation or modification of such Qualified Improvements on the Property will be a 
“qualified project” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Project”).  

D. Property Owner and Local Government have entered into a written contract as 
required by Section 399.005 of the PACE Act, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
made a part hereof (the “Owner Contract”), in which Property Owner has requested that Local 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

2 

Government impose an assessment (the “Assessment”) on the Property as set forth in the Notice 
Of Contractual Assessment Lien Pursuant To Property Assessed Clean Energy Act to be filed in 
the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas (the “Notice of Contractual Assessment 
Lien”), to repay the financing of such Qualified Improvements. A copy of the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is attached as Exhibit A to the Owner Contract and made a part 
hereof.  The Property, Qualified Improvements, and Assessment are more fully described in the 
Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  

E. Financing for the Project (“Financing”) will be provided to Property Owner by 
Lender in accordance with financing documents which are described in or copies of which are 
attached as Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Financing Documents”). Such 
Financing will include only those costs and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under 
Section 399.006 (e) of the PACE Act. This Lender Contract is entered into between Local 
Government and Lender as required by Section 399.006(c) of the PACE Act to provide for 
repayment of the Financing through the Assessment.  

F. As required by Section 399.010 of the PACE Act, Property Owner has notified the 
holder(s) of any mortgage liens on the Property at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the 
Owner Contract of Property Owner’s intention to participate in the PACE Program.  The written 
consent of each mortgage lien holder to the Assessment was obtained on or prior to the date of the 
Owner Contract, as shown by the copy of such consent(s) attached as Exhibit B to the Owner 
Contract.   

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Maintenance and Enforcement of Assessment.  Lender agrees to provide Financing 
for the Project in the total principal amount of $_______________, according to the terms set out 
in the Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit B.  In the event the actual total of costs and 
fees for which an assessment may be imposed under the PACE Act is different from the stated 
amount or any other term requires correction, Local Government, Property Owner, and Lender 
agree to execute an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and Authorized Representative 
will record an amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien. In consideration for the Financing 
provided or to be provided by Lender for the Project, and subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Lender Contract, Local Government agrees to maintain and continue the Assessment for the 
benefit of Lender until the Assessment, all contractual interest due to Lender according to the 
Financing Documents (“Contractual Interest”), any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, 
interest, fees, or costs due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing Documents are 
paid in full, and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such payment.  Local 
Government will not release, sell, assign or transfer the Assessment or the lien securing it without 
the prior written consent of Lender. Local Government agrees to enforce the assessment lien 
against the Property at the request of Lender in the event of a default in payment by Property 
Owner in accordance with the provisions set forth in paragraph 6. Local Government shall have 
no obligation to repurchase the Assessment and no liability to Lender should there be a default in 
the payment thereof or should there be any other loss or expense suffered by Lender or under any 
other circumstances. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

3 

2. Installments.  The Assessment and Contractual Interest thereon are due and payable 
to Lender in installments (“Installments”) according to the payment schedule set forth in the 
Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Assessment includes (1) an application 
fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative at closing of the Financing and (2) a 
recurring administration fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative until the 
Assessment is released. The recurring administration fee amount will be collected by Lender and 
paid to Authorized Representative within thirty (30) days of receipt by Lender, unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Authorized Representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of 
delinquency in the payment of any Installment, Lender will, upon notice to Authorized 
Representative, withhold payment of any amounts due to Authorized Representative in connection 
with such Installment until the Installment is paid.  Any such temporary withholding will not 
reduce the amount of administration fees included in the Assessment. The amounts due to 
Authorized Representative are identified in Exhibit B hereto. As required by Section 399.009(a)(8) 
of the PACE Act, the period during which such Installments are payable does not exceed the useful 
life of the Project.  

3. Assignment of Right to Receive Installments or Require Enforcement of Lien.  
Lender will have the right, with or without the consent of Property Owner, to assign or transfer the 
right to receive the Installments or require Local Government to enforce the assessment lien in the 
event of a default in payment, together with the corresponding obligations, provided that all of the 
following conditions are met: 

(a) The assignment or transfer is made to a qualified lender, which may be one 
of the following:  

(1) Any federally insured depository institution such as a bank, savings 
bank, savings and loan association and federal or state credit union; 

(2) Any insurance company authorized to conduct business in one or 
more states; 

(3) Any registered investment company, registered business 
development company, or a Small Business Administration small business 
investment company; 

(4) Any publicly traded entity; or 

(5) Any private entity that: 

(i) Has a minimum net worth of $5 million;  

(ii) Has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or 
commercial real estate lending (including multifamily lending), or has a lending 
officer that has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or 
commercial real estate lending; 

(iii) Can provide independent certification as to availability of 
funds; and 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

4 

(iv) Has the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, 
the bookkeeping and customer service work necessary to manage 
the assessment accounts  

(6) A financially stable entity, whether or not from the list 
above, with the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the 
obligations of this Lender Contract related to the receipt and accounting of 
the Installments or the enforcement of the assessment lien.   

(b) Property Owner and Authorized Representative are notified in writing of 
the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of the future Installments 
should be mailed at least 30 days before the next Installment is due according to the 
payment schedule included in the Financing Documents; and 

(c) The assignee or transferee executes a written assumption agreement 
according to the Financing Documents of all of Lender’s rights and obligations under this 
Lender Contract related to the receipt of the Installments or enforcement of the assessment 
lien and provides a copy of such assumption to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative within 10 days after execution of the agreement.  Lender may assign or 
transfer the right to receive the Installments or the right to require enforcement of the 
assessment lien separately. Upon written notice to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative of an assignment or transfer that meets all of these conditions, the assignor 
will be released of all of the rights and obligations of the Lender under this Lender Contract 
accruing after the date of the assignment that are specified in the assignment or transfer 
document, and all of such rights and obligations will be assumed by and transferred to the 
assignee. Any attempt to assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or to require 
enforcement of the assessment lien that does not meet all of these conditions is void. Lender 
will retain all of the rights and obligations of Lender under this Lender Contract until such 
rights and obligations are assigned or transferred according to this paragraph.  

4. Financing Responsibility. Lender assumes full responsibility for determining 
the financial ability of the Property Owner to repay the Financing and for advancing the funds as 
set forth in the Financing Documents and performing Lender’s obligations and responsibilities 
thereunder.  In the event the assessment lien on the Property is enforced by foreclosure as provided 
below, Lender will have no further obligations to Property Owner with respect to the Installments 
that were the subject of the foreclosure, but Lender will retain the rights to enforcement of the lien 
for any Installments that are not eliminated by the foreclosure, and the succeeding owner of the 
Property will be subject to such lien.  

5. Lien Priority and Enforcement. As provided in the Owner Contract and Section 
399.014 of the PACE Act:  

(a) Delinquent Installments will incur penalties and interest on the principal of 
the Installment in the same manner and in the same amount as delinquent property taxes, 
that is, a delinquent Installment incurs a penalty of 6% of the principal amount of the 
Installment for the first calendar month it is delinquent plus 1% for each additional month 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

5 

or portion of a month the Installment remains unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in which it 
becomes delinquent.  However, an Installment delinquent on July 1 incurs a total penalty 
of 12% of the principal amount of the delinquent Installment without regard to the number 
of months it has been delinquent. A delinquent Installment will also accrue interest on the 
principal of the Installment at the rate of 1% for each month or portion of a month that the 
Installment remains unpaid. Subject to paragraph 16 below, penalties, interest, fees, and 
costs payable under this paragraph will be retained by Local Government to compensate it 
for the cost of enforcing the Assessment.  Additional interest at any default rate imposed 
by Lender pursuant to the Financing Documents, along with any other fees and charges 
that become due pursuant to the Financing Documents may be imposed and retained by 
Lender.     

(b) The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon,  

(1) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which 
the Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records 
of Lubbock  County, Texas, as provided by Section 399.013 of the PACE Act, until 
the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(2) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax.  

(c) The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to 
Section 399.014(b) of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet 
become due will not be eliminated by foreclosure of (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien 
for a delinquent Installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the 
Property by Property Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s 
obligations under the Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner 
without recourse to Lender, Local Government or Authorized Representative 

(d) In the event of a default by Property Owner in payment of an Installment 
called for by the Financing Documents or the filing of a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code by or against Property Owner, the lien created by the Assessment will be enforced 
by Local Government for the benefit of Lender according to paragraph 6(c) below in the 
same manner according to Texas Tax Code Secs. 33.41 to 34.23 that a property tax lien 
against real property may be enforced by a local government, to the extent the enforcement 
is consistent with Section 50, Article XVI, Texas Constitution. 

(e) In a suit to collect a delinquent Installment of the Assessment, Local 
Government will be entitled to recover costs and expenses, including attorney's fees in the 
amount of 15% of the total principal amount of the delinquent Installment, penalties, and 
interest due, in the same manner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.48 as in a suit to 
collect a delinquent property tax. Lender will be entitled to any additional sums due to it 
under the Financing Documents in connection with a suit to collect a delinquent Installment 
of the Assessment. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

6 

(f) As provided in Section 399.014(a-1) of the PACE Act, after written notice 
of the Assessment is recorded in the real property records of the county in which the 
Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the basis 
that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a “qualified 
project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act.  

6. Servicing and Enforcement of Assessment.  

(a) Servicing.  The Installments and other amounts due under the Financing 
Documents will be billed, collected, received, and disbursed in accordance with the 
procedures set out in the Financing Documents. Lender or its designee will be responsible 
for all servicing duties other than those specifically undertaken by Local Government in 
this Lender Contract. Authorized Representative will deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner by electronic mail each year until the Assessment is 
released.  If requested by Property Owner in the Owner Contract, Local Government agrees 
to also send an annual notice of assessment to Property Owner by first class mail in the 
envelope with the tax bill of the Property each year until the Assessment is released.  
However, any failure of Local Government or Authorized Representative to deliver an 
annual notice of assessment to Property Owner will not affect the Assessment or Property 
Owner’s obligations under the Owner Contract.  

(b) Remittances.  Each of the parties covenants and agrees to promptly remit to 
the other party any payments incorrectly received by such party with respect to the 
Assessment after the execution of this Lender Contract. 

(c) Default and Enforcement.  In the event of a default in payment of any 
Installment according to the Financing Documents, Lender agrees to take at least the 
following steps to collect the delinquent Installment:  

(1) Mail a written notice of delinquency and demand for payment to the 
Property Owner by both certified mail, return receipt requested, and first class mail; 
and  

(2) Mail a second notice of delinquency to the Property Owner and the 
holder of any mortgage lien on the property by both certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and first-class mail at least 30 days after the date of the first notice if the 
delinquency is continuing.  

The holder of any mortgage lien on the property will have not less than a 30-day right to cure the 
delinquency by paying the amount of the delinquent installment.  If the Property Owner fails to 
cure the delinquency within 30 days after the mailing of the second notice of delinquency, Lender 
or its designee may notify Authorized Representative in writing of a default in payment by 
Property Owner.  Upon receipt of such notice and after doing its own due diligence, including 
delivering a notice of foreclosure to Freddie Mac not less than 30 days prior to the foreclosure if 
the mortgage lien is held by Freddie Mac, Authorized Representative will certify the default to 
Local Government, which will enforce the assessment lien for the benefit of Lender pursuant to 
Sec. 399.014(c) of the PACE Act, in the same manner as a property tax lien against real property 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

7 

may be enforced, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 50, Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution. However, if a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code is filed by or against Property 
Owner or if the enforcement of the assessment lien is prevented by the order of a court, Local 
Government will notify Authorized Representative and will file a proof of claim for the balance 
of the assessment, accrued interest and penalties, and all costs and expenses, including attorney’s 
fees, as authorized by Section 399.014 of the PACE Act.  Authorized Representative will notify 
Lender of the filing of the proof of claim.  Lender will not be required to mail a notice of 
delinquency to Property Owner or a notice of default to Local Government.  Lender will reimburse 
Local Government for any costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, required to file and 
present the claim.  

 (d)  Priority.  If the assessment lien is enforced by foreclosure or collected 
through a bankruptcy or similar proceeding, the assessment balance and any interest or 
penalties on the assessment will have the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax, pursuant to Sec. 399.014(a)(2) of the PACE Act. 
 

(e) Final Payment and Release.  When the Assessment, Contractual Interest,  
any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees, or costs due under or authorized 
by the PACE Act or the Financing Documents have been paid in full, Local Government’s 
rights under the Owner Contract will cease and terminate.  Upon notice from Lender that 
all amounts due have been paid in full, Authorized Representative will execute a release of 
the Assessment and the Owner Contract and record the release.  

(f) Limitations on Local Government’s Actions.  Without the prior written 
consent of Lender, Local Government will not enter into any amendment or modification 
of or deviation from the Owner Contract. Local Government or Authorized Representative 
will not institute any legal action with respect to the Owner Contract, the Assessment, or 
the assessment lien without the prior written request of Lender. 

(g) Limitations of Local Government’s Obligations.  Local Government 
undertakes to perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Lender Contract, 
and no implied duties on the part of Local Government are to be read into this Lender 
Contract. Local Government will not be deemed to have a fiduciary or other similar 
relationship with Lender. Local Government may request written instructions for action 
from Lender and refrain from taking action until it receives satisfactory written 
instructions. Local Government will have no liability to any person for following such 
instructions, regardless of whether they are to act or refrain from acting.  

(h) Costs.  No provisions of this Lender Contract will require Local 
Government to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance of any of its duties hereunder.   

7. Lender’s Warranties and Representations.  With respect to this Lender Contract, 
Lender hereby warrants and represents that on the date on which Lender executes this Lender 
Contract:  



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

8 

(a) Lender is a qualified lender under the PACE Program, as defined in 
paragraph 3(a) above, and is fully qualified under the PACE Program to enter into this 
Lender Contract and the Financing Documents;  

(b) Lender has independently and without reliance upon Local Government 
conducted its own credit evaluation, reviewed such information as it has deemed adequate 
and appropriate, and made its own analysis of the Owner Contract, the Project, and 
Property Owner’s financial ability to perform the financial obligations set out in the 
Financing Documents; and 

(c) Lender has not relied upon any investigation or analysis conducted by, 
advice or communication from, or any warranty or representation by Local Government, 
Authorized Representative, or any agent or employee of Local Government, express or 
implied, concerning the financial condition of the Property Owner or the tax or economic 
benefits of an investment in the Assessment. 

8. Written Contract Required by the PACE Act. This Lender Contract constitutes a 
written contract between Local Government and Lender, as required under Section 399.006 (c) of 
the PACE Act.  

9. Construction and Definitions.  This Lender Contract is to be construed in 
accordance with and with reference to the PACE Program and PACE Act. Terms used herein and 
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Program, and/or the 
PACE Act. 

10. Binding Effect. This Lender Contract is binding upon and inures to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns. 

11. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices and other 
communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and delivered by first-class 
mail or by electronic mail, addressed to the other party at the address stated below the signature of 
such party or at such other address as such party may from time to time designate in writing to the 
other party, and shall be effective from the date of receipt. 

12. Governing Law.  This Lender Contract shall in all respects be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  

13. Entire Agreement.  This Lender Contract constitutes the entire agreement between 
Local Government and Lender with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall not be amended 
or altered in any manner except by a document in writing executed by both parties. 

14. Captions.  Paragraph and section titles are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not be of any legal effect. 

15. Counterparts. This Lender Contract may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart may be delivered on paper or by electronic transmission, all of 
which when taken together will constitute one agreement binding on the parties, notwithstanding 
that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

9 

16. Interest.  Interest and penalties in the event of default, as provided above, are 
explicitly authorized by Section 399.014(d) of the PACE Act.  However, in no event will the total 
amount of interest on the Assessment, including statutory interest payable to Local Government 
and Contractual Interest payable to Lender under the Financing Documents, exceed the maximum 
amount or rate of nonusurious interest that may be contracted for, charged, or collected under 
Texas law (the “usury limit”). If the total amount of interest payable to Local Government and 
Contractual Interest payable to Lender exceeds the usury limit, interest payable to Local 
Government will be reduced and any interest in excess of the usury limit will be credited to the 
amount payable to Local Government or refunded. This provision overrides any conflicting 
provisions in this Lender Contract. 

17. Certification. Local Government certifies that the PACE Program has been duly 
adopted and is in full force and effect on the date of this Lender Contract.  Property Owner has 
represented to Lender and Local Government that the Project is a “qualified project” as defined in 
the PACE Program and Section 399.002 of the PACE Act.  The Assessment has been imposed on 
the Property as a lien in accordance with the PACE Owner Contract and the PACE Act.  Local 
Government has not assigned or transferred any interest in the Assessment or the PACE Owner 
Contract. 

18. Construction Terms.  The Financing Documents executed by Lender and Property 
Owner must include a requirement that Lender will withhold  ______% of the Financing until 
verification that the Project was properly completed and is operating as intended is provided to 
Authorized Representative by an Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR), or Property Owner 
will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day after 30 days following 
completion of the Project that such verification of completion is not provided. If verification of 
completion is not provided by Property Owner within 30 days after completion of the Project, such 
verification shall be submitted by Lender. If this Lender Contract includes any additional 
requirements related to construction of the Project and disbursement of Financing, such 
requirements are set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such 
requirements may include, among other things, (1) the disbursement schedule and (2) any holdback 
amount to be funded following verification of final project completion.   

 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE LENDER CONTRACT [1 OF 2] 

 
 
LENDER:  
 
      
____________________________________  
 
 
 
By:        

  
      
    
 
      
  
 
 

Email Address: _______________________ 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ________  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Lender Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on ______________, ________ by ____________________________, 
_____________________________, on behalf of ________________. 

 
 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name:   

Title:   

Address:   

   



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE LENDER CONTRACT [2 OF 2] 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
By: TEXAS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
By: _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 
Email Address:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Lender Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, Texas 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 

 
 _________________________________________  
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 

 
 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



 

 

 
LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT A 

 
OWNER CONTRACT 

  



 

 
 

LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT B 
 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 
 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  
      
 Assessment Total:   
 Payment Frequency:   
    
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
 

Financing Documents 
 

Document Title Parties Date Executed 

   

 
  



 

 
 

LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT C 

CONSTRUCTION TERMS 

 
Retainage or Liquidated Damages:  
 
Lender will retain _________% of the Financing until a report of completion by a qualified 
Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR”) is provided to Authorized Representative. 
 
OR 
 
Property Owner will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day 
after 30 days following completion of the Project that such a report of completion is not 
provided.  Lender will then provide the report of completion to Authorized Representative. 
 

 

Date 
Draw down 

Amount 
Purpose 

   

   

   

   

   

 



 
 

15 
 

 
EXHIBIT 4 

FORM NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN  

PURSUANT TO PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 

 

 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

1 

 
FORM NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN 

PURSUANT TO  
PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local 
Government Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish 
a program and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an 
authorized representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the 
record owners of privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or 
more dwelling units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of 
permanent improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption 
or demand. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms used herein have the same 
meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Act. 

B. City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local Government”) has established a program under 
the PACE Act (“PACE Program”) pursuant to a resolution dated _____________, adopted by 
the City Council, and has designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba 
Texas PACE Authority, as the representative of Local Government (“Authorized 
Representative”) authorized to enter into and enforce the written contracts with the owners of 
such property and the providers of such financing described herein, and has designated the entire 
territory within the boundaries of  the City of Lubbock, Texas  as a region (the “Region”) within 
which the Authorized Representative and the record owners of such real property may enter into 
written contracts to impose assessments to repay the financing by owners of qualified 
improvements on the owners’ property pursuant to the PACE Program.   

C. _____________________ (“Property Owner”) is/are the sole legal and record 
owner of the qualified “real property,” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the 
Region located at  _____________, Lubbock, Texas _____-____ and more fully described in 
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”). 

D. Property Owner has applied to Local Government to participate in the PACE 
Program by installing or modifying on the Property certain permanent improvements described 
in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof, which are intended to decrease water or 
energy consumption or demand and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified 
improvements”, as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Qualified 
Improvements”).  The installation or modification of such Qualified Improvements on the 
Property will be a “qualified project” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the 
“Project”). Property Owner has entered into a written contract (the “Owner Contract”) with 
Local Government pursuant to the PACE Act and the PACE Program and has requested Local 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

2 

Government to impose an assessment on the Property to repay the financing of such Qualified 
Improvements. 

E. The financing of such Qualified Improvements will be provided to Property 
Owner by _____________________ (“Lender”), a qualified lender selected by Property Owner, 
pursuant to a written contract executed by Lender and Local Government as required by Section 
399.006(c) of the PACE Act  (the “Lender Contract”).  Lender will be responsible for all 
servicing duties other than those specifically undertaken by Local Government in the Lender 
Contract. 

THEREFORE, Local Government hereby gives notice to the public pursuant to Section 
399.013 of the PACE Act that it has imposed an assessment on the Property in the principal 
amount of $________________ (the “Assessment”).  The Assessment includes only those costs 
and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act.  
In the event that the actual total of costs and fees for which an assessment may be imposed is 
different from the amount stated or any other term requires correction, Local Government, 
Property Owner, and Lender will execute an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and 
Authorized Representative will record an amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien. 

The Assessment and contractual interest thereon due to the Lender (the “Contractual 
Interest”) are due and payable in installments (“Installments”) in accordance with the terms and 
payment schedule included in the financing documents executed between Property Owner and 
Lender that are described in or copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Financing 
Documents”). 

 Pursuant to Section 399.014 of the PACE Act,  

1. The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon,  

(i) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which this Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of Lubbock County, 
Texas, until the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(ii) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad valorem tax.   

2. The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to Section 399.014(b) 
of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet become due will not be 
eliminated by foreclosure of: (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien for a delinquent 
Installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the Property by Property 
Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s obligations under the 
Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner without recourse to 
Local Government, or Authorized Representative. 

As provided in Section 399.014(a-1) of the PACE Act, after this Notice of Contractual 
Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of the county in which the 
Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the basis 
that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a “qualified 
project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act. 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

3 

EXECUTED on _________________, _______. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  
 
CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
 
 
By:  Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

   Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
   By: _______________________________________________________ 
    
    
 

 
 
 
 

E-mail:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 
 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF _________ § 

This Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Act was acknowledged before me on ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, 
Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 

       
 
_______________________________ (print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 

 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

4 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 
  



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

5 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT B 

QUALIFIED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
 
  



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

6 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT C 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  

      

 Assessment Total:   

 Payment Frequency:   
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      
 

Financing Documents 
 

Document Title Parties Date Executed 
   



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

7 

INDEXING INSTRUCTION: 
 
Grantor:    ________________________, Property Owner 
Grantees:  ________________________, Local Government 
  ________________________, Lender 
 
After recording, return to-  Texas PACE Authority 
    Charlene Heydinger 
    PO Box 200368  
    Austin, TX  78720-0368 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0144, for Zone Case 2690-D, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment
District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a
Self-Storage Facility, at 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, West
End North Addition, Tract D1.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. The applicant requested a zone change to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use; however the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended a zone change to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific
Use instead. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of C-2 with Specific Use
for a Self-Storage Facility by a vote of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2690-D 
Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D 
Documentation Zone Case 2690-D 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  KWTHEM, LLC  

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 002535 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• April 14, 1994, Zone Case 2960: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) to High-

Density Apartment District (A-2) through Ordinance No. 009545.
• May 8, 2008, Zone Case 2690-A: This property was rezoned from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to

Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) through Ordinance No. 2008-O0044.
• July 27, 2021, Zone Case 2690-C: A zone change request from A-1 and C-3 to Interstate Highway

Commercial District (IHC) was denied by City Council.
• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 2690-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of

a zone change to C-2 Specific Use for self-storage tied to the sight plan, no windows facing west, by a
vote of 7-1-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 40
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The property to the north is zoned Family Apartment District (A-1) and is developed with townhomes. The 
property to the east is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with a commercial business. The 
property to the south is zoned Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and is vacant. The property to the west is 
zoned Single Family District (R-1) and is developed with residential homes.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2501 Iola Avenue and is located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, 
West End North Addition, Tract D1. The applicant requests a zone change from (A-1) and (C-3) to (C-3) Specific 
Use, with the intent to construct a self-storage facility. 

Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) 

General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use  

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements
The intent of the current A-1 zoning is “…to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The 
regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 
environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 
isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 
urban design.” 

The intent of the current and requested C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium 
activity centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares 
such as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 
planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 
will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Iola Avenue and 26th Street, which are both designated as Collectors 
by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial, 
and industrial areas. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for the development of a self-storage facility. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Residential High Density” land uses 
and notes that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity 
for C-3 Specific Use is appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan designates the surrounding properties 
for Residential High Density use. Although the C-3 Specific Use zoning is not consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan, it is appropriate next to the established commercial use to the east and the IHC zoning to the south.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-3 zoning district or the Specific Use for a self-storage facility. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us 

806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us



Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2690-D 

Allowable Uses: General Retail District (C-3) 

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from Iola Avenue, 26th Street and 

24th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Iola Avenue, 
Collector,  Not 

Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

26th Street, Collector, 
Not Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

24th Street, Collector, 
Not Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.2 Case 2690-D: AMD Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to General 

Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at:  

 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, West End
North Addition, Tract D1.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were forty (40) notifications sent out. There have been two (2) 

returned in favor and zero (0) in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL asked if the streets were reviewed for this location. Staff advised the Engineering 

Department is given the opportunity to review zone cases prior to the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing 

and no comments were made on this case. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked why they are requesting C-3 Specific Use instead of  C-2 Specific Use. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2690-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, explained why this request is coming back 

to the Commission and items proposed on the site plan including trees, brick walls, etc. There will be no windows 

facing west and he is open to visiting with the residents before moving forward if needed. 

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL wanted to make sure the applicant understands the setbacks for a multi-story 

development. 

OPPOSITION - JOE KJOSA 6310 22nd Street, advised he is against a self-storage facility in his neighborhood. There 

are already several. He feels like 24th and 26th Street may not be able to handle heavy traffic. He would like GRACO 

to find another use for the properties that would be better for the neighborhood. 

REPRESENTATIVE TYLER PARR 5307 W Loop 289 Suite 300, with GRACO, stated they could go to C-2 zoning instead 

of C-3 if needed.   

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2690-D a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by DAN WILSON to 

approve a zone change to C-2 with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility with conditions, and the Commission 

members voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion with the following conditions: 

1. Tied to the proposed site plan. 

2. No windows are allowed on the west side of the building. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JAMES BELL case the vote in opposition. 

 

 













2690-D 

 

  

View of the subject property to the east View of property to the north 

View of property to the south View of property to the west  

  





Example of proposed
residential facing wall
construction type

Example of climate controlled
multi-story self storage. No upper
level windows would face Iola Avenue.

Example of perimeter
trees with 29’ spacing







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0145, for Zone Case 2904-H, a
request of Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-Family District
(R-3) to IHC, at 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, and 310 Avenue Q,
located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts & McWhorter Addition, Block 3,
Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C and the north part of Tract D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3,
Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet of Lot 6.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2904-H 
Staff Report 2904-H 
Documentation 2904-H 







Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2904-H 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. 
 
Property Owner  Inn of South Plains, LLC 
 
Council District   1 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 21, 1909: This property was annexed through Ordinance V1 P12.  
• March 13, 1941: This property was zoned District C (Multi-Family District) through Ordinance 661. 
• April 14, 1949, Zone Case 84-A: A portion of this property was zoned from District C to District G (General 

Retail District) through Ordinance 907. 
• January 29, 1952, Zone Case 228: A portion of this property was zoned from District C to District H 

(Commercial District) through Ordinance 1174. 
• July 9, 1953, Zone Case 426: A portion of this property was zoned from District G and District H to District 

H through Ordinance 1422. 
• March 22, 2001, Zone Case 2904: A portion of this property was zoned from Commercial District (C-4) to 

Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) through Ordinance 2001-O0017. 
• September 2, 2021, Zone Case 2904-H: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change to IHC by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 27 
• Received In Favor: 6 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1909 and was developed with a hotel in 1955. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the north of the subject property is zoned C-4 and is developed with a tire shop. The properties 
to the east are zoned IHC and have been developed with auto service commercial buildings. Marsha Sharp 
Freeway is to the south, and the property further to the south are zoned Central Business District 5 (CB-5) and 
are developed with a restaurant and an office building. The properties to the west are zoned Multi-Family District 
(R-3) and are developed with residences.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, 310 
Avenue Q, and are located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q. The applicant requests to re-
zone the subject property from IHC, C-4, and R-3 to IHC. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-
Family District (R-3)  

 
Requested zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-3 zoning is “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 
land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 
and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land uses. 
When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned property, the 
proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development.” 
 
The intent of the current C-4 zoning is “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which serve 
a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or federal 
highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent residential 
areas should be carefully considered.” 
 
The intent of the current and proposed IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and 
wholesale uses which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent 
to residential areas.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along Avenue Q, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and 3rd Street, 
which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterial roads are designed 
for a higher intensity of traffic, while Local Streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at 
lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas 
(Comprehensive Plan, page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for these types of roads.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for a new hotel. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 
of intensity for a hotel is appropriate for this area, and IHC conforms to the Comprehensive Plan principles and 
Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the IHC zoning district. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Response Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documents 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-H 

Allowable Uses: Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway and 

Avenue Q.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway 

Freeway, Completed 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue Q 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3 Case 2904-H: Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), 

and Multi-Family District (R-3) to IHC, at:   

 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, 310 Avenue Q,
located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts & McWhorter
Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C and the north part of Tract
D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet of Lot 6.

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were twenty-seven (27) notifications sent out. There were six 

(6) returned in favor and zero (0) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including 

pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT JEREMY PETTIT 310 Avenue Q stated he can answer any questions regarding engineering. Questions 
were asked regarding discussion with staff on landscape, parking, building height, etc. He advised they will be 
asking for a variance on the north setback and building height. 

TOMMY MOJICA 3628 59th Street is not opposed to the case, but wanted to know if there will be a wall? His 
parents’ house is on Avenue R and he wants to know what will happen to the neighborhood facing the hotel? 
Once they demolish the existing hotel, how will they prevent the rats and roaches coming into their homes? 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised most traffic will come from Avenue Q and Marsha Sharp Freeway. 

Demolition is not fun, but the new finished product will be 10x better than what is there now. This use fits the 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001487


Zone Case 2904-H 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

corner well and there will likely be a screening wall around the perimeter towards the homes. There should be 

very little traffic on Avenue R.  

BOARDMEMBER AVIRAJ PATEL stated the brand on this site plan is intentioned for business travelers with 

extended stay.  

OPPOSITION - DAVID MOJICA 312 Avenue R, advised right now there is too much traffic and noise and wanted to 

know what will make it better? There are people walking back and forth at all hours of the night and you do not 

feel safe in the area. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated he is not sure anything will make traffic better, but the main entrance is 

not on Avenue R, so it may diminish the Avenue R traffic. Property values may go up, but the tax base should not. 

OPPOSITION - IAN MOJICJA, 2012 Avenue R, advised from Clovis Road to Marsha Sharp Freeway, Avenue R is a 

clear path. He asked what can be done to block that area and keep the Marsha Sharp Freeway traffic from going 

through there?  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated that needs to be discussed with Traffic Engineering. This board has no 

authority over that. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-H a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 













2904-H 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View north. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north. View of adjacent property. View west. 

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0136, for Zone Case 2904-I, a
request of Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway Commercial
District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center, at 5120 34th Street,
located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition, Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of
right-of-way. 

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2904-I 
Staff Report 2904-I 
Documentation 2904-I 









Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2904-I 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant  Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 
Property Owner   Isom Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 
Council District   3 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 15, 1949: This property was annexed and zoned District A (Single-Family District) through 
Ordinance 951. 

• August 25, 1950, Zone Case 0122: This property was zoned from District A to District F (Local Retail 
District) through Ordinance 1019. 

• April 6, 1955: This property was zoned from District F to General Retail District (C-3) through Ordinance 
1695. 

• March 22, 2001, Zone Case 2904: A portion of this property was zoned from C-3 to Interstate Highway 
Commercial (IHC) through Ordinance 1695. 

• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 2904-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
a zone change to IHC Specific Use by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 3 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1949 and was constructed with a commercial retail building in 1995. The 
building has been vacant for many years. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north, west and east are zoned Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and are developed 
with a mixture of commercial uses. The property to the south is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is 
developed with a shopping center.   
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 5120 34th Street and is located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway, east of Slide 
Road, and north of 34th Street, on 1.22 acres of land, on Tract A, Eckerd Addition. The applicant requests a zone 
change from C-3 and IHC to IHC Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center. 
 
Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC)   
 
Requested zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood 

Plasma Center 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is, “to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic.” 

The intent of the current IHC zoning is, “…provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.”  

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Marsha Sharp Freeway, Slide Road and 34th Street, with Marsha 
Sharp Freeway designated as a freeway, Slide Road designated as a Principal Arterial and 34th designated as a 
Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile 
traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances. The primary function of a freeway is to connect local areas 
to other regions, rather than serve local traffic needs. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the 
transportation network, so best practices are to consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 
that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for IHC with 
a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center is appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan 
designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use. The request is consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan and is appropriate next to the established commercial uses.   
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent and next 
to other commercial uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the IHC zoning district or for the Specific Use for a blood bank and blood plasma 
center. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map      
C Aerial Map 
D.  Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-2109 
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-I 

Allowable Uses: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway, 

Slide Road and 34th Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway, 
Freeway,    

Completed  

R.O.W. 330 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 330 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved 

Slide Road,     
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

34th Street, 
Minor Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.4 Case 2904-I: Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District 

(IHC) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood 

Plasma Center, at:  

 5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition,
Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were three (3) notifications sent out. There has been one (1) returned 
in support and none returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT LAURA PRATT 9002 Rochester Avenue, Attorney with Brady and Hamilton, advised she is representing 

the applicant and she is a former City Of Lubbock employee. This is a Specific Use for a Class A medical facility and 

blood plasma center. This property has been vacant for 7-8 years. Their client has been in the plasma industry for 

over 50 years and has a reputation for building state-of-the-art facilities. Plasma and other blood products have a 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001487
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2904-I 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 2 

huge shortage right now. This will be a $5-6 million development that will create 45-60 jobs and take 12-18 months 

to establish. It will have little to no impact on city services and will not create additional noise or other nuisances. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-I a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  







































   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0137, for Zone Case 3135-B, a
request of Westar Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a bar at 11824 Indiana Avenue, Suites #400
and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza Addition, Tract C. 

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3135-B 
Staff Report 3135-B 
Documentation 3135-B 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3135-B 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Westar Commercial Realty 

Property Owner   Tophat Operators, LLC 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• June 23, 2005: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance 2005-O0067.
• July 8, 2010, Zone Case 3135: This property was zoned from T to General Retail District (C-3) through

Ordinance 2010-O0051.
• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 3135-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission Recommended approval of

a zone change to C-4 Specific Use for a bar by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 8
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and developed with a shopping center. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the east and south are zoned General Retail District (C-3) and remain vacant. The property to 
the north is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with a shopping center. The property to the 
west is zoned High Density Apartment District (A-2) and is developed with an apartment complex.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 11824 Indiana Avenue Suite 400 and 500 and is located west of Indiana 
Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza, Tract C. The applicant requests a zone change from C-3 to C-4 
Specific Use for a bar. 

Current zoning: General Retail District (C-3)  

Requested zoning: Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the proposed C-4 zoning is, “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 
federal highways. 
 
The intent of the proposed Specific Use is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 
planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 
will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Indiana Avenue, with Indiana Avenue designated as a Principal 
Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation 
network, so best practices are to consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous routes whose 
function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 
that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for C-4 
Specific Use is appropriate for this area and is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. The Future Land Use 
Plan designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use and the proposed use is appropriate next to the 
established commercial uses.   
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-4 zoning district or the Specific Use for a bar. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map      
C Aerial Map 
D.  Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 
 

 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-2109 
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3135-B 

Allowable Uses: Commercial District (C-4)  

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has point of access from Indiana Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Partial  Arterial,  

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.6 Case 3135-B: Westar Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for 

a bar, at:  

 11824 Indiana Avenue, Suites #400 and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and
south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza Addition, Tract C.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were eight (8) notifications sent out. There was one (1) received in 
support and zero (0) in oppoition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and 

discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WADE AND SARAH CYPERT 4001 125th Street, advised they have a winery license with TABC and the 

location will have a front retail area, and they will serve wine with charcuterie boards. They are not a restaurant, 

but will have a wine dinner quarterly. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked if it would be similar to the Wine Nest. The applicant advised it would, but 

they will be more focused on wine and retail. They will sell wine products, meats and cheese, etc. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3135-B a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted  8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523












3135-B 

 

  

Subject property view to the west. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the north. 

  





Scale:  1/4" = 1'-0"

keynote floor plan
12

K
7

K9

K
1
6

K19

K19

K17

K
3
1

K
3
1

K20A K20AK20A

K
3
2

K
5
1

K
3
2

K
3
2

K
5
1

K32

K51

K
7

K
1
5

K
2
7

K34

K8

K8

K8

K8

K
3
1

K44 K44

K
2
0
A

K
3
2

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
2
0
A

K
2
0

K
2
0

K
2
0

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
2
0

COOK

BAR

WOMEN

MEN

PREP

DISH

CLEAN

PREPPREP

OFFICE

12
'-4

7 8"

15
'-5

"

10'-0"

21-11

issue:

sheet:

date:

project number:

F
O

R

11
8-

- 
In

di
an

a 
A

ve
nu

e,
 S

ui
te

 -
-,

 L
ub

bo
ck

, T
X

  7
94

23

--
-

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 R
E

G
U

L
A

T
O

R
Y

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L
, 

P
E

R
M

IT
T
IN

G
,

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

A1.0

802 ncr 1100

shallowater, texas

79363

cell: 806.543.7246

5.14.21 prelm

© 2017 - Grayson Harrist, Architect - All Rights Reserved





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 9.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0138, for Zone Case 3257-M, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and Rocket Partners I, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1) with a
Specific Use for Townhomes, generally located south of 137th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, on 3.4
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1. 

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3257-M 
Staff Report 3257-M 
Documentation 3257-M 











Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3257-M 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates 

 

Property Owner  Thomas Payne on behalf of 1585 Development LLC and Rocket Partners I 

LLC 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 18, 2014: The northern portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance 

number 2014-O0148 and Zoned Transition (T). 

 July 9, 2015, Zone Case 3257-A: The northern portion of this property was rezoned as Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks. 

 April 28, 2016: The southern portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance 2016-O0054 

and zoned Transition (T). 

 October 13, 2016, Zone Case 3257-B: The southern portion of the property was rezoned from 

Transitional (T) to Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks. 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3257-M: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 

approval of a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District 

(R-1) with a Specific Use for Townhomes by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 3 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The northern portion of the property was annexed in 2014 and the southern portion was annexed in 2016. 

Both properties have remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north, west, and south are unsubdivided vacant land zoned R-1 Specific Use. Property 

to the east is vacant land zoned T, which has been subdivided as residential lots. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are located south 137th Street and of west of Elgin Avenue. The applicant is 

requesting to rezone the subject properties from R-1 with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks to R-1 

with a Specific Use for Townhomes. 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks 

 

Requested zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes  



Intent Statements 

The intent of the current and proposed R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of 

single-family residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments 

from inharmonious and harmful land uses, and to provide a ‘quality environment’ for the residents of 

the district and city.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, 

provided the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The 

regulations require specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any 

variations of land uses or land use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the 

zoning ordinance” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is located to the south of 138th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, both of 

which are designated as collectors. Collector streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles 

operating at lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and 

industrial areas. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential” 

land uses. The proposed zone change to R-1 with a Specific Use for Townhomes is consistent with the 

designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to 

other existing residential areas.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses but may require additional public improvements to support 

the intensity of uses described in the R-1 zoning district. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and supporting documents 

 

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

ahenry@mylubbock.us                ksager@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3257-M 

 

Allowable Uses:   Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 138th Street and Elgin 

Avenue   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

138th Street 
Collector, Proposed 

R.O.W. 52 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Elgin Avenue 
Collector, Proposed 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.7 Case 3257-M: Hugo Reed and Associates for 1585 Development LLC and Rocket Partners I LLC  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1) with 

a Specific Use for Townhomes, at:  

 Generally located south of 137th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, on 3.4 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were three (3) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN 1601 Avenue N, Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc, explained this request is within the 

next phase in the Viridian development. It is located in the middle of the square mile of the entire development 

and they are proposing a row of townhomes. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3257-M a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted  8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001079










View of the subject property to the south View of property from the east

View of property to the north View of property to the west

3257-M









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 10.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0139, for Zone Case 3308-D, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Dreambuilt Homes, Inc., Bushland Springs, LLC, Bo Properties,
and HomeMakers Building Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single
Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A), at 7211 through 7224 23rd Street, located east of Upland
Avenue on the north and south sides of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs Addition, Lots 245-258, and 1.48
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43, located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue
and 26th Street. 

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3308-D 
Staff Report 3308-D 
Documentation 3308-D 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3308-D 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner  DreamBuilt Homes Inc, Bushland Springs LLC, Bo Properties, HomeMakers 

Building Group LLC 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 27, 1984: This property was annexed through Ordinance number 008660 and zoned Transition 

(T).  

 October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: The property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family District 

(R-1). 

 April 13, 2017, Zone Case 3308: The property was rezoned from Single-Family district (R-1) to Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks, Two-Family District (R-2) with a Specific 

Use for Reduced Setbacks, High-Density Apartment District (A-2), General Retail District (C-3), and 

Industrial Park District (IDP) 

 October 13, 2020, Zone Case 3308-B: The property was rezoned from Single-Family district (R-1) to Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks, Two-Family District (R-2) with a Specific 

Use for Reduced Setbacks, and Industrial Park District (IDP) to Single-Family District (R-1) and Two-Family 

District (R-2). 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3308-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A) by 

a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 14 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The property was annexed in 1984 and platted into 14 residential lots in May 2021. The properties are currently 

vacant.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Property to the north is vacant, zoned R-2, and platted as residential lots. Property to the east is vacant, zoned 

R-1 Specific Use, and also platted as residential lots. Property to the south is vacant, zoned R-2, and is 

unsubdivded. The property to the west is zoned Commercial District (C-4) and is developed with commercial 

retail. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are located south of 19th Street and east of Upland Avenue. The applicant is requesting 

to rezone the subject properties from R-1 to R-1A. 



Page 2 of 2 

Single-Family District (R-1)  

Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning and the proposed R-1A zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development 

of single-family residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from 

inharmonious and harmful land uses, and to provide a ‘quality environment’ for the residents of the district and 

city.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will have access from Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial 

in the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume 

needs of local traffic and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential”. The 

proposed zone change to R-1A is consistent with the designation and conforms to the principles of the 

Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

existing residential areas.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-1A zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2021 806-775-2109

ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3308-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Upland Avenue   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 85 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.8 Case 3308-D: AMD Engineering LLC for Dreambuilt Homes Inc, Bushland Springs LLC, Bo 

Properties, HomeMakers Building Group LLC 

Request for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks 

(R-1A), at: 

 7211 – 7224 23rd Street, located east of Upland Avenue on the north and south sides 
of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs Addition, Lots 245-258 and 1.48 acres of unplatted 
land out of Block AK, Section 43, located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue 
and 26th Street. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were fourteen (14) notifications sent out. There were zero (0) returned. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WESTIN MCCOWEN AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, was available to answer questions. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3308-D a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by DAN WILSON to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001093










View of the subject property to the south View of property from the east

View of property to the north View of property to the west

3308-D



ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION

EXHIBIT

to the City of Lubbock,

Lubbock County, Texas

100'0 50' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING

LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC

6515 68th Street, Suite 300

Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976

Fax: 806-771-7625
TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

SITE

LOCATION









HomeMakers Building Group LLC

Tim Roten Jr
4401-82nd St Suite 1500 Lubbock Tx

79424 806.392.2726 t.roten@builtbyhomemakers.com

07/28/2021 Tim Roten



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 11.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0140, for Zone Case 3443, a
request of Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments, for a zone change from Restricted
Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east of
Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 19.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3443 
Staff Report Zone Case 3443 
Documentation Zone Case 3443 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3443 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett 

Property Owner  JKLM Investments 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 8, 1977: Property was annexed through ordinance 007557 and zoned Transition (T).
• September 9, 1999, Zone Case 2849: Property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Restricted Local Retail

District (C-2A).
• September 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from

Restricted Local Retail (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 1977 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north is zoned Garden Office (GO) and is developed with offices. Property to the east is zoned T 
and is developed with single-family residences. Property to the south is zoned Restricted Local Retail District 
and is developed with an insurance office. Property to the west is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 
and is developed with a church. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located south 103rd Street and of east of Indiana Avenue. The applicant is requesting to 
rezone the property from C-2A to C-2. 

Current zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

Requested zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2A zoning and the proposed C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service 
commercial uses which serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing 
thoroughfares or at the intersections of major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is located south of 103rd Street and west of Indiana Avenue, which are designated 
as a Local Street and Principal Arterial respectively by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets typically 
provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business 
districts. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional 
traffic. Both of these streets can handle the traffic associated with the uses allowed in the C-2 district. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial”. The proposed zone 
change to C-2 is consistent with the designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and 
Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
existing commercial areas.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and does not require additional public improvements to support 
the intensity of uses described in the C-2 zoning district. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documents 

 
Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2021    806-775-2109 
ahenry@mylubbock.us                ksager@mylubbock.us  
  
 

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3443 

 

Allowable Uses:   Local Retail District (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Indiana Avenue 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.12 Case 3443: Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments  

Request for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at: 

 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 
0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 19. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were nineteen (19) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared 

the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANTS GREG GARRETT 3926 85th Place and DR. PIYUSH MITTAL 4709 130th Street want to have a UPS store 

at this location. They need the C-2 zoning due to the printing services that are provided by UPS stores. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.   

In the matter of Zone Case 3443 a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001256










3443 

 

  

 

View of the subject property to the north View of property from the east 

View of property to the south View of property to the west 

  





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 12.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0141, for Zone Case 3444, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and
south of 58th Street on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3444 (L) 
Staff Report Case 3444 
Documentation Case 3444 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3444 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  Escondido Lubbock LLC 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance

No. 010117.

 February 8, 2018: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance

No. 2018-O0024.

 March 26, 2018: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance No.

2018-O0049.

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3444: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 28

• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed between 1999 and 2018 and has since remained undeveloped and 

unsubdivided.  

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north is vacant and zoned Transition District (T). The property to the east is zoned T and 

developed with residences. The property to the west and south is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

and remains vacant. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street 

on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34. The applicant is requesting a zone change from T to 

R-2.

Transition District (T) 

Two-Family District (R-2) 

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements
The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 

until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 

increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 

high-density or non-residential districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial. Minor Arterial streets are continuous 

routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional traffic. Speeds are relatively high on arterial 

streets and handle high volumes of traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low-Density Residential”. While the 

R-2 district does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan designation, it is in conformance with existing zoning

and development in the area. R-2 zoning in this location does abide by the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendation

of “adequate buffering” between the existing single-family uses to the east and the A-2 uses to the west (Pgs.

56-57).

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses though it may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-2 zoning district as it is currently vacant. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Notification Map
C. Thoroughfare Plan Map

D. Aerial Map

E. Zoning Map

F. Future Land Use Map

G. Photos

H. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer   Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2103 806-775-2109

sspencer@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3444 

Allowable Uses: Two Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Upland Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue 
Minor Arterial 

(Modified), Partial 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.13 Case 3444: AMD Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock LLC 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at: 

 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street on
32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34.

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were twenty-eight (28) notifications sent out and one (1) received in 
favor and zero (0) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT NATHAN FLEMING AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street was available to answer any questions. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3444 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107












3444 
 
 

 

View of adjacent property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north.        View of subject property. View west. 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 13.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0142, for Zone Case 3445, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), located east of East Loop 289
and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3445 
Starr Report Case 3445 
Documentation Case 3445 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3445 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Hugo Reed & Associates, LLC 

Property Owner  Lubbock Economic Development Alliance 

Council District  2 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• August 10, 2021: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2021-O0093 and zoned Transition (T).
• September 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change case

from Transition (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 31
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 8 (Two total properties within notification boundary) 

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is vacant and has remained undeveloped since annexation. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north, east, and south is outside city limits. The properties to the north are occupied by some 
residential uses, two auto parts stores, and a Dollar General. To the south and east, properties are sparsely 
developed with residential or are vacant. To the west properties are developed with a mixture of manufacturing 
uses zoned Heavy Manufacturing (M-2).  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located east of East Loop 289 and south of East 4th Street on 407.3 acres of 
unplatted land. The applicant requests a zone change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District 
(M-2).  

Current zoning:  Transition District (T) 

Requested zoning: Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is, “… to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the requested M-2 zoning is, “… to provide for those uses defined as heavy industrial and/or 
manufacturing use which will or may produce off-site noise, odor, or dust. The regulations are designed to provide 
standards for proper on-site development and to protect the environmental quality of adjacent areas and the 
city in general.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along 19th Street and 4th Street, which are both designated as a Principal 
Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are intended to move high volumes of traffic at 
relatively high speeds. The current infrastructure is suitable for the requested zone change in this location. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area. M-2 zoning already exists directly to the 
west of the subject property. The property is also located along Principal Arterials and is just to the east of East 
Loop 289, which is designated as an expressway.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Low Density Residential uses. The proposed zone 
change to M-2 is not in conformance with the Future Land Use Map, however, there is already M-2 in this area 
and the property borders two Principal Arterials and is near an Expressway.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate in this location.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and may require additional public improvements. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information  
B. Thoroughfare Map 
C. Notification Map       
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H. Application and supporting documentation 
I.  Notification Replies 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-3147    806-775-2109 
bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3445 

Allowable Uses:  Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and 4th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Principal Arterial, Modified 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

4th Street 
Principal Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W 110 feet, two-lane 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.14 Case 3445: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2). 

 Generally located east of East Loop 289 and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of
unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6.

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were thirty-one (31) notifications sent out one (1) was received in 
support and eight (8) were received in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including 

pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN 1601 Avenue N, Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc, assisted LEDA in acquiring and 

annexing the property, so the City will get the tax dollars. The intent is to develop an industrial style park, so they 

are requesting to extend the existing M-2 from East Loop 289. M-2 zoning does not allow everything, and some 

uses still require approval of a Specific Use. The property abuts 4th Street and 19th Street and the agriculture use 

to the southeast is a City land application site for wastewater. All other abutting property is outside city limits, 

except for the M-2 zoning to the west.  

APPLICANT JOHN OSBORNE 8917 CR 6860, President and CEO of LEDA stated he is bound by a confidentiality 

agreement, but the proposed developments would be agriculture research and food manufacturing. There will 

not be heavy traffic. The manufacturing traffic would access the property from 19th Street, with a small amount 

of access off 4th Street. There could be an odor, but they do their best to ensure it is as odorless as possible. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated he appreciates what LEDA does for Lubbock and asked if there would be 

any pollutants, toxic issues, or noise issues.  Mr. Osborne stated there is no smelting process, just food 

manufacturing. He has toured one of their facilities and did not smell anything offensive. This company does their 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001453


Zone Case 3445 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

best to ensure they are good neighbors. If they do not win the project, they will search for other prospects, but 

they felt it necessary for the property to be inside city limits, in order to have the greatest impact.  

OPPOSITION - LILY HERNANDEZ 4617 East 4th Street stated her family is having a hard time understanding what 

type of development would be on this property. She is speaking on behalf of the Trevino – Hernandez household. 

On August 25th they were notified of this zone case and she spoke with the Planning Department, but found it 

hard to support the case with only minor details given. She requested information from Terry Holeman and John 

Osborne as well. She is concerned that M-2 provides opportunities for C-4 uses. She has lived in this area her 

entire life. Mrs. Hernandez went on to read a letter regarding her family’s history in the area as well as their 

concerns. 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3445 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 













3445 

 

Subject property. View to the north. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the west. 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 14.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0146, for Zone Case 3447, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, generally
located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres of unplatted land out of
Block JS, Section 6.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a 7-0-1
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3447 
Staff Report 3447 
Documentation 3447 















Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3447 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 
 

Property Owner  NWP EB-5 Project LLC 
 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958: This property was annexed and zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through Ordinance 

No. 002536. 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3447: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Self-

Storage Facility by a vote of 7-0-1. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 5 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped and unsubdivided.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and east are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and are currently vacant. To the west is a 

mix of Local Retail District (C-2), Transition District (T), and R-1. There are some homes developed outside city 

limits. To the south is property zoned High-Density Apartment (A-2) which is developed with a church. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. The applicant is requesting a zone change from R-1 to C-3 Specific Use 

for a Self-Storage Facility. 
 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) 
 

Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for Self-Storage Facility 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “… to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 

residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 

and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 

This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 

principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 

planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 

will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial. Minor Arterial streets are 

continuous routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional traffic. Speeds are relatively high 

on arterial streets and handle high volumes of traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low-Density Residential”. While the 

C-3 Specific Use district does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan designation, it is in conformance with 

existing zoning and development in the area. The Specific Use for a self-storage facility would be appropriate 

nearby to residential uses and along a thoroughfare.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses though it may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the C-3 Specific Use zoning district as it is currently vacant. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-2109 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3447 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3)  

Specific Use District 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue 
Minor Arterial 

(Modified), Partial 

R.O.W. 53 feet, three-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.16 Case 3447: AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project LLC 

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific 

Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at:  

 Generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 
acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were five (5) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, advised the intent is to construct a self-

storage facility and he has provided a site plan. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked why they are requesting C-3 zoning instead of C-2. Mr. Stephens stated that 

other similar facilities are zoned C-4, but they would be open to C-2 on this case if needed. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3447 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by DAN WILSON to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) with 1 (recusal) to approve the 

motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY recused from the case. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272










3447 
 
 

 

View of adjacent property. View south. View of subject property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north.        View of adjacent property. View west. 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 15.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0143, for Zone Case 3446, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 5601 Ursuline
Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, on 134.45 acres of unplatted land
out of Block JS, Section 6.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 7-0-1.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3446 
Ordinance Zone Case 3446 (L) 
Staff Report 3446 
Documentation 3446 































Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3446 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant  AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner   NWP EB-5 Project, LLC 

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed and zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through Ordinance 

2536. 

• September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3446: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment 

District (A-2) by a vote of 7-0-1. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 21 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 1 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north, east, and south are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and Transition (T). Property 

to the west is zoned R-1. Most of the surrounding land is undeveloped, with some residential uses.   

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Ursuline Street, on 134.45 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. The applicant requests a zone change from R-1 to R-2 and A-2. 

 

Current zoning:   Single-Family District (R-1).   

 

Requested zoning:  Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 

residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 

and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city. 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 

increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density 

and high-density or non-residential districts. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the proposed A-2 zoning is, “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land uses. 

When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned property, the 

proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development. 

Architectural design, landscaping, screening and parking areas shall be properly provided to ensure maximum 

protection of lower-density uses. 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Frankford Avenue and Ursuline Street, with Frankford Avenue 

designated as a Principal Arterial and Ursuline Street designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare 

Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network, so best practices are to 

consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs 

to local traffic and regional traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development or zoning. Properties to the south are already zoned High Density Apartment District (A-2) and Two-

Family District (R-2). 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses 

and notes that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity 

for R-2 and A-2 is appropriate for this area. While the R-2 and A-2 zoning is not consistent with the Future Land 

Use Plan, it is appropriate next to the established residential uses along with the R-2 and A-2 zoning to the south.   

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-2 and A-2 zoning districts. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map      

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Response Letters 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3446 

 

Allowable Uses:   High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Two-Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue and 

Ursuline Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Partial Minor Arterial,  

Modified  

R.O.W. 100 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

Ursuline Street, 
Future Minor  
Arterial, Not 
Completed  

R.O.W. 20 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, not paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.15 Case 3446: AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density 

Apartment District (A-2), at:  

 5601 Ursuline Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, 
on 134.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were twenty-one (21) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street stated they are continuing development from 

the south to the north and are requesting R-2 and A-2 zoning to allow for flexibility on what can be constructed. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3446 a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) with 1 (recusal) to approve the 

motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY recused from the case. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001142
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107












3446 

 

  

Subject property view to the east. View to the south. 

View to the west. View to the north. 

  









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 16.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0147, amending Chapter 40
“Zoning” of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, amending Section 40.01.003 “Definitions” to add a
definition for “Office/Warehouse”; amending Division 15 “C-3 General Retail District” to update General
Provisions and Permitted Uses; and amending Section 40.03.2233 “C-4 Permitted Uses” to add
“Office/Warehouse”, setting forth regulations for outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Recent zoning requests caused concerns among the City Council members regarding the lack of an
adequate Office/Warehouse land use. Although the City is currently writing a Unified Development Code
(UDC), an update to the City's Zoning Code and land use regulations, the Council requested that staff
update the current zoning code to provide for this use as soon as possible. While working with the UDC
Council Subcommittee on this item, staff identified additional land uses and requirements that are also in
need of updates based on past concerns. They are as follows: 

Section 40.01.003 Definitions, adding a definition for “Office/Warehouse;”
Division 15 C-3 General Retail District, updating General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and
Section 40.03.2233 C-4 Permitted Uses, adding “Office/Warehouse” and setting forth regulations for
outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this amendment on September 2, 2021, and recommended
approval of the request, by a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Chapter 40 Amendment 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 17.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the applicable
300-foot minimum distance provisions of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 3314 4th
Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Everest Mart.

Item Summary
Effective August 8, 2009, Ordinance No. 2009-O0060 amended Section 14.01.007 (Section 18-11),
Alcoholic beverages - Sale near church, school or hospital, in Chapter 14, Offenses - Miscellaneous, of
the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, related to businesses who obtain a permit from the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) for the sale of alcohol.  As part of the ordinance, the City
Council adopted a standard which prohibits any business that is within 300 feet of any school, measured
from property line to property line, from having a permit issued by TABC. The City Council may
consider a variance to the 300-foot rule as set forth in the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code.

The request for a variance is from Everest Mart, located at 3314 4th Street, which is within 300 feet of a
public school, Texas Tech University. Chancellor Tedd Mitchell has been notified in writing of this
request. This location previously approved a variance for a wine and beer retailer's off-premise permit in
2009.

A request for a new permit for off-premise alcohol sales at this location is now pending, and requires a
separation variance request. The City Council has wide discretion in considering whether to grant a
variance. The following may be considered by the City Council (as noted by the State of Texas statute
providing for the variance process):

1) The enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is not in the best interest of the public;
2) The regulation constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other resources;
3) The regulation creates an undue hardship on the applicant, does not serve its intended purpose or is not
effective or necessary;
4) The variance may be granted for any other reason, after consideration of the health, safety and welfare
of the public and the equity of the situation, if the governing body finds it to be in the best interest of the
community.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments



Resolution - Everest Mart 
Applicant Letter - Everest Mart 
Map - Everest Mart 
Zoning Certificate - Everest Mart 
TABC Pre-Qualification Packet - Everest Mart 
2009 Resolution - Everest Mart 





1

Kristen Sager

From: Chandra Shrestha <mankamana2012@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2021 1:11 PM
To: Kristen Sager
Cc: Everest Mart
Subject: TABC - Package Store - DBA Everest Mart  (Company - Everest Mankamana Holdings 

LLC ) located at 3314 4th St, Lubbock, TX 79415

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

Hi 
Good Morning  
 
I would like to thank for verification of my TABC application for Store Package for above mentioned address from Lubbcok 
city office. In this connection I would like to inform you that in this location I have already holding TABC permit ./ License 
(Q 1004729 &  BF 1004730 expire on 1/1/2022), meanwhile I am going to change to Store Package. So I would like to 
apply for P & BF permit/ license. Please help me or give your guidance in this matter highly appreciable. 
 
I hope you will do the needful and oblige. If you have any query please feel free to contact me 24/7 
 
Yours truly 
 
 
Chandra K Shrestha 
Everest Mankaman Holdings LLC  
dba EVEREST MART 
3314 4th st 
Lubbock, 
TEXAS 79415 
Ph# 806 224 3288 



2521

2521

3401

32
20

3220

31
16

34
02

22
1

3314 3310

3510

IN
DI

AN
A A

V
4TH ST

IN
DI

AN
A A

V

JO
LI

ET
AV

5TH ST

UNIVERSITY
MEDICAL
CENTER

TEXAS
TECH

UNIVERSITY

TTU HEALTH
SCIENCES
CENTER

.
LEGEND

Permit Requested
Hospitals
Schools/Universities
300-Ft Buffer Hospitals
300-Ft Buffer Schools/Universities
Lakes
Parks
Parcels

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational 
purposes  and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does 
not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 100 200 30050

Feet 9/16/2021

3314 4th Street - ABP Request



















   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 18.           
Meeting Date: 10/12/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the method of assessment
classification for the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District, and calling for a public hearing on
October 26, 2021. 

Item Summary
Following a public hearing at a Regular City Council Meeting on September 14, 2021, the City Council
approved the creation resolution establishing the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District (PID).
The creation resolution was recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk's office on September 21, 2021, as
required by state statute. 

The next step in the PID establishment process is to consider a resolution approving the classification(s)
regarding the method of assessment and to call a public hearing to consider an ordinance to levy the
assessment. All properties are identified as one classification with the method of assessment being based
on assessed values. A proposed list of property owners, addresses, valuations, assessment rates, and
assessments will be made available for review by the public in the City Secretary's office after October
26, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 






	Agenda
	3.03.__Board Appointments 
	6.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_7.20.2021 S LMPO
	       ATT_8.25.2021 S LEDA
	       ATT_9.14.2021
	7.01.__Budget Amendment #1
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 1
	       ATT_Updated Exhibit E
	7.02.__Budget Amendment #2
	       ATT_Budget Ordinance
	7.03.__COL Property Insurance
	       ATT_COL Property Resolution
	       ATT_COL Property 
	7.04.__Cyber
	       ATT_Cyber Resolution
	       ATT_Cyber Liability
	7.05.__10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
	       ATT_Plat- Lot 22-A Tanglewood Addition 
	7.06.__Dedication Deeds- Section 30 and 31 Block AK
	       ATT_Resolution - Four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds- Section 30 and 31 Block AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 72 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 31 BlK AK  
	       ATT_Parcel 73 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 31 BlK AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 111 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 30 BlK AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 112 - Street and Public Ded Deeds- Sec 30 BlK AK 
	       ATT_CIP- Detail
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Location Map
	7.07.__Amendment No.1 to Contract 15317
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1 
	       ATT_Original Contract
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.08.__North University Agreement- City and County of Lubbock
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	7.09.__1823 Buddy Holly Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	7.10.__1823 Buddy Holly Permittable Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	7.11.__Lease for Tests and Vaccination Clinic
	       ATT_Resolution - Temporary Lease Agreement for Clinic
	       ATT_Contract - Temporary Lease Agmt. for Clinic
	7.12.__Amendment 1 to Immunizations COVID-19 Grant
	       ATT_Resolution (c) - Amend 1 to HHS001019500024
	       ATT_Amend 1 - Immunization Grant
	7.13.__CDBG Contract - City to YWCA
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_CDBG Contract - YWCA (s)
	7.14.__CDBG Contract - City to LHFC
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_CDBG Contract - Lubbock Housing Finance Corp. (s)
	7.15.__Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5310 
	       ATT_Resolution - FTA 5310 FY 2021
	       ATT_Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5310 
	7.16.__Citibus - TxDOT FY 2022 Section 5307
	       ATT_Resolution - TxDOT 5307 FY 2022
	       ATT_TxDOT 5307 Grant FY 2022
	7.17.__Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5307
	       ATT_Resolution - FTA 5307 FY 2021
	       ATT_Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5307
	7.18.__FTA FY 19 & 20 Section 5339 (a) Grant
	       ATT_Resolution - FTA 5339(a) FY 19 and 20
	       ATT_Citibus - FTA FY 19 and 20 Section 5339(a)
	7.19.__ SirisiDynix - Library Software
	       ATT_Resolution - SirsiDynix
	       ATT_Contract - SirsiDynix
	7.20.__Police Motorcycle Lease 
	       ATT_Resolution - Lease for Motorcycles
	       ATT_Agreement - Harley-Davidson Motorcycles
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - Motorcycle Lease
	8.01.__Criteria to Develop New Districting Plans
	       ATT_Resolution (c) - Redistricting Criteria
	8.02.__Redistricting Guidelines for Public Participation
	       ATT_Resolution - Redistricting Guidelines
	8.03.__Board Appointments
	8.04.__PACE Resolution of Intent 
	       ATT_Resolution of Intent (r) - Lubbock PACE
	       ATT_Report - PACE
	LUBBOCK PACE REPORT 
	Report-Lubbock Owner contract
	Report-Lubbock Lender contract
	Report-Lubbock Notice of Lien

	8.05.__ZC 2690-D
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2690-D
	       ATT_Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D
	       ATT_Documentation Zone Case 2690-D
	Case Information 2690-D.pdf
	2690d_1locator
	Notification Map
	2690d_2imag
	2690d_3zoning
	2690d_4flup
	Zone Case 2690-D- Photos
	Application
	site plan 2
	letters 1&2

	8.06.__ZC 2904-H
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2904-H
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-H
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-H
	2904-H Staff Report
	2904-H Case Information
	2904h_1locator
	2904h_2imag
	2904h_3zoning
	2904h_4flup
	2904-H Photos
	2904-H Application

	8.07.__ZC 2904-I
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2904-I
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-I
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-I
	Case Information 2904-I.pdf
	2904i_1locator
	Notification map
	2904i_2imag
	2904i_3zoning
	2904i_4flup
	Application
	Site
	Letter

	8.08.__ZC 3135-B
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3135-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 3135-B
	       ATT_Documentation 3135-B
	Case Information 3135-B.pdf
	3135b_1locator
	Notification Map
	3135b_2imag
	3135b_3zoning
	3135b_4flup
	Zone Case 3135-B - Photos
	Application
	Floor Plan
	3135-b in favor letter

	8.09.__ZC 3257-M
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3257-M
	       ATT_Staff Report 3257-M
	       ATT_Documentation 3257-M
	Packet Photos 3257-M.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.10.__ZC 3308-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3308-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 3308-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3308-D
	Sheets and Views
	19096-ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION-WRS-FIGURE

	Packet Photos 3308-D.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.11.__ZC 3443
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3443
	       ATT_Staff Report Zone Case 3443
	       ATT_Documentation Zone Case 3443
	Packet Photos 3443.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.12.__ZC 3444
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3444 (L)
	       ATT_Staff Report Case 3444
	       ATT_Documentation Case 3444
	3444 Staff Report - Shane - with KS edits
	5.13 Zone Case 3444 Packet
	Case Information 3444
	3444_1locator
	3444_2imag
	3444_3zoning
	3444_4flup
	Photos 3444
	APP Escondido Crossing East Zone CHange


	8.13.__ZC 3445
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3445
	       ATT_Starr Report Case 3445
	       ATT_Documentation Case 3445
	8.14.__ZC 3447
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3447
	       ATT_Staff Report 3447
	       ATT_Documentation 3447
	Case Information 3447
	3447_1locator
	3447_2imag
	3447_3zoning
	3447_4flup
	Photos 3447
	App and docs 3447

	8.15.__ZC 3446
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3446
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3446 (L)
	       ATT_Staff Report 3446
	       ATT_Documentation 3446
	Case Information 3446.pdf
	3446_1locator
	Notification map
	3446_2imag
	3446_3zoning
	3446_4flup
	Zone Case 3446 - Photos
	site
	Application
	letter in favor
	3446 letter in opposition

	8.16.__Chapter 40 Ordinance Amendment - Office/Warehouse
	       ATT_Ordinance Chapter 40 Amendment
	8.17.__Alcohol Separation Variance - Everest Mart
	       ATT_Resolution - Everest Mart
	       ATT_Applicant Letter - Everest Mart
	       ATT_Map - Everest Mart
	       ATT_Zoning Certificate - Everest Mart
	       ATT_TABC Pre-Qualification Packet - Everest Mart
	       ATT_2009 Resolution - Everest Mart
	8.18.__Northwest Passage Assessment Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution

